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FINANCIAL HICHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended December 31,

tin millions, except per share dala) 2002 2001 2006 13499 1998
CONSGLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS
Revenues $25020  $23454 $21,122 $19562  $1735
Earanings (Loss) From Operations $ 2,186 % 1,566 $ 1,200 $ 945 3 42y
Nei Farnings (1.oss) 3 1,352 $ 913 $ 36 $ 568 $(166)
Net Earmings (Lossy Applicable

to Common Shureholders $ 1,352 $ 913 $ 736 $ 568 $ 1214y
Return on Sharcholders’ Equity 33.0% 245% 198 % 143 % Lna
Basic Net Earnings (Loss)

per Common Share $ 446 $ 292 $ 297 $ 163 $ (0.56)
Diluted Net Eamnings (Loss)
__per Common Share ) $_ 425 0§ 275 0§ 219'  § 160' 3 (056)
Commeon Stock Dividends per Share $ 0.03 5 003 $ 002 $ 002 $ 002
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 2423 $ 154 $ 1521 $ 1,180 3 1071
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION
{As of December 31) - B e
Cash and Investments $ 6,399 $ 5,698 $ 5053 $ 4719 $ 4,424
Total Assets $ 14,164 $12 4586 $11,053 510,273 $ 9675
Debt $ 1,761 % 1584 $ 1,209 $ 99t $ 08
Shareholders’ Equity $ 4,428 $ 384 $ 3688 $ 3.863 $ 4038
Debtto-Total-Capital Ratio 28.5% 289 % 24.7% 204% 148 %

na = not applicatde

Financial Highlights and Results of Operations should be read wogether with the accomparying Cansolidated Financial Ststements and Notes.

1 2000 results ipclude % $14 million net permanent (ax benelit refated o the contribution of UnitedHealch Capital investments to
the United Health Foundation and a $27 millica gain (317 million after tax) celated to a separate dispasition of United Healch
Capital invesrments, Excluding these irems, 2000 net earnings and dituted net earnings per common share were $70% million and
$2.10 per share, and return on sharehalders’ equity was 19.0%.

2 3999 resubs include 2 pet permanenl tax benefil primarily related to the contribution of UnitedHenlth Capital investments o
the United Health Foundzuon, Excluding this benefin, net carnings and diluted ned carnings per common share wery 4563 million
and F1.3Y per share.

3 Excluding the operational realignment and other chacges of 2745 million. $175 million of charges related 16 contract lesses associated with
certam Medicare markets and olher increases o commescial and Medicare medical costs payeble estimates, wnd the 320 million
convertible prefered stock redemption premium from 3998 results, carnings from operafions and oel carnings applicable o cammon
shareholders woukd liave been $858 miliian and §509 million, or $1.31 diluted net carnings per cotimon share, and retarn wn shareholders”
equity would have heen 1L.9%.
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RESULTS OF QPERATIONS

2002 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

2002 was a record year for UniledHealth Group as the company continued strong diversified growth

across i1s business segments and realized diluted net earnings per conmon share of $4.25, up 52% over

2001 on a reporied basis and up 38% on a FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis.! Other fnancial

performance highlights include:

> Revenues of $25.0 billion, 4 7% increase over 2001,

> Operating carnings of $2.2 billion, up 40% over 2001 on a reported basis and up 32% on
FAS No. 142 comparable reporiing hasis.

> Net earnings of nearly $1.4 billion, 2 48% increase over 2001 on a reported basis and a 35% increase
on a FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis.

> Operating cash flows of mmore than $2.4 billion, an increase of 31% over 2001

> Consolidated operating margin of 8.7%, up from 6.7% in 200} on a reporied basis and up from
7.1% on a FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis, driven by operational and productivity
impravements, tuproved margins on risk-based products, and a product mix shift from risk-based
products to highermargin, fee-based products.

+ Return on shatcholders’ equity of 33.0%, up from 24.5% in 2001 on 2 reported basis and up from
96.8% on 2 FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis.

2002 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2001 RESULTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL RESULTS

Revenues

Revenues are comprised of premium revenuces from risk-bused products; service revenues, which
primarily inciude fees for management, administrative and consuliing services; and investment and
other income,

Premium revennes are derived from risk-based arrangements in which the preminm is fixed, wypically for
a one-year period, and we assume the economic risk of funding health care services and related administrauve
costs. Service revennes consist primarily of fees derived from services performed for customers that seif-insure
the medical costs of their employees and their dependents. For both premium risk-based and fee-based
customer arrangements, we provide coordination and facilitation of medical services, Lransaction processing,
customer, consnmer and care provider services, and access 1o contracted networks of physicians, hospitals and
other health care professionals.

Consolidated revenues increased by approximately $1.6 billion, or 7%, in 2002 to $25.0 billion.
Strong growth across our business segments was partialty offset by the inipact of targeted withdrawals
from unprofitable risk-based arrangements with customers using multiple hiealth benefit carriers, and
withdrawals and benefit design changes in our Medicare+Choice product offering in certain markets.

V(v Janwary 1, 2002, UnitedHeakh Group adopted Statement of Fimanciat Accounting Sandards (FAS) No. 142, “Goodwili and
Other lnangible Assets,” which eliminated the amorticaon of goodwill. Ty enhance analysis, the £A5 No. 142 comparable reponting
basis excindes 593 mitlion (389 millen after mx cffect) of goodwill amortizalion from 2041 resulis.
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Following is a discussion of 2002 consolidated revenue trennds for cach revenue component.

Premium Revenues Consolidated premium revenues in 2002 totaled $21.9 billion, an increase of $1.2 biflion,
or 6%, compared with 2001,

Premiwn revenues from Unitedt lealtheare's commercial risk-hased products increased by approximately
$1.9 billion, or 10%, 1 $12.9 billion in 2002, Average net premium rate increases exceeded 13% on
UnitedHealthecare's renewing cornmercial risk-based business. This increase was partially offset by the effecs
of targeted withdrawals from unprofiable risk-based arrangemcents with customers using multiple healu:
benefit carriers and a shift in product mix from risk-based to fee-based products. During 2002, the pumber of
individuals served by Unitedilealtheare commercial risk-based praducts decreased by 180,000, of 3%

Premiwn revenues from state-sponsored Mediczid and federatly sponsored Medicare+Choice progratis
decreased by $400 mithion, or 11%, to $3.2 billions in 2002. Premium revenues from Medicare+Choice
programs decreased by $850 million 1o $1.6 billion: because of planned withdrawals and beaefit design
changes in certzin markets, undertaken in responsc o insufficient Medicare program reimbursement rates.
Premium revenues from Medicaid programs increased by $450 million to $1.6 billion in 2002, More than halfl
of this increase, $240 million, related 1o the acquisition of AmeriChoice on September 30, 2002.

The balance of premium revenue growth in 2002 inctuded a $240 million increase in Health Care
Services’ premium revenues driven by an increase in the number of individuals served by both Ovations’
Medicare supplement products provided o AARP members and by its Evercare business. In addition,
Specialized Care Services realized a $140 million InCrease in Premiumn revenues in 2049,

Service Revenues Service tevenues in 2002 waled $2.9 biilion, an increase of $404 million, or 16%, over
900}, The increase in service revenues was driven primarily by aggregate growth of 11 % in individuals served
by Unipsise and UnitedHealtheare wnder fee-based arrangements. Uniprise and UnitedHealtheare service
revenues grew by an aggregate of $230 million during 2002. Additionally, revenues from Ovations’ Phurmacy
Services business, established in June 2001, increased by approximately $110 million as it was in operation
for the full vear in 2002.

Investment and Other fncome Investment and other income in 2009 toaled $220 million, a decrease of
$61 million, or 22%, from 2001, Interest income decreased by $32 million due to lower interest yields
on Investments in 2002 compared with 2001, pardally offset by the impact of increased levels of cash
and fixed-income mvestments. Net realized capital losses in 2002 were 318 million, compared to net
realized capital gains of $11 million in 2001. The 9002 net reatized capital losses were mainly due to
sales of investments in debt securities of certain companies in the telecommunications industry and
impairments recorded on cerin UnhedHealth Capital equity investmenis. The losses were partially
offset by capital gains on sales of investments in other debt securities.
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Medical Costs
The combination of pricing, benefit designs, consumer health care utilization and comprehensive care
facilitation efforts is reflected in the medical care ratio (medical costs as a percentage of premiwm revennes).

‘The consolidated medical care ratio decreased from 85 3% in 2001 10 83.0% in 2002. Excluding the
AARP business! the medical care ratio decreased by 250 basis potats from 83.9% in 2001 1o 81.4% in 2002.
Approximately 90 basis points of the medicat care ratio decrease resulted from targeted withdrawals from
unprofitable risk-hased arrangements with commercial customers using muitiple health benefic carriers
and a shift in commercial customer mix, with a larger percentage of premium revenues derived [rom our
smati business customers. These employer groups fypically have a fower medical care ratio, but caty higher
operating cosis than larger customers. Addi tionally, the impact of withdrawals and benefit design changes
in certain Medicare markets pertaining 10 our Medicare +Choice offering improved the medical care ratio
by approximacely 90 basis points. The balancc of the decrease in the medical care rario was primarily driven
by changes in product and husiness mix, care managemeanl activities and net preminm rate increases that
exceeded overall medical benefit cost increases.,

On an absotute dollar basis, consolidated medical costs increased by $548 million, or 3%, over 2001. This
increase principally resulied from a risc in medical costs of approximately 12%, or $2.1 bitlion, driven by the
combination of medical cost inflation and increased health care consumption. Partially offsctting this
increase, medical costs decreased by approximately $1.4 billion resulting from net reductions in the number
of people receiving benefits under our Medicare and commercial risk-based products. The balance of the
decrease in medical costs was driven primarily by changes in benefit designs in certain Medicarc inarkets.

Operating Costs
The operating cost ratio (operating costs as a pereentage of total revenues) was 17.5% in 2002, compared
with 17.0% ja 2001. Chauges in productivity and revenue mix affect the operating cost ratio. Our
fee-hased products and services, which are growing aca faster raic than our premium-based products, have
much higher operating cost ratios than our premium-based products. In additien. our Medicare business,
which Lias refatively low operating costs as # percentage of revenues, has decreased in size refative 1o our
overall operations. Using a revenue mix comparablie to 2001, the 200:2 operating cost ratio would have
decreased by approximately 20 basis points, represenung the equivalent of a $50 million
yearoveryear reduction in operating costs. This decrease was principally driven by operating cost effictencies
derived from process improvernents, technology deployment and cost management initiatves, primacily in
the form of reduced labor 2nd octupancy Costs supporting our ransaction processing and custorner service,
bilting and earollment functions. The iapact of these efficiencics was partially offset by the increrental costs
associated with the development, deployment, adoption and maintenance of new technoloyy releases as well
as increased business seif-insurance costs during 2002.

On an absotute doliar basis, operating costs increascd by $408 miltion, or 10%, over 2001. This
increase was driven by a 7% increase ip total individuals served by Health Care Services and Uniprise
during 2002, general operating cost inflation and the additional costs associated with acquired businesses.

U premimn revenues and tecdical coses Fram e AARE business were §3.7 billion and $3.4 hillion, respectively, in 2002 and
$5.6 billios and $3.3 billion, resgecrively, in 2001, Underwriting gains or loyses related 1o the AARP business are vecarded as an
Licrease or decrease W a rate stabilization fund as describied in Note 4 1g the Consolidated Financiat Starenents,
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization was $255 million 9009 and $265 milion in 2000 This decrease was due
o $9% million of amurtization expense in 2001 recorded for goodwill, which is no Jonger amaoriiged in
2002 pursiant to FAS No. 142, This decrease was largely offsct by $83 million of additional depreciation
and amortization reseliing from higher levels of equipment and capitalized software as a result of
wechnoiogy enhancements and business growtl.

Income Taxes

Our cifective income tax rate was 35 5% in 2002 and 38.0% in 2001, The decrease was primarily due o
the impact of non-tax-deductible goodwill amortization chat is no longer amortized for financial
repenting purposes, as required by FAS No. 142, Assuming FAS No. 142 was effective during 2001, the
effeeiive tax rate would have heen approximately 36.0% during 2001,

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The futlowing summanizes the operating resulis of our business segments for the vears ended December 31
{in misthons): '

REVENUES Parcers
- e : 2002 0% ......Chiree

Health {are Services %$21,644 90,494 6%
Uniprise 2,713 2,462 {09
Specialized Care Services 1,509 1.234 %
fngemx 491 447 1%
Coiporate and Eliminations (1,2_’-_?3_7} o {1.263) ) am
. Consolidated Revenuey . $25020 S 2454 7%
EARNINGS FROM DPERATIONS 2001 ) Percemi
DT ———— - . 2002 Reporiee  Agjustes
Health Cage Services $ 1,336 5 944§ 952
Lniprise 509 574 A
Speciabiend Care Serviees 286 214 220
fogenix . e ———— 55 I L -

Total Operating Segrents 2,186 1,580 1,674
Caorporate - (4 (4

Consolidated Ea
rem — nat meainnglul

S8 $560 516 %

ings From Operations

) Adjusted 1o exclude $9% pillion of amoitizadnn expense wsocizted with goodwill, Purseane to FAS Mo, 142, which we adopted
el{ective Jannary |, 9902, gondwill i e lunger anortized. Where applicabile, the peroenl change is caltulated compartng ihe 2002
resalis to the 2000 “Adjosted”™ resubs,
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Health Care Services

The Health Care Services segment consists of the UnitedEealthcare, Ovaiions and AmeriChoice businesses.
UsitedHealtheare coordinates network-based health: and well-being services on hehalf of local employers and
consumers. Ovations delivers health and well-being services for Americans age 50 and older. AmeniChaoice
[acilizates and nranages health care services for state Medicaid programs and their beneficiarics.

Health Care Services posted record revenues of $21.6 Lillion in 2002, an increase of approximatcely
$1.2 billion, ot 6%, over 2001. The increase in revenues primarily resulted from an increase of
approximately $1.2 billion in UnitedHealtheare’s commercial premium revenues. This was driven by
average net premium rate increases in excess of 13% on rencwing commercial risk-based business,
partially offset by the effects of argeled withdeawals from unprofitable risk-based arrangements with
commercizl customers using multiple health benefit carriers. Premium revenues from Medicaid
programs increased by $450 million in 2002, of which $240 mitlion related o the acquisition of
AmeriChoice on September 36, 2002, OffscLiing these increases, Medicare+Choice premium revenues
decreased by $850 miltion as a result of planned withdrawals and benefit design changes in certain
markels in response to insufficient Medicare program reimbursement rates. The balance of Health Care
Services’ revenue growth in 2002 includes a $240 million increase in Ovations' revenues driven by an
inerease in individuals served by both its Medicare supplement prodacts provided to AARP members and
its Evercare business, and a2 3140 million increase in revenues from its Pharmacy Services business,
established in June 2001,

Health Care Services realized earnings [rom operations of $1.3 billion in 2002, an increase of
$392 million, or 2%, over 2001 on a reported basis, and an increase of $354 million, or 36%, over 2001
on a FAS No. 14% comparable reporting basis, This increase primarily resulted from improved gross
margins on UnitedHealthcare’s commercial risk-based products, revenue growth and operating cost
efficiencies derived from process improvements, technology deployment and cost management initiatives,
principaldy in the form of reduced labor and occupancy costs supporting transaction processing and
customer service, billing and enrollment funciions. Health Care Services' operating margin increased to
6.9% in 2002 from 4.6% on a reported basis and from 4.8% on a FAS No. 142 comparabic reporiing basis
in 2601, This increase was driven by a combination of an improved medical care ratio, productivity
impravements and a shift iu product mix from risk-based products 16 higher-margin, fee-based products.

UnitedHealtheare's commercial medical care ratio decreased by 230 basis points from 84.1% in 2001
to 81.8% in 2002, Approximately 130 basis points of the commercial medical care ratio decrease resulied
from targeted withdrawals from unpraofitable risk-based arrangements with commercial customers using
muhtiple carriers and a shift in commereial customer mix, with 2 Jarger percentage of premivm revenues
derived from small business customers. These employer groups typically have a lower medical care ratio,
but carry higher operating costs than larger customers. The balance of the decreasc in the commercial
medical care ratio was primarily driven by changes in product mix, care management activities and net
premium rate increases that exceeded overall medical henefit cost increases.
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The number of individuals served by UnitedHealthcare’s commercial products increased by 230,060,
or 3%, during 2002. This included an ncrease of 410,000, or 18%, in the number of individuals served
with fee-based products, driven by new oustomer relationships and customers converting from risk-hased
products during 2002, This increase was partiaily aftset by a decrease of 180,000, or 3%, in individuals
served by risk-based products, driven by customers converting to selfdunded, fee-hased arrangements
and Unitediiealthcarc’s targeted withdrawal of risk-based product offerings from unprofitzble armngements
with customers using muldple health benefit cavriers.

UnitedHealthcare s year-overyear Medicare enrollment decreased 35% because of market withdrawals and
benefit design changes. These actions were taken in response Lo insufficient Medicare program reimbursement
rates it specific counties and were intended o preserve profit margins and beuer position the Medicare program
for long term success. UnitedHealthcare will continue to evaluate Medicare markets and, where necessary, take
actions thal may result in further withdrawals of Medicare product oftesings or reductions in enrollment, when
and as permilted by its contracts with CMS (Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services).

UnitedHealthcare's year-over-year Medicaid enrollinent increased by 390,000, largely due to the
acquisition of AmertChoice an September 30, 2002, which served approximately 360,000 individuals as of
the acquisition date.

The foliowing table summarizes individuals served, by major market segment and funding
arrangesaent, as of December 31

{in thousands) R 2002 ) 2000
Commercial
Risk-Based 5,070 5,250
_ Fee-Based 3 . 2,715 2,305
_ _Total Commercial Y 1Y ;- 7,555
Medicare 225 343
Medicaid o 1,030 _ 640
Total Government Programs A 985 _
Toral 8o 8548

1 pxcindes individuals served by Ovations' Medicare supplement products provided o AARY ey

Uniprise

Uniprise provides health and well-heing access and services, business-io-business ransaction processing
services, consumer connectivity and technology support services 1o large emplovers and healil: plans.
Uniprise revenues were $2.7 biltion it 2002, up $251 million, or 1%, over 2001. This increase was driven
primarily by an 8% increase in Uniprise’s customer hase. Uniprise served 8.6 million individuals as of
December 31, 2002, and 8.0 mitlion individuals as of December 31, 2001,

Uniprise exrmings from operations grew by $135 million, or 36%, over 2001 on a reported basis, and by
$107 million, or 27%. over 2001 ot 2 FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis. Operating margin improved
1o 18.8% in 2062 from 15.2% on a reported basis and From 16.3% on a FAS No. 142 camparable reporting
basis in 2001, Unipeise has expanded its operating margin through operating cost efficiencies denved from
process improvements, technology deployment and cost management initatives, primarily in the form of
recluced labor andd Gcoupancy costs supporiing ils ransaction processing and customer service, billing and
enrollment functions. Additionally, Uniprise’s infrastructure can be scaled efficiently, aliowing its business to
grow revenues at 2 propoctonately higher rate than the associated growth i OPerating expenses.
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Specialized Care Services
Specitlized Care Services is a portfolio of heaith and well-being businesses, each serving a specialized
market need with a unique biend of bencfits, networks, services and resourees. Specialized Care Services
had revennes of $1.5 billion tn 2002, an increase of 3253 mitlion, or 20%, over 2001, This increase was
principally driven by $14€ million af revenue growth from Spectera, its vision care benefits business
acquired in October 2001, and an increasc in the number of individuals served by Hnited Behavioral
Health, its mental health benefits business, and Dentat Benefit Providers, its denial services business.
Farnings from operations ceached $286 million in 2002, an increase over 2001 of $72 million, or 34%. on
a reported basis and $66 million, or 30%, on a FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis. Specialized Care
Scrvices” operating margin increased o 19.0% in 2062, up from 17.1% on a reported basis and from 17.5%
on 2 FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis in 2001, This increase wis driven by operational and produciivity
improvements, partially offsct by a shifting business mix toward higher revenue, lower margin products. With
the continuing growth of this segment, we have begun consolidating production and service operations to a
segment-wide service and production infrastructure to improve service quality and consistency and enhance
productivity and efficiency.

Ingenix
Ingenix is an international leader in the ficld of health care dats analysis and application, serving
pharmaceutical companies, health insurers and other payers, health care providers, large cemployers and
governments. Revenues were $491 million in 2002, an increase of $44 million, or 10%, over 2001, This
was the result of strong new business growth in the health information business and revenucs from
acquired businesses, partiaily offset by reduced revenues in the pharmacentical services business.
Earnings from operations were $35 million, up $7 million, or 15%, over 2001 on a reported basis, and down
$14 mitlion, or 20%, from 2001 on a FAS No. 142 comparable reporting basis. Operating margin was 1.2% i
2002, up from 10.7% in 2001 on a reported basis, and down from 15.4%% on a FAS No. 142 comparable reporting
basis. The rednuction in earnings from operations and operating margin on a FAS No. 142 comparable
veporting basis was due to cancedlations and delays of certain clinical research wials by pharmaceutical clients,
which have been affected by weak industrvspecific conditions. This reduction was partially offset by strong
business growth and slighty expandiog margins in the bieaith information business.

Corporate

Corporate includes costs for certain company-wide process improvenent initiatives, net expenses from
charitable contributions 1o the United [Tealth Foundation and eliminatons of intersegment transactions.
The decrease in corporate expenscs of $14 milkion from 2001 to 2002 reflecis the completion during 2001
of certain company-wide process improvementinitiatives.
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2001 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2000 RESULYS

CONSCGLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULYS

Revenues

Consolidated revemues increased by 11% in 2001 to $23.5 billion. Strong and balanced growth across all
business seginents was partiaily offset by the impace of planned exits in 2000 from Unitedilealthcare’s
commercial businesses in the Pacific Coast region, the withdrawal of its Medicare+Choice product
offcring from targeted countics and the closure of Uniprise’s Medicare fiscal intermediary operasions,
Following is a discussion of 2001 consolidated revenne trends for ezch revenue component,

Premium Revenues Cousolidated premium revenuesin 9001 totzled $20.7 billion, an increase of $1.8 hillion,
or 9%, compared with 2000. This increase was primarily driven by average net premium rate increases in
excess of 13% on UnnedHealthcare's rencewing commercial risk-based business, partally offser by the impact
of business and market exits.

Service Revenues Service revenues in 2001 toraled $2.5 billion, an increase of $596 million, or 27%, over
9600. The overall increase in service revenues was primarily the result of 20% growth in Uniprise’s customer
base, growth in UnitedHealthcare's fee-based business, and establishment of the Owations Pharmacy
Services business in June 2001.

Investment and Other Income Investment and other income in 2001 totaled $281 million, an increase
of $49 million over 2000. Lower interest yields on investments in 2001 compared with 2000 were substantially
offset by the impact of increased levels of cash and fixed-income investments in 2001. Net realiced capital
gains s 2001 were $11 miltion, compared to net cealized capital iosses of §34 million o 2000.

Medical Costs
The consalidated medical care ratio decreased from 83.4% in 2000 to 85.3% in 2001. Excluding the
AARP business. the medical cace ratio was 83.9% in both 20060 and 2001, as net premium yale increases
weree generally well matched with inereases in medical benefit costs.

On an absolute dollar hasis, medical costs increased $1.5 billion, or 9%, over 2000. The increase was
driven by medicud cost inflation, tncreased health care consumption patterns, benefit changes and
product mix changes.
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Operating Casts

The operating cost ratio was 17.0% in 2001, compared with 16.7% in 2000. Changes in productivity and
revenue mix affect the operating cost ratio, For many of our fastergrowing businesses, most direct costs of
revenne are inchrded in operating costs, not medicat costs. Using a revenue mix com parable to 2000, the
9001 uperating cost ratio would have decreased by approximately 70 hasis poinis. This decrease was
principally driven by opersting cost efficiencies derived from process improvements, technology
deployment and cost management initiatives, primarily in the form of reduced fabor and occupancy costs
supporting our transaction processing and customer service, hilling and enrollinent functions.
Additionally, because our infrastructure can be scaled efficiently, we have been able o grow revenues al 2
prapordonately higher rate than associated expenses.

On an absolute doflar basis, operating costs increased by $459 million, or 13%, over 2000, This increase
reflected additional costs ta support product and technology development initiatives, general operating
cost inflation and the 10% increase in individuals served by Health Care Services and Uniprise in 2001.
These increases were partially offset by proeductivity and technology tmprovemend discussed above.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization was $265 million in 2001 and $247 million in 9000, This increase vesulied
primarily from higher levels of capital expenditures to support business growth and technology
enhancements, as well as the amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets velated to acguisitions.

Income Taxes

The 2000 income tax provision includes nonrecurring tax benefits primarily related to the contrbution
of Unitedealth Capital investments to the United Health Foundation. Excluding nonrecurring tax
benefits, our effective income tax raie was 38.0% in 2001 and 37.5% in 2000.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The following summarizes the operating results of our business scgments for the years ended December 31
{in milhons):

REVENUES Percent
. L B 2000 ) Change
Heaith Care Secvices $ 20,494 3 18,696 10%
Uniprise 2,469 2,140 159
Specialized Care Services 254 G74 244,
Ingenix 47 375 19%
Corporate and Fliminations _ (1,209 ___{1,063) ) am

Consolicated Revenues $ 23,454 $ 21122 %
EARMINGS FROM DPERATIONS Percent
. 2001 . 2000 Change
Health Care Senvices 5 o $ 739 28%
Uniprise 374 289 2%
Specialized Care Services 214 174 23%
Ingenix —_ U _® L %

Total Operating Segments 1,580 1,934 98%
Corporate . . (14} {34} ___nm
_Consolidated Farnings From Operations _Susee $ 1200 0 1%
i — aed meaningfal ’

[ 28 |

United Heatth Grawp



Health Care Services

The Health Care Services segment posted revenues of $20.5 billion i 2001, an increase of $1.8 hillicn,
or 10%, over 2000, This increase resulted from average net premium rate increases inexcess of 13% on
Unitedileaithcare's renewing commercial risk-based business, partially offsct by the impact of
UnitedHealtheare's targeted exits in 2000 from its commercial businesses in the Pacific Coast regian
and the withdrawal of its Medicare+Choice product offering from certain counties.

Heaith Carc Services had earnings from operations of $344 million in 2001, an increase of $203 million,
or 8%, over 2000. This increuse resulted from revenue growth wnd stable gross margins on
UnitedHealtheare's commercial business and operating cost efficiencies from process improvement,
technology deployment and costmatiagement initiatives. Healh Care Services” operating margin increased
to 4.6% i 2061 from 4.0% in 2000, driven by the productivity improvements described above and a shift in
product mix from risk-based products highcr-margin, fee-based producis.

UnitedI{ealthcare’s commercial medieal care ratio remained flat compared with 2000 at 84.1%, as
net premium rate increases were grenerally well matched with increases in overall medical benefit costs.

The number of individuals served by UnitedHealthcare commercial products increased by 135,600, or 2%,
during 2001. This included an increase of 380,000 in the number of individuals served with fee-based productsasa
result of customers converting from tisk-based producis and new custorner tefadonships established in 2001. This
increase was pactially offset by 2 245,000 decrease in individuals served by risk-based prodhucis, driven by customers
converting to sefffunded, fee-based arrangements and UnitedHealtheare's terpeted withdrawat of its risk-based
product offerings from unprofitable arrangements with customers using muitiple health benefit caeriers.

UnitedHealtheare's year-over-year Medicare enrollmentdecreased by 16% in 2001 because of wargeted
market withdrawals and benefit design changes in response to insufficient Medicare program
reimbursement rates.

The foltowing table summarizcs individuals served, by major market segment and funding arrangement,
as of December 31"

fiowousadsy oo A —_— .0
Commercial
Risk-Based 5,230 3,495
Feebased e 2306 — 1325
_ Yowy Gommmercial 755 7420
Medicare 545 405
Medicaid — . .. b0 850
Totat Governnicnt Programs . 585 955
Total o 8,540 8,375

! Excludes individaals served by Ovations” Medicare supplement praducts provided te AARE meinhers.

Uniprise .

Uniprise revennes were $2.5 billion in 2001, up $322 million, or 15%,, over 2000, This increase was driven
primarily by continued growth in Uniprise’s customer base, which had a 20% increase in the number of
individuals served. Uniprisc served 8.0 miltion individuals as of December 31, 2001, and 6.7 million
individuats as of December 31, 2000, Uniprise’s earnings from operations grew by 485 million, or 28%,
over 2000 as a result of the increased revenaes. The operating margin improved to 15.2% in 2001 from
18.5% in 2000. As revenues have increased, Uniprise has expanded its operating margin by improving
productivity through process improvement initiatives and deployment of technology. Additionally,
Uniprise’s infrastructure can be scaled efficiently, altowing its business to grow revenues at a propordonately
higher rate than the associated growth in operatng expenses.
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Specialized Care Sevvices

Specialized Care Services had revermes of $1.% billion in 2001, an increase of $280 million, or 29%, over 2000.
This increase was driven primarily by an increase in the number of individuals served by United Behaviotal
Healih, and an increase in specialized services purchased by customers of Uniprise and UnitedHealthcare,
Farnings from operations reached $214 million in 2631, an increase of 23% over 20060 Specislized Care
Services' operating margin decreased from 17.9% in 2000 to 17.1% in 2001. The decrease in operating
margin was the result of a shifting preduct mix, with a larger percentage of revenues coming from businesses
with higher revenues per individual served and lower percentage operating margins.

Ingenix

Revenues were $447 million in 2001, an increase of $72 miltion, or 19%, over 2000 This increase
reflected growth in both the health informution and pharmaceutical services husinesses. Earnings {from
operations were $48 miltion, up 50% over 2000. Operating masgin increased to 10.7% in 2001 from 8.5%
in 2000, principally as a result of revenuc growth and improved productivity.

Corporate

The decrease of $20 miliion in 2001 corporate expenses reflected lower company-wide process
improvement expenses in 2001 compared 1o 2000, as certain process improvement initiatives were
completed in 2001,

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY AT DECEMBER 31, 2002

LIQUIDITY

We manage ouor cash, investments and capital structure so we are zble to meet the short and long-term
obligations of our business while maintaining financial fiexibility and liquidity. We forecast, analyze and
monitor our cash flows to enable prudent investment and financing within the confines of cur finarciat
steategy, such as our selfimposed limit of 30% on our debt-to-tolal-capital ravo (calculated as the sum of
commercial paper and debt divided by the sum of commercial papes, debtand shareholders® equity).

A majority of the assets held by our regulated subsidiaries are in the form of cash, cash equivalents and
investments. After considering expeeted cash flows front operating activities, we generally invest nonics of
regulated subsidiavies that exceed our near-term obligations in longer term, investment grade marketable
deht seeurities, 1o improve our overall investment return. Factors we consider in making these investment
decisions include our board of directors’ approved investment policy, regulatory limitations, return objectives,
tax implications, risk toleranice and maturity dates. Our long-term investments are also available for sale to
meet shortterm liguidity and other needs. Monies in excess of the capital needs of our regnlated entities are
paid to their non-regnlated parent companies, typically in the form of dividends, for general corporate use,
when and as permitted by applicable reguiations.

Cur non-regulated bustnesses also generaie significant cash from operations. Also, we issue long-term
debt and commercial paper with staggered maturity dates and have available credit facilities. Thesc
additional sources of liquidity allow us 10 maintain further operating and financial flexibility. Because of
this fexibility, we typically maintain low cash and investment balances in our non-regulated companics.
Cash in these enfitics is gencraily uscd to reinvest in our businesses in the form of capital expenditures, to
expand the depth and breadth of our services through business acquisitions, and to repurchase shares of
our common stock, depending on market conditions.
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Cash generated from operating activities, our primary source of liquidity, is principally from net carnings,
excluding depreciation and amortization. As a result, any future decline in our profizbility may have a negative
irnpact on our liquidity. The availability of financing in the form of debtor equity is influenced by many factors,
including our profimbility, operating cash flows, debt levels, debt rutings, contractual restrictions, regulatory
requirements and market conditions. We believe that our strategies and aciions toward mainaining financial
flexibiity mitigate much of this risk.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

During 2002, we generated cash from operations of more than P24 billin}fl, an increase of $579 milion,
or 31%, over 2001, The increase in operating cash [fows primarily resulied from an increase of $429 milliou
in net earnings excluding depreciation and amortization expense.

We maintained 2 sirony financial condition and liquidity position, with cash and investments of
$6.3 billion at December 31, 2002, Total cash and investmcnts increased by $631 million since December 31, 2001,
primarily resulting from strong cash flows from operations and acquisitions requiring maintenance of
mcremenal reguiated capital, partially offset by common stack repurchases, capital expenditures and
business acquisitions.

As further deseribed under “Regulatory Capital and Dividend Restrictions,” many of our subsidiaries
are subject (o various government regnlations that restrict the timing and amount of dividends and other
distributions that may be paid to their parent companies. At Decermber 31, 2002, approximatcly
$280 million of our $6.3 billion of cash and investments was held by non-regulated subsidiaries. Of this
amount, appreximately $130 million was available for general corporate use, including acquisitions and
sharc repurchases. The remaining $150 million consists primarily of public and non-public equity securities
tield by UnitedHealth Capital, owr investment capital business.

FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES

We use commercial paper und debt to maintain adequate operating and financial flexibility. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had commercial paper and debt outstanding of $1.8 billion and
$1.6 billion, respectively. Qur debt-tototal -capital ratio was 28.5% and 28.9% as of December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. We expect to maintain our debi-to-towl-capital ratio between 25% and 30%.
Within this range, we believe our cost of capital and return on shareholders” equity are optimized, while
maiotaining a prudent level of leverage and liquidity.

in January 2002, we issned $400 million of 5.2% hxed-rate notes due January 2007. We used proceeds
from this borrowing to repay commercial paper and for general corporate purposes, including working
capital, capital expenditures, busitiess acquisitions and share repurchases. When we ssned these notes,
we entered into short-terme LIBOR-hased {Londen Interbank Offered Rare) vartable interest rate swap
agreements for $200 million of the above notes. At December 31, 2002, the rate used to accrue interest
expense on these swaps was approximately 1.4%.

As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding commercial paper of $481 million and current
maturities of long-term debt of $350 million. We intend to issue pew term debt or commercial paper
during 2003, as necessary, to finance the repayment of these obtigations. As noted below, we believe Ut
we have sufficient flexibility to obtain addilional financing in the public or private markets.
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We have credit arrangements for $800 million that suppart our commercial paper program. These
credit arrangements include a 4450 million revolving facility that expires in July 2605, and a 3450 mitlion,
364<lay facility that expires in July 2003. We also have the capacity to issue approximatcly $200 million
of extendible commercial notes {ECNs}. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had no amounts
outstanding under our credit facilities or ECNs.

Our debt arrangements and credis facilities contain various covenants, the most restrictive of which
requice us 1o mintain a debtio-otzi-capital rato below 45% and w exceed specified minimum interest
coverage levels. We are in compliance with the requirements of all debt covenants.

Qur senior debt is rated “A” by Sundard & Poor’s (S&P) and Fitch, and “A3" by Moody’s. Our
commercial paper and ECN programs are rated *A-17 by S&P, “F-17 by Fitch, and “P-2" by Moody's.
Consistent with our intention of maintaining our senior debt ratings in the "A” range, we intend 0 mamnain
our debt-to-toalcapital ratio at 30% or less. A significant downgrade in our debl and commercial paper
ratings would likely adversely affect our bortowing capacity and costs.

The remaining issuing capacity of all securities covered by our §-3 shelf registration statement (for
common stack, preferred stock, debt securities and other securities) is $450 mitlion. We ray publicly offer
such securities from tme to time at prices and terms to be determined at the tme of offering. We also have an
$4 acquisition shell registration statemnent under which we have remaining issuing capacity of approximately
5.6 million shares of our cermon stock in connection with acquisition activities.

During 2002 and 2001, we invested §419 miilion and $425 million, respectively, in propery, equipment,
capitalized software and information technology hardware. These investments werce made to support
business growth, operational and cost efficiencies, service improvements and technology enhancements.

Effective September 30, 2002, we acquired AmeriChoice Corporation (AmeriChoice), a leading
organization engaged in facititating beaith care benefits and services for Mediciid benchiciaries in the
states of New York, New Jersey and Pennsybvania. We are integrating our existing Medicaid business with
AmeriChoice, creating efficiencies from the consolidation of health care provider networks, technology
platforms and operations. We issued 5.3 million shares of our common stock with a fair value of
approximately $480 million in exchange for 93.5% of the outstanding AmeriChoice common stock. We
issucd vested stock options with a fair value of approximately $15 million in exchange for outstanding
stack options held by AmeriChoice empioyees, and we paid cash of approximately $82 millien, mainly 1o
pay off existing AmeriChoice debt. We will acquire the remaining minority interest after five years at avalue
based on a multiple of the earnings of the combined Medicaid business. We have the option to acquire (he
minority interest at an carlier date if specific events occur, such as the termination ot resignation of key
AmeriChoice employees.
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Under our board of directors’ authorization, we maintain 4 common stock repurchase program.
Repurchases may be made from time to time ai prevailing prices, subject to certain restrictions on volume,
pricing and tming. During 2002, we repurchascd 29.% million shares at an aggregate cost of approximately
$1.4 billion. As of December 31, 2002, we bad board of directors’ authorization to purchase up to anp
additional 16.5 million shares of our commen stack,

As a limited part of our share repurchase activities, we had entered into purchase agreements with an
independent third party to purchase shares of our common stock at various times and prices. b May 2602,
the share purchase agreements were werminated, and we elecied o receive shares of our common stock
from the third party as seulement consideration. The favorable settlement amount was not material and
was recorded through additional paid-in capital. We currently have no outstanding purchase agreements
with respect to our common stock. ]

On February 11, 2003, the board of directors approved an ann uai dividend for 2003 of $0.03 per share.
The dividend will be paid on April 17, 2003, to shareholders of record at the close of business on Aprit 1, 2003,

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS
The following table summarizes future obligations duc by period as of December 31, 2002, under our debt
agreements, leasc obligations and other commercial commitments {in millions):

_ 2003 2004 1o 2005 2006 lo 2007 Therealter Tolal
fiebt and Commercial Paper? $ 811 $ 530 $ 400 3 - $1,76)
Operating Leases 109 179 142 190 620
Unconditionzl Purchase Obligations® 40 44 17 - 1031

Total Contractuat Obligations $ Qa0 $ 773 $ 539 $ 1s0 $ 2,482

¥ Debt pavinents could be accelerated wpon vielaton of debt covemnc. We believe the likelinood of a debt covenant vialadon is reniote.
+ Y . P .
= Amaounis repres::r\t FRLEELIETELIM purc!lase comumitments wader eXISLTgE service ARFEEMEC AL,

Currently, we do not have any other material definstive conumitments that require cash resources; however,
we continually evaluate opportunities 1o expand our operations. This inctudes internal development of
new products, programs and technology applications and may inchede acguisitions.

AARP

In Jarwsary 1998, we jnitiated a I0vear contract to provide isirance products and senices to meinbers of AARP.
Under the terms of the contract, we are compensaled for transaction processing and other services as well as for
assuming underwriting risk. We are also engaged in product development activities to complement the
insurance offerings under this progran. Preminm revenues from our portion of the AARP insurance offerings
were approximately $3.7 biltion in 2002, $3.6 billion in 2601 and $3.5 bitlion in 2000.

The underwriting gains or losses refated to the AARY brasiness are recorded as an increase of decrease
to a rate stabilization fund {RSF}, which is reporied in Other Policy Liubilities in the atcompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The company is at risk for underwriting tosses to the extent cum ulative net
losses exceed the balance in the RSGF. We may recover RSF deficits, if any, from gains in future contract
periads. To date, we have not been required to fund any underwriting deficits. We belicve the RSF batance
is sufficient to cover potential future undenwriting or other risks associated with the contracl.

The effects of changes in balance shect amounts associated with the AARP program accrue 1o AARP
policyholders through the RSF balance. Accordingly, we do not include the cffect of such changes in our
Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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REGULATORY CAPITAL AND DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

We conduct a significant portion of our operations through companies that are subject to standards
established by the Natdonal Association of Insurance Commissioners {NAIC). These standards, among other
things, require these subsidiarics to main ain specified jevels of statutory capitat, as defined by each state, and
restrict the timing and amount of dividends and other distributions rhat may be paid to their parent
companics. Generaily, the amount of dividend distributions that may be paid by a reguiated subsidiary,
without prior approval by state regulatory authoritics, is fitnited based on the entity's level of statutory net
income and statutory capital and surptus. The agencies that assess our creditworthiness also consider capital
adequacy levels when establishing our debt ratings. Consistent with our intent to maintain our senior debt
ratings in the "A” range, we maintain an aggregate stautory capitai level for our regulated subsidianies thatis
significantly higher than the minimum level regulators require. As of December 31, 2002, our regulated
subsidizries had aggregate statutory capital of approximately $2.5 hillion, which is significantly more than the
aggregate minimum reguixiory requirements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLSCIES AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting policies are thase policies that require management to razke the most chaltenging,
subjective or complex judgments, often because they must estimate the effects of matters that are
inherently uncertain and may change in sabsequent periods. Critical accounting policies involve
judgments and uncertaintics that aze sufficiently seositive o result in materially dilferent results under
different assumptions and conditions. We believe our mnost critical accounting policies are those
described below. For a dezailed discussion of these and other accounting palicies, see Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

REVENUES

Revenuoes are principally derived from health care insurance premiums. We recognize premium revenues
in the period eligible individuals are entitied to receive health care services. Customess are typicaily bitled
monthly at a ¢onzracted rate per eligible person multiplied by the toial number of people eligibie 1o
receive services, as recorded in onr records. Employer groups generally provide us with changes 1o their
¢ligible population one month in arrears. Fach biiling includes an adjustment lor prior month changes in
eligibility status that were not reflected in our previous hilling. We estimate and adjust the carrent periad’s
reverues and accounts receivable accordingly. Qur estimates are based on historical irends, premitnms
billed, the level of contract renewal activity and other relevant information. We also estimate the amount
of uncolicctible receivables each period and record valuation ailowances based on historical colleclion
rates, the age of unpaid amounts, and information about the creditworthiness of the customers. We revise
estimutes of revenue adjustments and uncollectible accounts recetvabie cach period, and record changes
in the peried they become known.
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MEDICAL COSTS

A substantial portion of our medical costs payable is based on estimates, which include estimates for the
costs of health care services eligible individuals have received under risk-based arrangements but for
which clzims have notyet been submitted, and estimates for the costs of claims we have received but have
not yet processed. We develop medical costs payable estimates using consistently applied actuarial
methods based on historical claim submission and payment data, cost trends, ntilizaton of health care
services, contracted service rates, customer and product mix, and other retevant factors,

Over time, as actual claint costs and more current informaton becotne available, our estimated Hubiliey
for medical costs pavable develops eitlier favarably, with revised payable estimates less than originally
reported medicat costs payable, or unfavorably, with revised payable cstisnates move than originally reported
medical costs payable. We include the impacts of chianges in estimates in the operating results uf the period
in whicl: we identify the changes.

Each period, our operating results include the effects of revisions in eslimates refated 1o all prior
periods, based en actual claims processed and paid. Changes in estimates may relate to the priar Ascal
year of to prior quarteely reporting periads within the same fiscal year. Changes in estimates for prior
quarterly reperting periods within Lhe same fiscal year have no impact on tota} medical costs reported for
that fiscal year. [n contrast, changes in medicat costs payable estimutes for prior fiscal years that are
identified in the current year affect woial medical costs reported for the current fiscal year.

Our medical costs payable estimates as of December 31, 2001, 2006 and 1999 cach developed favorably
in the subsequent fiscal yezar by approximately $70 million, $30 million and $15 miliion, respectively,
representing carnings from operations of 3.2% in 2002, 1.9% in 2081 and 1.5% in 2000, Favorable
development of prior year medical costs payable estimates represented 0.5%,0.2%, and 0.1% of medical
costs in 2002, 2061 and 2000, respectively, and 2.7%, 1.2%, and 0.7% of medical costs payable as of
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Management does not belicve ihe changes in medical
costs payable estimates described above were significant in relation to carnings from opera.t‘mns,
medical costs or medical costs payable. Amouats related to the AARP business were excluded from these
calcutations since the underwriting gains and losses associated with this business are recorded as an
increase or decrease to a rate stabilization fund. For additional information regarding the components
of the change in medical costs payable for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2004, see
Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements.

Our estimate of medical costs payable represents management’s best estimate of the company’s tiability
for unpaid medical costs as of December 31, 2002, developed using consistently applied acruarial methods.
Management believes the amount of medical costs payable is reasonable and adequate to cover the
company's liability for unpaid ctaims as of December 31, 2002; however, actual claim payments may differ
from established estimates. Assuming a hypothetical 1% difference between our December 33, 2002
estimates of medical costs payabie and actual costs payable, excluding the AARP business, 2002 carnings
from operations would increase or decrease by approximately §28 million and basic and diluted net
earnings per common share would increase or decrease by approximately $0.06 per share.
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INVESTMENTS

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $5.2 billion of investments, primacily held in marketable
debt securitics. Our investments are principally classified as avzilable for salc and ace recorded at fair
value. We exclude unrealized investment gains and losses from earnings and report them together as a
separate component in sharcholders” equity. We continually monitor the difference between the cnst and
fair vatue of our investments. If any of our investments experience adeciine in fair value that is determined
to be other than temporary, based on analysis of relevant faciors, we record a realized loss in our
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Management judgment is involved in evaluating whether adecline
i 20 iavestment's fair value is other than temporary. New information and the passage of time can change
these judgments. We revise impairment judgments when new information becomes known, and record
any resulting Impairment charges at that time. We manage ouy investment poritloiio to limit our exposure
to any ong issuer ot industry, and largely limit our investments ta U.S. Governinent and Agency securitics,
state and municipal securiies, and corporate debt obligations that are investment grade.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had long-lived assets, inctuding goodwill, other intangible assets,
and property, equipment and capitalized software, of $4.4 billion and $3.6 billion, respectively. We review
these assets for events and changes in circumstances that would indicate we might not recover thewr
carryiny value, In assessing the recoverability of our long-ived assets, we must make assumpeions regarding
estimated future vsility and cash flows and other internal and external factors to determine the fair value
of (he respective assets. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be
required to record impairment charges [or these assets,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Because of the natare of our businesses, we are routinely involved in various disputes, legal proceedings and
governmental audits and investigations. We record liahilisies for our estimates of the probable costs
resulting from these matters, Our estimates are developed in consultation with outside legal counsel and
are based upon an analysis of potential results, assuming a combination of Litigation and seitlement
strategies and considering our insurance coverages, if any, far sach matters. We do not believe any matters
currently threatened or pending will have 2 material adverse effect on our consolidated Bpancial position
or results of operations. tis possible, however, that future results of operations for any particular quarierly
or annual period coutd he materially affected by changes in our estimates or assumptions.
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INFLATION

The current natonal health care cost inflation rate significanty exceeds the general inflation rate. We use
various strategies to lessen the effects of health care costinflation. This includes setting commercial
preminms based on anticipated health care costs and coordinating care with physicians and other health
care providers, Through contracts with physicians and other health cave providers, we emphasize
preventive hezlth care, appropriate use of health care services consistent with clinical performance
standards, education and closing gaps in care.

We belive our siraegies o mitigate the unpactof health care cost inflation on our operating results
luve been and will continue to be successful. However, other factors including competitive pressures,
new heaith care and pharmaceutical product introductions, demands from physicians and other health
care providers and consumers, major ¢pidemics, and applicable regulations may affect our ability
to control the impact of healih care cost inflation. Because of the narrow aperating margins of cur
risk-based products, changes in medical cost trends that were not anticipated in establishing premium
rates can create significant changes in our financial results.

LEGAL MATTERS

Decause of the nature of our businesses, we are routinely party 1o a varicty of legal actions related 10 the
design, management and offerings of our senvices. We record libilities for our estimates of probable costs
resulting from these matiers. These matters include, but are net limired to: claims relating to heaith care
benefits coverage; medical malpractice actions; contract disputes; and claims relaied to disclosure of certain
business practices. Following the events of September 11, 2001, the cost of business insurance coverage
increased significantly. As a result, we have increased the amnount of risk that we sell-insure, particularly with
respect 1o routine maiters incidenal to our business.

[r: 1999, 2 number of class action lawsuits were tiled against us and virwally all major cntities in the
health benefits business. The suits are purporied class actions on behalf of certain customers and physicians
for alleged breaches of federal statules, including the Employee Refireinent Income Security Actof 1974, as
amended (ERISA), and the Rackereer Influenced Corrupt QOrganization Acl {RICO}.

Although the results of pending litigation are always uncertain, we do not believe the results of any
such actions. currently threatened or pending, inclnding those described above, will, individually ot in
aggregate, have a malterial adverse effect an our consolidated financial position or results of operalions.
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QUANTITATIVE AND GUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial instrument caused by changes in interest
rates and equity prices.

Approximately $6.2 billion of our cash and invesunents at December 31, 2002 was invesied in fixed
income securitics. We manage our invesunent porifolio within risk paramelers approved by vur board of
directors; however, our fixed income secutities are subjeclio the effects of market flucteations in inierest
rates. Assuming a hypothetical and immediate 1% increase or decrease in interest rates applicable 1o our
fixed income portfolio at December 31, 2002, the fair value of our fixed income investments would
decrease or increase by approximately $205 million.

At December 31, 2002, vur UnitedHealts Capital business had approximatety $159 million of equity
investments primarily in various public and nen-public companies concentrated in the areas of heaith
care delivery and refated information technologies. Market conditions that affect the value of health care
or technology stacks will Hkewise impact the value of our cquity porifolio.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RI5K

avestmenlts in financial instruments such as marketable securities and accounts receivable may subjecl
UnitedHealth Group to concentrations of credit risk. Qur investments in marketable securitics are
managed under an investment poiicy anthorized by our board of directors. This policy limits the
amounts that may be invesied in any one issuer and generally limits our investments to U.5.
Goverament and Agency sceurities, state and municipal securities and corporate debt obligations that
are invesunent grade. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable ure limited due
to the large number of employer groups that CONSUINLC OUr Customer hase. As of December 31, 2002,
there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING “FORWARD-LOGKING™ STATEMENTS

The statements contained in Results of Operations and other sections of this annual repert o sharchalders
include foeward-Jooking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 {PSLRA). When used in this repori, the words and phrases “helieves,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “will
filely result,” “estisates,” “projects” and similur expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking
stalements, Any of these forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause the
company's actual results to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-locking statemenis.
Statements that ave not stricdy historicat are “forward-looking” and known asnd urikpown risks may causc
actual reselts and corporate developments to dilfer materially from those expected. FExcepe to the extent
otherwise required by federal securities laws, we do not undertake 10 address or update each statemend in
future Glings or communications regarding our business or results, and do notundertake to address how any
of these factors may have caused resulis to differ from discussions or information contzined in previous lilings
or communications. In addition, any of the matters discussed in this annual report may have affected our past
as well as current forward-ooking statements abont future results, Any or ali forward-locking statements in this
reportand in any other public statements we make may e out o be inaccurate or false. They can be affected
by inaccurate assumptions we might make of by known or unknown risks and uncecainties.

Many factors discussed below will be important in determining future resulls. Cansequently, no
forward-looking statement can be guaranieed. Actual future results may vary materially from those
cxpressed in our prior communications. Factors that could cause resuits and developments to differ
materially from expeciations include, without Limitation, {a) increases in medical costs that are higher
than we anticipated in establishing our premium rates, including increased consumption of or costs o}
medical services: {b} increases in costs associated with increased liugation, legislative activity and
government regulation and review of our industry, inclnding costs associated with compliance with
proposed legistation related to the Patients” Bill of Rights, c-commerce activities and consumer privacy
issues; {¢) heighwened competition as a resuli of new entrants into our market, meggers and acquisitions
of liealth care companies and suppliers, and expansion of physician or practice management companies;
{d) failure to maintain effective and effGicient information systems, which could resutl in the loss of
existing customers, difficulties in attracting new CusLomers, difficultics in determining medical costs
estimates and establishing appropriate pricing, customer 2nd physician and healih care provider
disputes, regulziory violations, increases in operating ¢osts or other adverse consequences; (¢) events
that may negatively aflect our contract with AARE, including any failure on our part to service AARD
customers in an effective manner and any adverse events that directly affect AARP or its business
partners; () medical cost increases or henefit changes associated with out remaining Medicare+Choice
operations; (g) significant deterioration in customer relention; (h) violations of debt covenants or 2
significant downgrade in our debt ratings; (i} our ability to execute contracts on favorabie terms with
physicians, hospitals and other service providers, and {j) significant deterioration in economic conditions,
including the effects of acts of terrorism, particularty biatercorism, or major epidemics. A further hstand
description of these risks, uncertaintics and other matters can be found in our annuat report on Form 10-K
for the vear ended December 31, 2002, and in our periodic reports on Forms 10-Q) and 8K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

¥or \be Year Fnded December 31,

{in millons, excepl per share dai) 2002 2001 2000
REVENUES

Prendums $ 21,906 $ 20,683 3 18926

Services 2,894 2,490 1,964

Investment and Other Income 220 1 232
_Towl Revenues . 25,020 23,454 21,122
MEDICAL AND OPERATING COSTS

Medical Costs 18,192 17,644 16,135

Operating Costs 4,387 3,479 3,520

Depreciadon and Amortization 255 05 M

Total Medical and Qperating Costs . 22,834 21888 0 19922
EARNINGS FROM OPERATIONS 2,186 1,566 1,200

Gain on Disposition of UnitedHealth Capital Investnents - - 27
_Interest Expense (9m {44) {72}
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 2,096 1,472 1,155

Provision for Income Taxes (744) {539} {419)
NET EARNINGS $ 1,352 $ 913 3 736
BASIC NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE $ 446 § 292 5 227
DILUTED MET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE § 425 $ 279 5 219
BASIC WELGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES

CUYSTANDING 3034 312.4 3242
DYHLUTIVE EFFECT OF DUTSTANDING STOCK QPTIONS 14.7 144 12.3
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES QUTSTANDING

ASSUMING DILUTION 318.1 326.8 336.5

Sec notes to consohdated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE

SHEFRTS

As ol Decerber 31,

{in mikians, exeepst shape sod per share data) 2002 2001
ASSEYS
Current Assess
Cash and Cash Equivalents $  L,130 $ 1540
Short-Term Investments 701 270
Accounts Receivable, net of allowances of $132 and $127 B35 8560
Assets Under Management 2,069 1,903
Deferred Income Taxes 3489 316
Other Current Assets B 58 6L
Total Current Assets 5,174 4940
Long-Term lnvestmenis 4,498 3,858
Propeny, Equipment and Capitalized Software, net of accumulated
depreciaton and amortization of $456 and $314 955 847
Goodwil 3,363 2,723
Other luangible Assets, net of accumulated amortization of %31 and 323 122 97
_ Other Assets 52 85
TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,164 § 12,486
LEABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS" EQUMTY
Current Lizbilities
Medical Costs Payable $ 3141 $ 3460
Accounts Payahle and Accrued Liabilities 1,459 1,209
Other Folicy Liabitives 1,781 1.595
Commercial Paper and Current Maturities of Long Term Detst ars 684
Unearaged Premiums 587 543
Total Current Tiabilides 8,379 7,461
Long-Term Bebt, less current maturities 950 980
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Liabilitics 407 204
_ Commitments and Contingercies (Note 12) . ) o
Sharcholders’ Equity
Common Stock, $0.03 par value - 1,580,000,000 shares authorized;

244,458,000 and 308,626,000 shares outstanding 3 3
Addidonal Paid-In Capital 173 39
Retained Earnings 4,104 3,805
Accumuiated (ther Comprehensive Income:

Net Unrealized Gains on Investments, net of tax effects 148 44

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 4478 3,801

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EGUITY § 14,164 $ 12486

See nowes ta consolidated financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Addihongl Nel Unvealized fatal
Common Stack Paid-tn Retained Gaimson  Sherebelders  Comprehensive
{in millinas) Shares Astounl Capilal Carmng Fou:ly intamns
BALANCE AT OECEMBER 31, 1999 335 ¢ 85 $ 950 $3445 % 165 $ 35863
Tssuances of Common Stock,
and related tax benehio 13 - 349 - - 349
Common Stock Repurchases {31} - {599 (581) - {1,130
Comprehensive Tncome
Net Harnings - - - 736 736 3 736
Other Comprehensve lncome Adjustments
Change in Net Unrealized Gains
on Tnvestments, et of tax effects - - - - {73} {73y ___{73)
Comprehensive Income $_661
Common Stock Dividend - — - (3) — {0} o
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 517 3 - 3,595 a0 3,688
Issuances of Common Stock,
and related tax benefits 11 - 474 - - 474
Common Stock Repurchases {19) - (433 {694) - {1,129
Comprehensive Income
Net Earnings - - - 313 - 913§ 913
Other Comprehensive Income Adjustments
Change in Net Unrealized Gains
on Investments, net of tax effects - - - - (46) {46) 4
Comprehcnsive Income $ 867
Common Stock Dividend - o - & - {9 -
BALANCE AT BECEMBER 31, 2001 309 3 39 5,805 44 3,891
Issuances of Commaon Stock,
and related tax benefis 12 - 905 - - 905
Common Swock Repurchases (22) - (i) (1,048) - (1,815}
Comprehensive Income
Net Earnings - - - 1,352 - 1,352 $1,352
Other Comprehensive Tncome Adjastinents
Change in Net Unrealized Gaias
on Investmerts, net of tax effects - - - - 104 104 il
Comprehensive Income $ 1,456
Common Stock Dividend . - - - {9} - &
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 299 $ 3 $ 173 $£4,104 $ 148  §$4,428
Ser notes 1o cnnsolidated linancial satements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For Ow Year Ended Necember 3,

{n millicns) . 2002 2001 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Farnings $ 1352 $ W3 $ 7
Noncash Trems
Depreciation and Amortizztion 255 265 247
Deterred Income Taxes and Other 154 40 73
Net Change in Otier Operating ltems, net of effects
froms acquisitions, sales of subsidianies and changes
in AARE balances
Accounts Receivable and Other Current Asseis a3 ¥ 26
Medical Costs Pavable 74 156 288
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liahilines 423 280 7h
Other Policy Liabilities 70 131 87
Unearned Premiuins ) 12 52 {11}
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2423 1,844 1,521
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Paid for Acquisitions, nel of cash assumed and other elfecis (302} {42} {76)
Purchases of Property, Equipment and Capitalized Software {113} (425} (245)
Purchases of [nvestruents (3,246) {2,088) {3,022
Maturities and Sales of Investments _ 2,576 1,467 2,375
CASH FLOWS USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES {1,391} {1,138} {968)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds frem Common Stock Issuances 205 178 228
Proceeds from (Payments of} Commercial Paper, ret (223) 275 {182)
Proceeds from lssuance of Long-Term Debt 400 250 400
Payments for Retirement of Long-Term Debt - (1507 -
Common Stock Repurchases {1,815 (1,129} {1.180)
Dividends Paid . ) {9} N s
_ . CASH FLOWS USED FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES ) (1,442} (585 {739)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (410 121 {L86)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,544 1.419 1,605
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 1,130 § 154D $ 1418
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NOMHCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Gornman Stock Issued for Acquisitions $ 567 $ 163 $ -

See notes to consolidated Nnancial satenents.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Unitedjeatth Group Incorporated {atso referred to as "Unitedilealth Group,™ “the company,” “we,”
fps” anel “owr”} is 8 national leader in forming and operating orderly, efficient maurkets for the exchaage
of Tigh quality health and well-being seevices. Theougls steategically aligned, marketdefined businesses,
we offer health care access, benefits and related adminisirative, technology and iiformation services

designed to enable, tacilitate and advance optimal health care.
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES

BASES OF PRESENTATION

We have prepured the conselidued financial statements aceording Lo accountinyg principles generally
accepied in the United Stnes of America and have inchided the accounts of UnitedIealth Group and it
subsidiuries. We have elivninated all significant intercompany balanees und wansactions.

USE OF ESTIMATES

These consalidated financial staicments include certain amouats that are based on our hHest estirmates
and judgments. These estimates require us Lo apply complex assumptions and judgments, often becawse
we must make estmates about the effects of matters thai are inhereaty uncertain and will change tn
subsequent pericds. The most sigiificant estimates relate w medical costs, medical costs pavable,
revenues, contingent labilides and asset valuations, allowances and impairments. We adjust these
estimates each period, as more carvent information becomes available. The impact of any changes in

estimates is included in the determination of carnings in the period in which the estimate is adjusted.

REVEMUES

Premium revenues are derived from risk-based arrangements i which the premium s fixed, typieally foc a
ane-year period, wnd we assume the economic risk of funding health cace services and related adimin istranive
costs, We recognize premium revenues in the period in which eligible individuals are entitled to receive
health care services. We record premium payments we receive fronu our Cuslomers prior 1o such period as
unearned premiuns,

Service revenues ate primarily devived from services performed for customers that selfdusure the
medicat cosis of their employees and thew dependents. Under service fec contracts, we recognize revenut
in the period the related serviees are performed based wpou the fee charged o the customer. The
castomers retain (he visk of (inancing medical benefus for their employees and their employees’
dependents, and we administer the payment of customuer funds to physicians and other health care
providers from castomer-funded bank accounts. Because we do not have the obhgation for funding the
medical expenses, nor do we have responsilility for delivering the medical care, we de Ot recogmze gross
revenue and medical costs for these contracts in our consolidated {inancial statements.

MEDICAL COSTS AND MEDICAL COSTS PAYABLE

Medical costs inclade elaims paid, clains processed butnot yet pad, cstimates tor claims received but not
yet processerd, and estinzates for the costs of health care services eligible individuats have received wnder
risk-hased arrangemnents, b for which claims have notyet heen submitied.

We develop our estimates of medical costs prayable using actuarial methods based upon historical
clairn submisston and pavient data, cost trends, utilization of health care services, contracted service
rates, customer and prodnct mix, and other relevant factors. The estimates may change as acluarial
methods change or as uaderlying historical data upon which estimates are based are revised with more
currenl information, We did not change acwariad methods during 2002, 2061 and 2660.
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We reflect adjustments 1 medical costs payable estmates in the operating results of the peried in
witich welentfy the changes in estinates, Each period, our operaling residts rellect revisions i estimales
related 16 all prior periods, based on actual caims processed and paid. Management believes the amount
of medical costs pavable s reasonable and adequate (o cover the company’s Tiability for nnpaid clsims as of
December %1, 2002; however, actual claim payments may differ from established estimates.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND iNVESTMENTS

Cash and cash cquivatents are highly fiquid investmenis with an originad maturity of three months or less.
Tlie Lair valne of cash and cash equivalents approximates their carrving vatue because of the short
matnrity of the iostruntenis, investments with a matity of fess than one yearare classilied as shovt-tesmn.
We nuy scll investments classilied as long-term before their maturity to fund working capital or for other
purposes. Because of regulatory requirements, ceridin tnvestments are included in long-term invest-
mens regardless of their maturity date. We classify these investments as teld o marurziy and report them
at amortized cost. Al other investments are <lassified as avaitable for sale and reported at fair value based
on quoted market prices.

We exclude unreatized gains and losses on investments availabie tor sale from ca mings and report it as a
separaie component of sharcholders” equity, net of income 1ax effects. We continially monitar the ditference
between the cost and estiroated fair valne of our invesiments, I any of our investments experiences a decline
in value that is determined (o be other than temporary, based on analysis of relevant [actors, we recorda
realized Joss in Investment and Other Income in our Consolidated Starement of Operations. To caleulate
vealived gains and losses on the sale of investments, we use the specific cost of each investret soldl.

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

We administer certain aspects of AARP's insurance program {sce Note 4). Pusuani wo our agrecment,
AARP assets are managed separately from our general investnent portdolio and are used Lo pay costs
associuted with the AARP program. These assews are invested at our discretion, within invesunent guidelines
approved by AARP. AL Deeember 31, 2009, the assets were invested in marketable debi securities. We clu not
arantee iy rales of invesirnent return on these investments and, upon transfer of the AARDP contrait Lo
aneilicr entity, we would transter cash equal in amount o the faiy value of these investmers at the date of
ransler to thut entits. Because the purpose of these assets is to fund the medica costs frayable, the vate stabi-
lizatien [und lizbilities and other celated labilities associaled witi the AARP contract, assets under
HARAZEINCnL are classified as current assel, consisient with the classification of these {1abilities. Lieperest
earnings ansd realized invesunent gains and kosses on these asseis accruc w AARP policyholders through the
rate stabilization Fund. As such, they are not included in our carniags. Interest income and realized gains
and losses related 0 assets under management are recorded as an increase to the AARE raie stabilization
Fund and were $102 million and $113 willion in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Asscts under management are
reported at their fair market value, and unreatized gains and losses wre included direcdy in the vate stabilization
fund associated with the AARD program. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the AARP investment portiolio
and rate sabiization fund included net unrealized gains of $117 million and 856 million, respectively.

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE

Property, cquipinentand capitalized software is stated at cost, net ol accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Capitalized sefware consists of certain costs incusred in the development ol internal-use
software, including external direct costs of materials and services and payroll costs of employees devoled
1o specific software developinent.
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We caicutate depreciasion and amortization using the straightline methiod over the estimated uselul
lives ol the assets. The useful lives for property, cquipmeni and capitalized software are: from threc o
seven vears for furniture, fixtures and equipment fcom 35 1o 40 years for buildings; the shorter of the
nsefnd life or ramaining lease tepm for leaschold improvernents; and from three w nine years for
capitatized software. The weighted-average usefud Nife of property, equipmentand capitalized software at
December 31, 2002, was approgimately five years.

Thie net boak value of property and equipment was 3440 million and $121 million as of December 31, 20002
and 2001, respectvely. The net book valise of capitalized sofuware was 3465 million and $420 milhon as of
Decernber 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the amonnt by which the purchase price and transaction casts ol husinesses we
have acquired exceed the esimated fair value of the net tangible assets and sepacately identiftable
intangible assets of these businesses. We adopted FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other intangible Assets,”
on January 1, 2002 Under FAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives ure not
amoutized, but are tested at icast annually for impatrment, Intangible assets with diserete useful lives are

amartized on a straight-line basis over their estiinated wsein Hves.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We review long-fived assets, including property, equipment, capitalized software and intangible assews, for
events or changes i civeumstances that would indicate we might not reeover their carrying value, We
consider many factars, including estimated future utility and cash flows associaied with the assels, (o
make this decision. An impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the asset carrying value
execeds the estimated fair value, We record assets held for sale at the lower of their carrying amount, or
fair value, less any costs for the final settiement.

OTHER POLICY [IABILITIES

Ciher policy liabilities include the rate stabitization fued associated with the AARP program (see Note 1)
and enstomer balances related ro experience-rated insurance products. Costomer balinces represeat
excess customer payments and deposit accounts under experience-rated coniracis, At the customer's

option, these balances may be refunded or used Lo pay fnlure premiums or claims uneder eligible cantracts.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income tax assets and Habilides ave recognized for the differences between the financial and
income tax reporting bases of assels and Habiles hased on enacted tax rates and laws. The deferred
incenne lax provision or henefit generally reflects the net change in deferred income tax asscis and
liabitities during the year, excluding any deferved income tax assews and labilives of acquired
businesses. The current income tax provision reflects the tax consequences of revenues and expenses
currently taxable or deductible on various income tax retnrus for the year reported.

CUSTOMER ACQUISITION COSTS

Costs related to the acquisition and renewal of custotmer contracts, inciuding sales commissions,
enrollinent materials and cusiomer set-up costs, are charged to expense as incurred. e insurance
contracts typically have a oneyeur term and may be cancelled upon 30 days natice by cither the company
ot the customer.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
We account for activity under our stock-hased employee compensation plans ander the recognition and
measurement principles of APB (Accounung Piinciples Board) Opinion No. 25, *Accounung ior Stock
fssued to Employees” Accordingly, we do not recognrize compensation expense in conpection with
emplovee siock oplion granis because we grant stock options at exercise prices not kess than the fair
valire of our common stock on the date of grant.

‘The following table shows the effect on net earnings and earnings per share had we applied the fair
value expense recognition provisions of FAS No. 123, “Acconnting for Swck-Based Compensation,” w
awck-based employee compensariun,

For the Year Ended Dacerober 31,

tin millinns, rveept per shaw data! e e el 2082 EMOL 0 00B
NET £ARNINGS

As Reporned $ 1,352 $ 13 3 736
_ Compensation Expense, net of tax effect L {101y . g2y (76

Pro Farma $ L2 % 831 % Hi6{)
BASIC HET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

As Reponed $ 446 $ 292 $§ 9w

Ura Forma $  4.12 § 986 & v
DILUTED NET EARNINGS PER COMMOMN SHARE

As Reported $ 425 $ 2% $ 21

Pro Furma $ 393 $ 2.4 5 LY
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE FAIR VALUE PER SHARE OF

OPTIONS GRANTED $ 28 g v5 $ 14

Information on our stock-based compensation plans and dataused 1o calculate compensation expense in
the table above are described in more detail in Note 4.

NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARFE

We compute basic neL earnings per common share by dividing net earnings by the weighed-average
number of common shares cutstanding during the perind. We determine dilated net earnings per
commen share psing the weighted-average number of common shaves outstanding during the pericd,
adjusted for porentially diluiive shares thae mighit be issued upon excrcise of common stock options.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As part of vur Cisk management Srategy, we ¢nier into MIerest Gile SWap AEreenents Lo manage onr
exposure [0 interest rate risk. The differental beiween fixed and varizble rates to he paid or received
is accrued and recognized over the Nfe of the agreements as an adjusunent (o interest expensc in the
Consolidated Statemenrs of QOperations. Qur existing IN1erest rate swap 3greements convert a pertiaon
ol our interest raie exposure from a fixed to a variable rate and are accounned for as fair value hedges.

Additional information on our existing interest rate swap agrecments is included in Note 8

RECENTLY {SS5UED ACCGUNTING STANDARDS

On January 1, 2003, we adopted FAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Revrement Obligations” which
addresses nancial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of angible
tong-lived assets and the associated retivement cosis. ks adoption did not have a material impact on our
consohidated Anancial position or results of operations.
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 methods [or companies that make a voluntarcy

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Siandards Board {(FASE)Y issned FAS No. 146, "Accounting for
Costs Associated with Lxit ar Disposal Activities.” FAS No. 146 requires companics to recogiize 2 Eability
for costs associated with exit or disposal sctivities when they are incwrred. rather than at the date ol a
commitment to an exit or disposal plan. FAS No, 146 is elfective for exit ov disposal activities initiated
after December 31, 2002, The adoption of tiis statement on Janary 1, 2003 did not have a matgrial
impact on oue consolidated financial pesition o results of aperations,

In December 2002, the FASD issued FAS Neo. LI, “Accounting fur Stock-Bascd Compensation - Transiton
and Disclosure — an amendment of FASH Statement No. 123, FAS No. 148 provides alternative transition

‘hange 16 the faievalue-based methad of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation. In addition, FAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requurements of FAS No. 128
tor reepaire diselosures in both anneal and interin financial stateraents about the methad of sccomiting for
stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We have adopted
the disclosare provisions of FAS No. 148 in these consolidated financial starements, and s adoption had no
impact on our comolidated financial position or results of operations.

REGLASSIFICATIONS

Certain 2006 and 2001 ariounis in the consolidated financial siatements have been reclassilied 10 contorm
1o the 2002 presentaton. These reclassificalions have no effect on net carnings or sharchoklers” equity as
previously reported.

3 ACQUISITIONS

Effcctive Seprember 30, 2002, we acquired AmeriChoice Corporation {AmeriChoice), a leading organiztion
engaged in Lacilitating bealth care benefits ail services for Medicaid beneficiarios in the stares of New Youk,
Nesw Jersey and Pennsylvania, We are integrating our existing Medicaid husiness with AmeriChaoice within the
Health Care Scrvices reporting segment, creating efficiencies from the consolidation of health care pravider
netwaiks, technolopy platforms and operations. We issued 5.3 million shares of our common sterck withs 4 fair
vulne of approximately $430 million in exchange for 93.3% of the oustanding AmenChoice commun stock. Yo
also isued vested stock options with a fairvalue of approximately $13 million in exchange for aulstanding stock
options held by AmetiChoice emplogees and pald cash of approxinately $82 niillion. mabily to pay off existing
AmenChoice debt. The purchase price and costs wsociated with the acquisition of approximiely $577 million
exceeded the preliminary estimated Fair value of the net tangible assets acquired by approxivately 3548 million.
This has bren assigned to goodwill in the amount of $472 million, and finite-lived inmngible assews, primarity
custamer contracts, in the amount of $56 million. The weighted-average useful life of the finitedived intangible
assets is estimated 1o by approximagely 11 years. We will acquire the remaining minoriy interest afler five yoars at
avalue based on amultiple of the carnings of the combined Medicaid business. We have the opuon o acquire the
minority interest atan carlicr date if specific events occur, such as the teroination or resignation ol key
AmeriChoice employees. The results of aperations for AmeriChoice since the acquisition date have heen
inciuded in our Gonsolidated Statements of Operations. The pro fooma ¢fitcts of the AmeriChoice aequisition
on our consclidated Anancial statements were not matenial,

Qur preliminary estimate of the f2ir value of the Langible assets/(liabilities) as of the acquisition date is
as follows:

tin millionsd

Cash and Cash Equivalenrs & 34
Accounts Receivalde and Other Gareent Assets 3K
Long-Term Investments 151
Propeny, Equipment and Capitalized Softvare 2
Medtical Costs Payable (129
Other Curvent Lisbitiies 8
_NetTangible Asses dcquired. R
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[n Ociober 2001, our Specialized Care Senvices business segment acquired Spectera, Toc. {(Spectera), a
leading vision carc benefits company in the Unired States. 10 expand the hreadih of service offerings we
exrend to our cusiomers, We paid 337 million in casly, and issued 1.5 mitlion shares ol common stock with a
fair value of S1O6 million o exchange for all ouistanding shares of Speciera. The purchase price and related
acquisition costs ol approximately $14G million excecded the estimuted fair value of norassers acquired by
$126 million. Undey the porebase metbod of accouniing, we assigned this amount to poodwill, The resulis
of operations for Spectera sinee the ucquisition date are included in our Cousolidated Suwements of
Operativns. The pro forma cffecrs of the Speotera acqrisition an our consolidared financial statements
were oy matei il

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 200 and 2000, aggregate consideration paid or issued for
smaller acquisiiions acconnted for noder the prrchase method was $267 million. $134 million and

$76 million, respectively. These acquisiions Were ot fterial to our consolidated {mumcial siatements.

4 AARP

In January 1998, we indtiated 3 18yeay contract to provide insurance producis and services 1o members of
AARE Under the werms of the contract, we ave compensated for wansaction processing and other seevices
as well as for assuming underwriting risk. We are also engaged in product development activities o
complement the insurance offerings undar this program. Premibum reveuuces from sur portion of the AARP
insurance offerings were approximately $2.7 Lillion in 2602, $3.6 billion in 2001 and 32,5 bitlion in 2000

The underwriting gains or losses related 1o the AARP business are directly recorded as an increass or
decrease to a rate stahilization fund {RSE). The primary components of the underweiting results are
premvium revenue, medical cosis, nvestment income, adminisirative expenses, Member service expenses,
markeiing expenses and premium taxes. Underwriting gains and losses are recorded as an Increase of
decrease to tie RSF and acerue to AARP policvholders, unfess cumulative net losses were Lo exceead the
batance it the RSF To the extent underwriting losses exceed the balance in she RSEF, we would have 1o fuadd
the deficit. Any deficit we fund coubd be recovered by underwriting gaing in future periods of the contract,
To dute, we have not heen required o fund any vndecwriting deficies. The RSF balance is reported in (iher
Prlicy Liabititics in the accompanying Consotidated Balance Sheets. We helieve the RSF balance is suflicient
o cover potential futare underwriting or othier risks associated with the contra.

The tollowing AARP program-related assets and liabilides we included in our Consolidated Balauce
Sheew:

Balanue as of December 31,

tin millinngi A 2002 20':}}_

Atsets Under Management § 2,045 $ 1,882
Accounts Receivable $ 294 3 281
Medical Costs Payable $ 893 $  BGT
Other Policy Liabilities $ 1,209 $ 1,180
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 147 § U6,

The effects of changes in balance sheet wmounts associated with the AARP progrant acerue o AARP
poiicyhislders through the RSF balance. Accocdingly, swe do not inchude the etfect of such changes in cuy
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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S CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

As of December 31, the amortized cost, gross unrcalized gains and losses, and fair value of cash, cash
cquivalents and investinents wore as follows {in miliinns):

Amortized Grets Unrealized ot Lhraatiaed Far
w002 - e bwst o Gmes o lesss o Wewe
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,130 $ - $ - $ 1,136
Debt Securities — Available for Sale 4,742 238 {8) 4,972
Equtity Securities — Available for Sale 150 & {5 150
Debt Securities — HeidtoMatarity 77 - = . T
__. Jotal Cash and Investments ___ $ 6,099 L% 2e3 8 (A% 36829
2001 e e e
Cash andl Cash Eguivalents g 1,540 $ - 3 - 5 1,540
Debt Scouritics — Available [or Sale 3,866 121 {941 3907
Equity Securitics — Available for Sale 201 HE (43 17
Deht Securities = Heldd 1 Matunigy ) B) - L _Bu
" Tou Cesh and Tnyesunents Bo62 5 1T 5 66§56

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, debt securinies consisted of $1.439 million and
$1.073 million in U.S. Government and Agency obligations, $2,475 million and 31,684 millian in staie
and municipal obligations, and $1,135 miilion and $1.230 millien in corporate obligations. AL
December 31, 2002, we held $677 million in debt securities with maturities of less than one year,
$1,442 onllion in debt sccurities mainring in one 1o five years, and £2.930 mitlian in debt securitios with
maturities of more than five years.

During 2001 and 2006, respectively, we contributed UnitedHcalth Capital invesiments vilued at
approximately 322 mitlien and $32 million 1o the United Health Faundation, 2 nou-consolidated,
aotforprofit organization. The realized gains of approximately $18 million in 2001 and $51 million in
2000 were offset by related copcibution expenses of 822 million in 2001 and 532 mallion in 2000, The net
expenses of $4 milbon in 2001 and $1 million in 2000 arc included in Investment and Other Income in
the accompanving Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In a sepurate disposition of Unitedtlealth Capital investments during 2000, we realized a gain
ol $27 milion.

We recorded realized gains and losses on sales of invesinents, exclnding the tUnitedHealth Capial

dispositions described above, as follows:
For the Year Frded Doecember 31,

Gnmilensy . W02 W@ 2000

Gross Realized Gains $ 57 % 30 3 12

GrossRealizedLosses .. ... . (% (% U6

__Net Realized Gains (Losses) o3 (18 & il % (34)
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6 GOODWILL AND DTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We adopted FAS No. 142, “*Goodwill and Other Tntangible Assets,” on fanaary 1, 2002 Under FAS No. 142,
goadwill and intangible asseis with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. The following able shows
net caenings and earnings per common share adjusted o reflect the adopiion of the
ponamortization provision of FAS No. 142 as of the beginning of the respective periods:

Foi the Year fodod Ueenmber 2,

i millions, exceptper share dag, e 2000
NET EARNINGS
Repaned Net Earnings $ 1,352 5 9i3 5 73
Goodwill Amenization, pegolwxeifeas - LB B
Adjusied Net Carnings $ 1,352 § 1002 $ B2
BASIC NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Reporied Basic Not Earnings per Share $ 446 I §
Goodwill Amortization, net of tax elfects . - 629 025
Adjusted Basic Net Earnings per Share $ 446 $ 3% $ 253
DILUTED NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Reported Diluted Net Earnings per Share $ 4.2 & 9.7 & 214
_ Goodwill Amortization, necof ax ellecs L - 0.28 L 42s
Adjusted Dilined Nel Earnings per Shure $ 425 $ 547 & 244

Changes in the careving amount of goodwill, by nperating segmnent, during the yeu ended December 51,
DD, were as follinws:

Huailhy Cara Seecraleg Carssiidated
tinmilbons e memes e CaSeeatss o Ggena o B8
Balance at January 1, 2602 $ 1,166 3 698 § v $ 537 5 2,723
Acquisidons and Sabsequent Pavinents 27 - 11 75 643
Dispositions —— T SR .2 AU )
Balance at December 31,2002 _ $. 698 5 363§ 609§ 3363

The weighted-average uwseful e, gross carrying value, accumulated agortization and ney carrving value
of other intingible ussets as of December 31, 2008 and 2001 were as follows:

wogntet . December3L 2007
Averapy fross Car

g Accumulaied Geess Carnping  ACC

Lo shillions: . e o Msefurile | voor | Aeeteden | _ Y A
Customer Contracts and
Membership Lise Ttyears % 64 $ (H $ 63 5 - 3 - 8 -
Patents, Trademarks
and Technology 10 veury 58 (24} 34 28 {19) g

Non-compeic Agresments

. and Other I3 WU (0 NN - SN - S ¢ ) S L

B

JTowd

Amortiztion expense relating to other inangible assets was $9 million in 2002, Estirpared futare amortization

expense relating 16 other intangible ussets for the years ending December 31 are us follows:

Gnoliony 2003 2004 L 2uns L' N 2007
s v o8 e 8 oM 8 2 8 12
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7 MEDICAL COSTS PAYABLE
The [ollowing tble shows the components of the change in medical costs payable for the years ended
Decermber 31, excluding amounts relared to the AARP business.

Far e Yewr Endded Decemiber 30,

Vawillions) Ll o e 2002 2001 .20
MEDICAL COSTS PAYABLE, BEGINNING OF PERICOD $ 2,593 £ 24l 5 2024
ACQUISITIONS’ 180 17 -
REPORTED MEBICAL COSTS
Cnrrent Year 14,860 14,367 12996
_PriorYears e (70) UL .| S £ X1 ]
Total Reporied Medi 14,790 14387 12,981
CLAIM PAYMENTS
Pavments for Current Year (12,435} {11,933 {10710
Payients for Prior Years . . . (2,280) . £2,234) {1,983}
Towl Claim Payments (14,715) (14,172) (12,604
MEDICAL COSTS PAYABLE, END OF PERIOD § 2848 0% 92398 0§ ¢d4ll

i Repréetents the nredical coasts gpable balanee as of the applicable acqubsition date Subseruent changes i esdagtes related o
acquired misrbeeal cosis payable are recorded as adjustivents 1 Goedwill.

Amounis relating to the AARP bosiness have heen excluded since the nnderwriting gains ot josses related
tes this contraet are recorded as an increase or decroase w a rate stabilization fund, which is more fully
described o Note 4. Medical costs payable balances relating to the AARP business were 3893 millon,
$867 million, $&55 million and $7%1 miilion as of December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respeciively.
Medical costs refating to the AARP business were $3,402 aiillion, 83,307 million and $3.174 million for
the vears ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, vespectively.
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8 COMMERCIAL PAPER AND DEBT

Commercial paper aud debt consisted of the tollowing us of December 31 Gn milliens):

— L RO02 — 205t
Carrpeeg far Camying Fair

Goemilions) o e M vae .. JMee . awe
Commercia) Paper $ 461 $ 461 $ 684 $ 684
Floatinp-Rate Notes

chue Novennber 2003 100 108 106 1638}
6.5% Senior Unsecured Notes

due Necermber 2005 250 260 250 266
Floating-Raie Notes

due November 2004 150 1503 {5} 154}
7.5% Seruor Unsecured Notes

due November 2005 400 450 EL] 433
5.94% Senior Unsecured Notes
Cdug fanuary 2007 .40 43— =
Total Commercial Paper and Debt 1,761 1,844 1.584 1,653
{.ess Current Maturites sy @y (B84 {684)
Long Term Debt, less currgne matwrives ___ § 950§ 1,023 $ _omw 5 919

As ol December 31, 2002, our mustanding commercial paper had interest rates ranging from 1.4% 10 1.5%.
The intcrest cates on the flloating-rate notes are reset quartevly o the three-month LIBOR plus 0.3% for the
notes dee Nevember 2008 and 1o the three-month LIBOR plus 0.6% for the notes due November 2004, As
of Trecember 31, 2002, the applicable rates on the notes were 1.7% and 2.0%, respectively.

In Jamwary 2002, we fssued 5460 million of 3.2% fxed-rate notes doe January F007. We used proceerds
from this borrowing Lo repay conunereial paper and for general corporaie purposcs inchoding working
capital, capital expendiires, business acquisitions and share repurchases. When we tssued these notes,
we entered inte interest rale swap agreements that qualify as fair valuc hedges to converta portion uf our
interest re exposnre from a fixed to avariable rate. The interess rate swap agreements have an aggregate
notional amount of $200 million matnring January 2007, The variable raies approximate the six-month
LIBOR aned are reset on a semiannnal basls incarvears, A1 Decemnber 31, 2002, the rate used o acerue
interesl expense on these swaps was approximatcly L4%.

We have credit arrangements for $806 million that suppert our commercial paper program. These
credit arrangements include a $450 million revolving Facili that expires in July 2005, aud a $450 million,
404-day facility ihat expires in July 2003 We also have the capacity to issuc appraximately S204 aiillion of
exiendibie commercial nowes (ECNs). As of December 31, 2409 and 2001, we hizd no amounts oustending
nnder our credit lacilities or FONs.

Our debt agreements and credit facilitios contain various covenanls, the most restrictive of which
require (s Lo mainiain a deht-to totalcapital ratio below 45% and to exceed specificd mininum inierest
coverage levels. We are in compliance with the requirements of all debl covenants,

Marurities of commercial paper and debt for the years ending December 31 are as [pllows:

s il

LV 2008 . > T - N 1 4

I TR Y R T L

$ - 8 40

We marde cash payments for interest of $86 million, §91 mitlian and $68 millien in 2002, 2601 and
20, respectively.
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9 SHAREHQLDERS' EGUITY

REGULATORY CAPITAL AND DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

W conduct a significant portion of cur operations through companies that are subject to standards estab-
lishied by the National Associaton of lnsurance Conmissioners (NATC), These standards, amnong other (hings,
require these subsidiaties w maintain specified levels ol statntony capital, as defined by cach state, aned restriet
the timing and amount of dividends and other distribelions that may be paid 1o thelr pacent companics.
Generally, the amount of dividend distributions that may be paid by a reguiated subsidiny, without prior
approval by state regulaiony awthoritios. is imited based on the entity's level of statuiony nct tneome arnc
staruory capital and surplus, AL Drecembor 31, 2002, nppruxinmtcly $280 milhon of our $6.3 billion ol cash
ane ineestments was beld by non-regolated subsidiaries. Of this amount, approsimately 3136 milhon was
axaifable for general corporate use, including acquisitions and share repurchases. The remaining 5150 mithon
consists primagily ol public and non-public equity securites held by Unitedilealih Capital, oor investment
capital business.

Tlie agencies that assess our credinvorthiness also consider capital adequuey fevels when cstablishing
our delit ratings. Consistent with our intent o maintain our senjor debt ratings in the “A” range, we
wraintain an aggregate sk ory capital and surplus leve! for our regulated subsidiaries that ks significantly
Ligher than the minimum fevel regulators require. As of December g1, 2002, our regulated subsidiarics
had aggregale statutory capiul and surplus of approxinately $2.5 billion, which is signilicantly more than
the aggregate minimumn regubitony requirements.

STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

Under nur hoard of directors’ anthorization, we mainiaio a common stock repurchase program.
Repurehases may he made from tme o tiase at prevailing prices, subjectto restrictions on velume, pricing
and timing. During 2002, we repurchased 2% % million shares for an aggregate of $1.8 billion. As of
Decerber 51, 2002, we had board of directors” authorization 1o purchase up Lo an additional 16.5 million
shares of our common stoek.

As a hmnited part of our share repurchase activities, we had entered inw purchase agreements with an
intfependent third party w prrchase Shares of our commen stock at varions tmes and prices. In May 2002,
the share purehase agrecmonts were termminated, and we elected o receive shaves of our commaon stock
frous the third party as settiement consideration, The favorable seidement amount was nol miaterial and
was recorded through addidonal paid-in capital. We corrently hase no custapding purchase agreements
with regpeet o our common stock.

PREFERRED STOCK
At December 81, 2002, we had 10 militon shares of $0.001 par vajue preferrer stock anthorized for
issuanee, and no preferred shares issued and oulslanding.
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10 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Daring 2002, our sharcholders voled 1o consolidite our three primary stock-bused compensation plans nto
enie new plan. As of December 31, 2002, 29.0 miilion shares vemained available wnder that plan for future
grants of sinck-basecd awards including, but not imited 1o, Incentive or nov-gqualified stock oplions, siock
appreciztion rights and resiricted siock. No shares are avatlable lTor granis from our other plans.

Stock uptions are granted aLan exercise price noi less than the fair value of our common stock on the
date of grant. They generalty vest ratably over fout years and may be exercised up w 10 yeurs from the dawe of
grant. Activity under our stock plans is sumemarized in the able below (shares in thousands):

002 . o2 o .. 20
i foretage Wi

. e Shwe | EmrumgProe Shares _ DrerpsePrics - Shaes  Ex ey
Ounstanding a Beginning of Yea 38337 § 29 38,810 $ 22 44,080 3 ™
Granted 12517 § 75 8139 $ 58 8516 & 30
Assumed in Acguisnigons 457 § 60 194 & 19 $ -
Exevecised {6,614) & 27 Gy 5 20 (12331) $ 17
Forfeited . . {1,496y § 40 (1,080) S_?é ] (1,455) $ 0
Ouswwdingw EndofVeas 43,201 § 42 3837 S %  388i0  §
!":m‘_:_rrisab]t_a_t _E_rﬁln_f Year 20,696 § 2 14,585 & 2 17367 3 @0
As of December 31, 2062 o Dghens Qrstanoing .. _Gpuans Exerceable
Vepnies-Average
Nembar Remanng Waighled-Avrage Humt s Vi gntad-Average
Rarge of Exercise Prces e Dutstanoeg Gption Term {years) Exercing Price _ Bracisable  Ereroise Poce
$0-%20 4,358 45 $ 4214 18
$21- 840 19,597 6.3 § 4 14,724 3
$4) - $70 13,433 85 $ ol 1,631 54
718100 __ e DM a6 $ 8 1w S
$0 800 o .. _ 8@ 73 S > . I 2

To derermine compensation expense under the fair valoe method, the {air valoe of cach option grant is

estimated on the date of grant nsing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The principal assuImplons we

userd in applving te Black-Scholes model were as follows:

- e — o 2002 AW L e
Risk-Free Imierest Rate 25% %75 5.0%

Expeed Voladlity 40.2% 459% 4404,

Expected Dividend Yield 6.1% 0.1% 01%

Expected Lile in Years 4.5 . A8 4D

Information regarding the effect on ner eaenings apd net earnings per common share bad we applicd the
£31 valne expensc recognition provisions of FAS No. 1233 included in Notwe 2.

Fffective Augnist 1, 2002, our employee stock ownership plan was merged into our existing 401(k) plan. Wealso
maintain an emplovee stock purchase plas. Activity related to these plans was notsignilicant in relaton 1o onr
comsolidated Mnancial resulis in 2602, 2007 and 2000,
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11 INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes are as faliows:

Ve Loaded Becember 31, il — .22 oSl 2000
Currenl Provision
Fedeval 3330
Stare arel Local _ . ~ . 3R
Fenal Curreni Provision 368
Deferred Provision { (Benelity _ L B
Totad Provision Tur Tncome Faxe $ ‘i}‘?

The reconciiiation of the tax provision acihe U5, Federal Statutnry Rate 1o the provision for income
taxes is as follows:

Yeur Ealedd December 3, (o eallions, o L.._20ha2 . ROl 200G

Tax Provision at die 1.5, Federal Slamwrs R.au 3 T $§ 515 ‘E 404

Sare Income Taxes. net of federal henelit 33 29 24

Tax-Exerpt Investment Income (26) {21 {17}

Non<deductbie Amortization - bt 27

Charitable Conwibutions - - (18

Other,net oo 8 B
TProvson fop loome axes T 778 Me g% M9

"The componens of deferred income tax asseis and linbiliies are as follows:

Avof Decomber 3t Demillionss el — oo w02 061
Accrued F’(pen\{j and Allowances § 252 S 206
Unearned Premitins LY (i3]
Medical Costs Payable and Other Policy Liabilities 60 B4
Net Operating Loss Carrforwards 63 39
Qther - R U A L

Subestal 450 424
Less: Valuadon Allowances 3y B9

inml beferved lnm n;__ e L 4l BBy

Delerred Income 1ax Liabilives
Capitalized Software Bavelopment. {176) (130
Net Unreatized Gains on Invesiments {82} {31)
Depreciation & Amortiraton i s 2y

Total Deferred ncome i Tax [ :ahlimts i (312} . 1203}

Net Deferred Income Tax Assels ) $ 99  § 18

Valaation allowances are provided when it is considered more likely than not that deferred tax assets wil
aol be realized. The valuation allowances relate 1o futare 1ax benefits on cervtain foderal, state and
farehmn net operating luss careyforwards. Federal net operating loss carryforwards expive beginning in
9017 through 2622, and state net operating loss carcyforwacds expive begimning in 2003 through 2022,
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We made cash payments for income taxes of $458 million in 2002, 3384 million in 200) and $352 million
in 2000 We incrensed addiional paidin capiial and reduced income taxes pavable by $133 mitlion in both
2002 and 2001, and by $116 million in 2000 o reflect the tax benefit we ceceived upan the exercise of
non-ualified siock options.

The company, ogether with its wholly-owned subsidiagies, files a consolidated federal tneome tax
retirn. Internal Revenue Service examinations for the 1998 and 1998 tax years have heen completed and

did nat have a significant impact ou eur consolidated operating results or financial positon.
12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LLEASES
We lease facilities, computer hardware and other equipment under long-term operating leases thut are
nuncancelable and expire on varions dates through 2023, Rent expense under all operating leases was
$152 million in 2002, $135 million in 2001 and 3132 million in 2000,

At December 31, 2002, futnre mindmun annual fease payments, net of sublease tncome, under all
noncancelable operatng leases were as (bllows:

Gumifonsy 2003 . pooa 03 2006 07

(00 %9 8e 87 867

SERVICE AGREEMENTS

We have three separate contracts for certain data center operations and suppory, and network and voice
communication services, which expire in 20035 and 2006. Expenses incurred in connection with these
agreements were 5201 million in 2002, 3196 million in 2001 and $182 mitlion in 2600,

LEGAL MATTERS

Because of the nature of i businesses, we are routinely patty (o s varicty of Tegat actions related to the
clesign, management and otferings of our services. We record libiities for our estimate of probable cosis
resutting from these matters. These matters include, but ave not limted Lo claims relating to health care
benefits coverage; medical malpractice actions; conlract disputes; and claims relared o disclosonre of
certwin business practices. Following the events of September L, 2001, the cost of busiiess insurance
coverage increased significantly. As o resut. we have inereased the amount of risk thatwe sell-nsure,
particularly with respect o rowtine mattars incidental w our business.

In 1999, & number of class action lawsuits swere filed against us and virnuadly all major entities in the
health beachin business. The suits are purported elass actions on behalf of certain cssiomers and phsicians
for alleged breaches of federal statures, including the Employee Retirement Income Security Act ol 1974, as
amended (ERISA)Y, and the Racketeer Inllucnced Corrupt Organization Act (RICO.

Ahthough the results of pending lidgation are always unceriain, we do not believe the resules of any
such actions carremly threatened or pending. including those described above, will, individually or in

aggregute, have 2 material adverse elfect on our consolidated fi nancind positon or results of operations.
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GOVERNMENT REGULATICON

Our business 15 regulated at federal, state, locul and international levels. The laws and rules governing our
business are subject to frequent chiange, and agencies have broad latity de to acdhminsier those regulatons.
State legistatures and Congress continue 1 foens on bealth care issues as the sulject of proposed legislation,
Fxisting or future laws and rules could force us to change how we do business, restnat revenue and
enrollment growth, increase owr health cave and adminiswative costs and capital requireraents, and increase
our lizhility related o coverage interpretations or other actions. Furihier, we must obtain and niaintain
regulatory approvals to market many ol our producs,

We are atso subject Lo various oogoing governmental investigations, aucdits and revicws, and we record
Habilinies for our estimate of probuble cosws resuling from these matiers. Although the results of pending
ratters are alwavs uncertain, we do not believe the vesnlis of any of the current investigadons, awdits or
reviews, individually or in the aggregate. will have a matevial adverse effect on owr consolidated Bnancial
position or results of operations.

13 SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Faciors used in determining owr reportable business segments include the nature of operating activities,
existence of separate senior management teams, and the type ol information presented 1o the company’s
chiet operating decisiop-maker W0 evaluale our results of operations.

Our accounting policies for business segment operations are the same as thase described in the Swnmary
of Significant Accounting Policies {sce Note 2). Transuctions between business segments principally consisi of
customer service and iransaction processing services that Uniprise provides @ Tinticdbealtheare and Onations,
certain product offerings sold w Unipiise and Unitedblealthcare customers by Spedialized Care Senvices, and
sates of medicat benefies cost, qualing and walization data and predictive modcling w Unitedbeuliheare,
Ovatians and Uniprise by Ingenix. These transactions are recorded at management's best estimaie of fairvalue,
as if the services were purchased from or sold to third parties. All intersegrment transactions are climinated in
consolidation. Assets and liabilities that are jointly used are assigned o gach segment using estémates of pro-rata
usuge, Cash und investments are assigned such that each segmeat has ninimum specified levels of regulatory
capital or working capital for non-regulined businesses. The "Corporate and Elimiyations” colwnn includes
costs wsociated with company-wide process inprovement initatives, nct expenses from chiavicable conaribu-
tions to the United Lezlth Foundation and climinadons of inteisegment wansactions. Tn sceordance with
accounting principles generally accepeed in the United States of America, segments with simnilar economic
characiedstics may be combinerl. The finandial resolts of UnitedHezltheare, Ovations and AmenCheice have
been cambined in the Health Cave Services segment cohunauin the wbles presented on the next page because
these businesses have similar economic characteristics and bave similar products and services, types of
customers, distribution methods and operational processes, and operate in a similar regulasory enviconment,
typically within the sumice legal entity. Substantially all of our operations ire conducted in the United States.
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The foliowing tables present segment financial informution as of and for the years ended December 31,

2002, 2061 and 2000 (in mitlions):

Yealit Carz Specishzen Cerpoiate

2002 ) . Serwcss Lilprise Care Serares Irpenis aned Usminamecrs,  Corsydaled
Revenues — External Customers $ 21,465 $ 2,083 $ 897 $ 335 - $ 24,800
Revenues — Intersegment - 603 548 136 (1,337 -
Investment and Other Income JO £} 3 27 14 . T 226
Totl Revena: o §3Ls44__§ 2713 3 1509 s 491 S(1337) 32500
Earnings From Operations $ 1,336 $ 509 $ 286 $ 55 $ - § 2,186
Total Assets’ $ 10522 $ 1,914 $ 94 $ 902 3 (5331 $13,775
Net Assets' £ 4,379 $ 1,097 $ 602 $ 763 $ 517 $ 6,34
Purchases of Property, Equipment

and Capitalized Software $§ 129 $ 158 $ 59 $ 12 5 - $ 419
Depreciation and Amortization $ 102 3. _8 3 3% __ 3 48 $ - $ . 5
2001 _—_ - - ———— - - .- -
Revenues —-- External Customers $ 20,259 § 1841 & T § 334 $ - 329,173
Revenues — Intersegrment - 87 504 joR {1,199 -
lnvesyment and Other lncome 235 M 16 = ) 4 281
Tor Revenues i S §%0494 § 2402 $ 1,234 $ M7 $(L203) _$us4dd
Earnings From Operations & U44 $ 57 g 914 $ 48 S 4 $ 1.560
Total Assets' % 9,014 $ 1737 s 848 $ & (200 $12.170
Net Assefs’ $ 3,408 3 1690 $ 514 $ G646 S (1581 % 54
Purchises ol Property, Equipment

and Capualized Software s 152 5§ M § 33 I ) g § 425
Depreciation and Amortization 3w § A § %3 $ oAb 5 - 965
2000 s P .. FEErET P - —
Revenues — External Customers $ 18,502 $ 1383 $ 503 % 290 % - % 20,800
Revenues — hitersegment - 520 161 85 {1,456} -
Inyesument and Other lncome - 1940 25 w._oo - .8 22
Too Rovenues G186 § 81a0 8 94§ T Silees _§2i08
Farnings From Operations § 730 $ 280 S 174 5 3 5 {34 g 1,200
Toral Asseis* £ 818 $ 1,578 3 3% $ 70 3 (133) 510,818
NetAssews” $ 5,085 R - £ 276 £ 617 5 (113) $ 1845
Purchases of Property, Equipment

and Capitalized Solovare & B & 44 & ity 3 % 3 - $ 43
Bepreciation and Amortization $ 1w &8 7 § % $ 7 5 - & o7

boroal Assets wod Neu dvsen exclude, whers applicable, debe and accruegd interest of 55,775 nadlinn, 31,603 weiflion and 1222 million,
inceme taxerelared assets of 5350 willion, $306 wmillisn and 52535 million, and inrome woerelzeed labilines of §514 wmillion, $253 million and
S1ES nsllian as of December 31, 2009, 2601 and MM, respeciively.

{ 59 }
UnitedHeutth Gronp



14 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA [(UNAUDITED)

£ar th (huarier Ealed

fin millions, excopt prshase ot _ TWmd 31 T dine 30 Sepiember 30 Deeriber 31
2002

Revenues $ 6,013 $ 6,078 $ 6,247 $ 6,682
Medical and Operating Expenses $ 5,631 $ 5555 3 5675 $ 6073
Earnings From QOperations $ 482 $ 523 $ 51 $ 509
Net Earnings $ 295 $ 3% $ 353 $ 3
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share $ 0.9 $ 107 $ 1.7 § 126
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share .09 § 101§ LI § 120
2001

Revenues $ 3,680 $ 5813 § 50911 $ 6,000
Medical and Opervating Expenses $ 3315 & 5,499 $ 5545 $ 5000
Farnings From Operattons $ 363 $ 3 $ %96 § 421
Net Farnings g 912 $ 22 $ 231 $ M7
Basic Net Famings per Common Share 5 067 $ 07! $ 075 § 079
Diluted Net Farmiug per Common Share _____§ 064§ 068 $ 07 5 076

L jiedudes an estinated S40 millon (526 million afrer tax el or 00056 diuied ner carnings per cammon shang, of tnvorable
medienl coals estimate developrent from prior perinds.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The management of UnitedEfealth Group is responsible fov the integrity aind objectivity of the consalidated
fnancial informauon contined in this annuat report, The consolidated financial statements and relaied
nformation were prepared according (o accounting principles generally accepted o the Unired Sutes of
America and include some mmounts that ace based on management's Best estimates and judgments.

To meet its respousibility, management depends on its acconnting systems and related inmernal
acconnting controls. These systens are designed to provide reasonable assurance, atan approptiate Cost,
that financial records are reliable For use in preparing financial statements and that assets are safeguarded,
Cruahfied pr:rlmnn(;l Miroughoul the orgenization mainlain and monier these internal sccounting
controls on an ongoing basis.

The Andit Comanittes of the hoard of directors, compuosed entirely of divectors who are not cmplovees
of the company, meets periodically and privately with the company's independent auditors and nanagement
ter review accounting, auditing, internal control, financial reporting and other maters.

William W. McGuire, MD
Cliwivman and Choel Executine (fteer

Stephen 3. Hemsley
President and Chied Cperaing Cilicer

Patrick J. Erlandson
Chief Fiiancial Offieer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Yo the Bowd of Dirceiors and Shareholders of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated:

We have audiled the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Uniwdlicalth Group Incorporated snd
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and the related statements of operations, chunges in shareholders’
equity, and cash fows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opision on these consaliclive finuncial
staterments based on our audit, The consolidated financial statements of Uniwedlealir Group Incorporated
and Subsidiarics as of December 31, 2001, and for cach of the wo years in the period ended December 31,
9001, were aurdited by other auditors who have ceased opetatinns. Those auditors expressed an unequalificd
upinion on those consolidated linancial stiements in their report dated JTanuary 24, 2004

We conducted onr audit in aceordance with audinng standards generally accepted in the Unied
States of America. Those stndards require thal we plan and perform the andic v obizin reasonabic
assurance abont whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit inchudes
exartining, on a test basis, evidence supporiing the amaounts and disclosures in the {inancial statements,
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signilicant estimates nmade by
management, as well as evaluating the overall flinancial statement presentation. We helieve that our ancdit
pravides u reasonable basis for owr opinion.

i1y our opinion, such consalidated Enanciad sunements present Gairky, in all material respects, the financia
position of the Campany at Decomber 31, 2002, and the resulis of thelr opemnons and their cash fows for the
year then ended in conlormity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Anwrica,

As discussed in Note 2 o the consolidated financial statements, cffective fanuary 1, 2004, the Company
changed its method of accounting for goodwill aud other intangible assets.

As discossed ahove, the consolidated Hoancial statemients of UniedHealth Group Incorpurated as ol
Pecember 31, 2001 and 2000, and for each of the wo years in the period ended December 31, 2001, were
audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. As described in Notes 6 and 7, these consolidaed
financal staements have been revised o (1) include the transidonal disclosares required by Statenient of
Financial Accounting Sandards (Sulement) No. 142, Cioodwill and Other fntangble Assets, which, as described
i Note 2, was adopted by the Corepany as of January 1, 2002, and (i) include disclosure ol the components
of the change in medical costs pavable consisical with Stagcment of Position D40, Divctosures of Cevtean Meliers
in the Financial Statements of Pusuranes Enterprises. Our audit procedures with respeet 1o the disclosures in Note
6 with Tespeet 1o 2001 and 2000 included (i) agreving the previowsly reported et incame 1o the previously
issucd consolidated Nmancial stiements and the adjustments 1o reposted Dol income representis

g
amnortizatinon expense (incoding any related iax effects) recounized in thuse periods refated 10 goodwill,
intangible assets that are no longer heing amorticed, defermzd eredits related W an Cxegss Over Cost, cOuity
method goodwill, and changes in amortization periods for intangible asses tat will continue 1o he
amortized as & resedt of inidally applytng Statement No. 142 (incuding any related wx effeats) o e
Gompany’s underlying records obnained from manugement, and (1) testing the mathematical accuracy of
the recouciliation of adjusted net income 1o reparted act inconte, and the related ewrnings-per-share
amounts, Our audit procedures with respect o the disclosures in Note 7 with respect to 2001 and 2000
included (i) agreeing the previously reported beginning and end of your micdical costs pavable 0 the
previously issned consolidated inancial staterpents, (it} agrocing Uie previowsly reporied medical costs o the
previously issued consolidated financial stalements {it)) agrecing paid clims payments and puior years
medical costs change in medical costs pavabie 3 supporting docwmentition of claims payirent detaid and
tivy tesiing the mathematical accuracy of the componcnes ol the change in medical costs pavable. In our
opinion, the disclusuees for 2001 and 2000 in Notes 6 and 7 arc appropriate. However, we were not engaged
to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2001 and 2600 consolidated financial stweements of e
Company other than with respect to such disclosures and, accordingly, we do not cxpress an apinion ot any
other form of assuranee on the 2001 and 2000 consolidated financial statements taken as 1 whole.

DELOITTE & TOUCHT LLP
Minncapaolis, Minncsota
January 23, 2003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

he folloremng audit report of Avthne Anderser LLF, owr fovmer Independent auditors, 15 a copry of the eriginal veport dated
January 24, 20002, vendeved by Arthuy Andevsen LLP on oz consofidated financial statements included in our Annual
Repent en Form 10K filed on Aprt 1, 2002, and has not been verssued by Arthur Andersen LLP since that dute.

To the Sharehnlders ard

Dircceors of UnutedHealth Group Incorporatesd:

We have andiied the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unitedfealth Group Incorporated (a
Minnesota Corporation) and Subsidizoies as of December 3, 2001 and 2000, and the relaled consolidated
statements of operations, changes in sharcholders’ equity and cash fows for each of the three vears in the
peciod ended December 31, 2001, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’'s
management. Onr cesponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statenens based o one audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards geneeally aceepied in the United States.
‘Thase standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable assurance sboniwhether the
financial siatements are fee of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on « test lrasis, vvideuce
supporting the amnounts and disclosures in the financial stalements. An audit also inciudes assessing the
accountiug principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial sttement presentation. We believe thatonr audiis provide a reasonable basis for our opimaon,

In our apinien, the inancial statements referred w above present fairly, in sll material respeets, the
financial position of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and its Subsidianics as of December 31,2001 and
2000, and the resulis of Hheir operations and their cash Nows for each of the threw years hn the period endeed
December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generatly accepted in thie Lnited Siaies.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Minneapolis, Minncsota
January 24, 2002
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

GROWTH & PROFITS — CONSOLIDATED®

{iu nillions. gxeepr por share dary ~ 2002 2001 POL0
Revenues $ 26,026 4 23 454 821192
Farnings From Operations $ 2,186 % 1,566 S 12
Operating Margin B.7% 6.7% 5.7%
Retaine on Net Assets 37.5% N7 95.5%
Net Earnings $ 1,352 $ 913 5. T
Net Margiu 5.4% 3% 5.3%
Dituted Net Farnings per Share $ 425 $ 27y 3 210
GROWTH & PROFITS — BY SEGMENT
in wailiions) 2002 i 2000
HEALTH CARE SERVICES
Revenues $ 21,644 $ 20,404 3 18.696
Farnings From Operations $ 1,336 4 944 $ T3
Operating Margin 6.2% 1.6% 0%
Rerarm on Vel Asseis 35.7% 29,95 24.6%
UNIPRISE
Revenues $ 273 $ 2462 $ 2140
Earnings From Operations $ 509 £ 374 3 280
Operating Margin 18.8% 15.2% 13.5%
Rewum on Net Asseis 47.9% 37.9% 6%
SPECIALIZED CARE SERVICES
Revenues $ 1,509 $ 1,954 § 474
Farnings From Operations $ 286 $ 24 5 1
Operating Margin 19.0% 171% 17.9%
Rewurm on Wet Asseis 50.7% 59.1% 68.8%
HNGENIX
Revennes $ M & 445 $ 3%
Farnings From Operations § 55 8 48 g 32
Operating Margin 11.2% 7% 8.3%
Retrm an Net Asscis 7.6% 5 3.9%
CAPITAL {TEMS'
Ln aitlions, exeept per share ditay ZGCE_Z_ . _?901 i 2060
Cash Flows From Operating Activites $ 2,423 $ 18544 $ 1,5¢
Capital Expenditares $ 419 $§ 4 5 35
Consideration Paid o Isued for Acquisitions $ BGY 5 955 5 76
Debtto- Total- Capital Ritio 285% 28 9% 24.7%
Retuen om Shareholders” Equi 33.0% 84.5% YOG
Year-End Market Capitalization $ 25,005 $ 21,81 § 149,470
Yearknd Comman Share Price $ 83.50 $ T § 6L

e ccludes nonrecurring e i 2000, 2y deseribed in Toewate 1an the botan of paze 1
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

Market Price of Common Steck

The follewing tble shows the: range ol high and low
sales prices for the company’s stock as reported o
the New York Stock Exchange for the calendar
pertods shown thiengh February 28, 2003, These
prices do patinclude cornsnissions or fees ussociated

with purchasing or selling this secuvity.

L. | UL P
2003

First Quarter

Throngh Februany 98,2003 S 8478 7540
2002

First Quarter $ 680 $ 6785
Secontl Quarter 59739 $ 7513
Third Quaster 5 9630 $ 8148
Fowl Quaer ____SIOLO0 _ $7501
2001

First Quarier % 6136 $ 5050
Seennd Qarter S G7.40 § 32.50
Third Quarwr $ 70.00 $ 3880
Fourth Quarter $ TRE0 H 6242

As al Febnwary 281, 2!IUfS._tI|c crupipany had 12381 l strdeetislders
af recard,
Account QQuestions
Crur ranster agent, Wells Fargo, can help you with
avariety of sharcholderrelaied services, including:
Change oladdress
fost stock certibicaies
Transfoer of stock to another person

Addiional administralive services

You can calt our wansfer agent at (800} 46849716
or locally at (651) 450-4064.

You can write them au
Wells Fargo Sharcowner Services
P.O. Box 64854
Suint Paul, Minnesota 55164-0854

Or vou can e-madt owr ransfer agentat:
stocktransier@wellsfargo.com

fnvestor Relations
You can contact UinitedHealth Group investor
Relations any time to order, without charge,
financial documents, such as the annual repore
anued Form 10-K, Youi can wriie Lo us 4t

Inviestor Relatinng, MNGO8- TS50

Unnedlexith Gooup

P2 Box 1459

Minneapolis, Minnesota 55440 1439

Annuagl Meeting

We invite UnitedHealth Group shareholders
to attend our anpual meeting, which will be
held on Wednesday, May 7, 2003, at I am.. a
UnitedHealth Group Center, 9900 Bren Road East,
Minnewnka, Minneso.

Dividend Policy

Unitedblealth Group's board of directors esrabr
tished the company's dividend policy in August
1890, The policy reguires the hoard to review the
company’s audited financial statements following
the encl of cach fiseal year and decide whetheritis
advisable o declare a dividend an the oulstanding
shares of common stock.

Sharcholders of record on Apcil 2, 2001,
received an annual dividend for 2001 of $0.03 per
share. Shareholders of record on Apcil 1, 2002,
received an annuat dividend tor 2002 of $0.03 per
shrare. On February 11, 2003, the hoard of divectors
approved an annual dividend for 2008 of $6.03 per
share. The dividend will be paid on April 17, 2003,
to sharcholders ol record at the close ol business
on April 1, 2003, We expect to continue paying
compurable cash dividends in the fuiare.

Stock Listing
The company’s common stock is traded on the
New York Stock Fxchange under the symbol UNIL

Irformation Online
You can view our annual repart and obtain more
informanon about UitedHealth Group and tos
businesses via the Interner au

vww. unitedhicalthgronp.com
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UnitedHeaith Grogp 2008 minual report

Making
health care
work better




Recegnazing that the fundamartal chalieniga faced Sy the Amafican hedith care system
involves Not A scarciy of rEsourcas but the falureto aptimize their use, Unitediteaith Group
marshais people, skills ahd technolagy te make heallh care services more grcessivle for
&l Amencans. to improve the hedith careexporience, 1o enhance health puicomas-anc to
make sendcas mode aitorgable.
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Link ng technagy. health care resource
arganization, and managemint
programs..Urigrise brings greater
simphicily and quaiity to: benefits.
atiministration anhd delwery, which in
furse balps ithprove how trie health Gira
sysiem works for consumers, ampoyers
anet heistth plans.

Feiasing Heaith carg Droducts and
serces on Lnigue specialized needs;
Srmcrlized Care Services: provides
individials with vits! tesources:ranging
tiom-Benters ol Excalletée 1oy friical
diseasies antt néeds: 1o anbildry cafe
geivichs, 16 unquie patient spfoi
itenemion's.

Provicing crutiil data-shat physicrans,
cate privaders, hospials, beatth pians,
PaYers, qovernants, and phammaceutioal
and devica manulaciurers nead 1o
‘aptimize pedormiance. ingemx marshats
uniraiod GxpRNSE 0 databasd services,
_cansuifi dervices aitd ahalytics.
intprittn softwdne, pobfaangris: and-




“Prbiding, individuals with simpte. The lamest husiness in e United
amvma ataasa o8 bmaa sod Stiftes solaty dedkiatia 10 ihe bealin © parmtpenw i skate-Sponsoned.

and well-hiaing riadits’of ipatpla Bie. RS Gare progiains. AmetiGheica

50-ard iver, OraTong: prowmes a edmb:ﬁqs nﬁmmqnﬁv-based healm

vﬂth Hnﬂhlu CORgRor-aiRintet BareRt
“Gsiaus And HEDLYNG power of "mcﬁmkmeneeds “St-eiach lacl;:}ent
~NRRY 20 milor jntivicuals.
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innovative leadership tu make health care veork better

Promoting care advogaicy. LArnitedicalth (.mup intrutired unigue progran for pitiei advocacy ia
1089; in response wrineveased fragag wtafion dngare dudivery, gresser complexgty iildisedar weatnint
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el ir Leguaig st ol preciaiis Beulth tare 1 v Suecessfubin veidising tdysc goats, sueh cue
fivtion. ane fucifitation services el phasicians aud patienes urganire jeedss tindeded services dial
improve quadity and et rmtt\ nm&pilmnum anthhave hertvindegrited mpe. mung cere s 11 33t Teas
America, As (w0 t:|.)|t T bt und live \mh e thl‘(;sm‘ elizeaee, rind tew modica g hnulum‘ st
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Erihancing 2ccess 10 thé best quality heatth care through Centers of Excellence, Recogmizag e
wnigput ¢xprsise of selucted health ctre Lacities and filivsicians 1o treat Righl mmp{u,x auel sare
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Engsiging cansumedtin tealth ssre detisions. Heuith mavings acroasatrd Hexibie spending accouss give
ot s greater cuntral as well s greater finpncial accountabilisy fov heulth cife déchiions. Unitedilagith
“Growip, dirgugl i dedicdied Coosuner and: Finameral Sersices businessunit, izat the Torefraos i individust
cangnuerdriven producs mid capabiilives usifg chitwunier caredy, Thudngh these progiams, erpployers cin
ieverage the butihg power of more than B0.million: people from UnitedHealth Grouprcompanies and wiiianey
tyingke thetr votisuirer dotlu go filthet and detiver mare waltad: This helps achithe: broad, atforiluble acces
10 qualite vare and resowrces acpesethe widest speetrn-of cure senvices, inchading mdien], desiial, vision,
hehavioral, ehiroprsciit and other gcitary and complementiey services, To suppert béites personal health
care decisions, new and enhanced Tnteragt information wols.an mpbic.com® chile tomsomiky th fivesingh.
the Dest trennicat oftions, physickns atd Eicilitics farcare, 2 well w find edtimates of rcaiment costs for
specific hiendr. care-servjees-fn their jmnmediate geagraphic argss.

Simplifying health care processes,  [nnacative nowaredics] 13 vareds e the latest magnetic stripe technology
comtbined Wit hie copvenience of the MasterCartt® retwork 1o pravide easy, on-heispat verificdlion of

paticnt eligihility for medical servives as well ax benefit infonnndon. In sdditime, consunier wecount stoved-
wlue cards enable conmameds o pay health-rplaed expedses drectly Frour thet fealth Sivings accouniy,
flevible spendingaconunts and personat bencfitaccouns. Openwchitectuse futornet porssls for Todiyidualy,

exiployeds, pissiciuts and bokers Gffet reabime arcess 10 selfiserice. copubititfes ek ssronlineenroliment,
‘hifling, claitn Enquiry, claim sulimisou, claim payment, benefit inguiry and prjsci siecdon, Thicse
{pernei poriily and irow widelyailble through UnitedBleuhih Group sadiave wsed regithacty by more than
# mltlivg l_x__ousc-hniﬂa;u—r_mi_' g mnee than 8 iillion peoplé, 430000 scive regidteret physician and tars
providar oxer aites, TROGI pagplopres and VAR brokers. 2004, more than 50 different mrensaeion options
“with e vl bible-andd seaie (i 160 militon twinsacions Wil b civnducted ualngf Bur Interiet dervice phrils
~ tmprming servitegquality, éBidency and aconracy, while ahw lowering eosts. )
Mdmsﬁﬂg_wﬁ b heaith cars. Againyt e backdrop of the revintIngttuié af Medicine repott
“Unigguat Tigatinedit” iatdncaments 16e ifacceprablevariations in ke quatity.if hoalth care sud healih
starys expericnerd by ninaniy, @nd other populabiondof Amcdicins WaiwdHekith Group has witgred intu
pttanersldps with the: federal dgency for Heulticare-Researedv aud Quality ard thie Forendnitun fue
Avcountabitity fo destign and condicn analysesof ARFiAICEs i1 care delivedy Fom ndtdtnl suindards, and to
pronide innurative decisiensupport 1oy diat apply © minordty connmitities.en (it consmen Hempl porat

United Health Foundgtion — Making = diffevénce in health care

‘Advanging avidence-based medicing, [ ks ivcredsingly apprerent that the bidis for quatityheatth-care
delivery and aptimal pwesmes i grounded i thesuccefill (naelation of tie-hist sépemific evichenge ing
‘chititead pructice. Lo response o this-need, the Uhiler Health Foondion. ' piivase. norgrofit faurdation
Taudedsatele by UnitedBYealth Group, twiee: 2 year disttibutes Clica! Evidente frie.of ghusge 10 mefe thian
BIREIHR) s3taF 'Iintitan‘_s'_'p_tl}‘s;ci:lm."plji;i&immifﬁmi;ﬁhgand nutrses, Clinical Evidencr is o comjnohunsive,
ingerrgoral soucee for the best available indarmatns an e elfettive care progiuls far nurpe thas 1,600
wedisal conditinns, cuinpiled by one of the most resperied argsnizdions in iedivine, the B Publishing
Civoup- {formerfy.she B viish Medhicnt Journall.

Agvanging commnRy-bissed Slinice. Thik itefl Heatth Foundadun b provitid gadtis to Unity Hedlth
Caire, T it Wadbrgton, . and Now York Cliyhased Chidren'’s Health Fund ¢ Inreadice pot Qenten of
‘-g’f.",?‘.‘!lmﬂ'-_-“}@!_?ﬂ‘-“‘ﬁjﬂiﬁi&l}ﬂ.-.fé-i!mﬁﬁ'm.imq%&ﬁﬁ’_iﬁa?f&h-c‘s-r.i:'in, wediically iwidaietved conimsitties.,

Miiliiaias suppot fruns the Fuited Health Fonsadon funds health cars 1 mudiatdéliver integrated and
corHimel Freventive, cliical and conimlhitybassd eAve strdecs snd tigt Hnpartarl medicdl chllenges
aw it | :

u

e And aditd ol e tiality, comprehensive Beait care diatioild otk el Ao e Tovatliabsle
The project will abso-help.the devvlopmeatof now madels Tor costeffeative crra tharoma be replicaed
thevnghinthe Htat '

imgtaving the tealth of. Aiiplca’s qomoniities. Througit A partneohip with the.American Pablic Heabeh
Awoction and. i Pazmacrshig fise, Prevertion, the' Ul Health Founditisn publigis Ameitas Helth:
Stiste Vel Bonkpngs, sn anmial eoruprehensiss statebpaite anadysis of heaith status throughout the nation,
This report, which ishased tin datafrom the U8 Dépanmentsof Heafthy,; Cotimerée, Educatiot:aid Labor,
Highilighits: poRitive tevedsin pubitic brealds as wellas sigaificand chalieayes shat requive-aticndor, tiewhy
ergeting e offorss.of indiidials, Sintlios coptmtinity leudgss, ensployers ard public officials i anpifive
their own heatth and the.overall freilth of theireommualties. '
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Who we are

UnltadHgalth Group iy 2 diversified health and well-being compary,
serving approximately 52 million individyal Amernicans.

How we've positioned curselves for naar-term &nd tong-term success
¥ We are huilt around three eore cimpaiensies oxsential 1 out focus on
makiag the healik care spaem wark heters acdheanieed 1echnologybueed
transactional capahilities: health care data. knowledge and inforamtion wnd
fiealth o yesuttroe organiaition and eare facitimtion.

» We npeaste through discrate, diversified businesses that focus on the ncwds
ol specific markes ségniia,

> We sonsuilly invest in the futsre, speading more than SE2 billion-un resesre . develupment und capitat
expenditures, kargely for iechnalogy and chinical pevfurmante advancement servioes, aver tie st AN Ve

Maow wa're making heaith care wotk-better

We enhance-accoss to heaith and well-being services.

> ‘W leverage thee agipregate hriving power of millians O Antericans to achiveejoeater alforlablin.

% hnthe inereasingdy. complex healihcare ensironment, ur playsician wird constumer autreach serdcey
help hdnddials seding, poordinate and manage shie yorvices {ley neod.

> Thrimgh ons family of husineises, we -gtmjdc a conipreiensive arruyof opmmunierariemed senices o
et e Ryll spectpiim of Helit arid weikbelng nends.

> "Carition. oporating ssems and serdice platforms enable seniels infigraian ab services, seeamlining
JSenefis sdmitistoadon,

* Technolugy tmprovemients drive progressively Higher-levels of uislity and sevicr- consistendy,

» For.cmployers, tansuinersand physiciaod i, practicat rechtiofpy wlutions speed health oire
iteractions, 1aduey peperwork andlomericosts, 7 ) '

We. gathar.and share Informaifion 10 achieve improved fieatin outcomes.

> Weagiregate aid ntegrae dats froni enplopess, Insurance comuics dnd oty pavees, phamyénontical

and Maboratory sepsieerprovitiors, hospitdg iind other participanis attess the jealtlsystem o' erighle
mwagminghut eliticil aud coonomié agdlyses,

> Weprwide dna servicesand ools tial help cmployers und other puyens monior titilizatio pustters.
kel eantrnl FiFfng-costs,

> ‘Wepromte evidence-based iodical cuee- by provifling consussers, plgsiciassgnd other heakiveare
providens wilti teteva, dedonable nformatian ahout-clinicalaprality nd dedisibn pracesses.

> -Oisr-clinieal reseaitch capabilliios and rcduted sorvices sppeors die: devclipusns ofnew dicrapeaic
-eampiuncds and deties.

‘How we've peridimed

> The compoundainnod growth raic Sor tcventics w38 percetover thie past Ly jeans sad sroek,
upprecivion Rasavetaged 43 percent peryeas over the ame time fame,

> Eamifngs per sharc grovh has smeaged 38 pereonis per year Hage 1369,

Fihanclal porformance
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Cporating Murgia
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Who we are

Spécialized Gare:Services f'the nition's most compreheagive platform for
specialty heaith and weliness banefits, services. and resources.

ACN Qraup®
chitegith vare,
phvsicat thermgs and
Ahermaitive s
Tumplementay
methiioe wrvices

Rental Bangfil Prgviders
el mirpwondas atzed
ACTATOS

HeatinAliles*
penmyrucTdfves
hosahifi sare avew
il e iy
Pigrab

Matmanat Senefil
Resaurces

FOSE Mg e
wervives aned cansudting
turr Tastrre s, third-prirn
achinbristadoes il
eanplevers.

OUptug®

care Tsctlinnuon, diseine
wetnaf eymedazting
nisiEEgeting, wtd Sealih
Titkarmialin gt e vickes.
canngtelieipie vision
seevit i osth proddacts

Unimerica

acvhlbent, stietderny
disabsidits, wrellife
MEDEE preitn s
Unfted Aphavigral Haalth
Yebrgcinnad bieadileand
\'_liM_mtl bt WTTR e

United Resource
Natworhs

“eritizal ii_i_rw&!tu-iw whs

artlservic e

“Werking Sotions
e lini aastytisee

PITWET.'HII-\

How we're making heafth care wark better

Wa impove acess to specialty health and Well-beiny services.

> We niler serviersithrough wanrenood chnmelydnmiteses il s g, esppnditg dedoms o
if_ii‘p‘g's‘i‘r'-._‘i:_;_l"._\-_pvri,.jily' p’r_':'_z;’-_r:&:i:m_:\} i ristly, weodiioenly atevd e it 44 2iltiverdpdividusls whi Haye cHie or
e O the prodbucty s servives we ol thicatigh opt Bt husinese units, O xperiily metwerks addrs.a
growinn e of speesabty and willry nocids-

5 Sinsple, stindilir prodie snd seice designs wil
amd individuats W aelest sperialt Benofits th

3 airke” e of price i wpshle-inirers, emplovers
anaaeeh phele unliue udisds kerugrisied-aprriztig phadoro.

agqioried by A Shumtesile hadin. vhvirofitid, adgrirenahle custeners by gl THHISE TELSTHEN
gy st hasiv mudiet enefie,

. opersing eilicencs conplert Wil i prchsing peee helps et cost il
Iapsone afftmrdabilin

We heip individuals use health care services more:etiectively.

s Cxnd maneggement senviers Belp ifooe the gfediveress, wived qruality F e Yap prepliewith dhinsiic
cupelitions by Biritiuung sorassto are sendves. delivering patient eduction and support. el provirding

i e CRpeTLL

We help peoplo with-oritical fltagéses achieve quatity outeomas, while-lowéiing casts..
5 AgpEaap highly disingiitied Cruders aCExuellenss e Gomean of i i/
verotfitions, incheding hansplantion. cunerand luant disase: cid maiirhaet
g, Bypingan of these! vepinb ok, puinded drosnd s H bt Hear b

addroing hegevdesurrounding atherimpran.on ficait ronditons, ah as it
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Wha we aie

Unigrige (5 the nation’s Jeading peovider of health benefils sanvices
for large organizations.

How we're making hesith care work better

We make It easier and mora atfordabls for jarge organizations to

> We prewide cugomized, interated benefit [lims and aperational
support deivicey (nr 9.5 million individuals and 345 targe. nuktidncndon
eritplovery. Heaily 206 of whirh ard i the Farere MK

Wa simpéify, innovats and maka the adimindstration of healit: care mora aftondable.

> Theerisgh abread.aanye of services, techuologies and procest innesayioug, Uiitprise s adesncing and
moderniving the himlth care exporiend: Que inifiatves make Tedlil gure ineeictiais fmplet aisd casiir
and scok. 10 make the experience of acvesdig and using hoalih cave senvibes suoie Tike & eonsumer rewil
bhuvitg experience. therehy invalving the copsmcr direetly 4nd respansdbily, Riillding on cach ather, these
¢Rorts ienfalify and streamling the health care cxperience; lowes basic coseand increase the speed of heaits
care intrractons, The mtimate godt is simitar i what s beon achieved in msty non-heatth. care industries!
iea-lediver services better, Baster and choaper.

» Six Bigma<tjde qiatiny disiptines an: rpplied 1 gontinkousy frprove serdes quitity, while adiandog
greater produstvity-and affordabiling.

> Fnternel samice porils prodde convenignt; low<cost information 2ad seivice chanindts for consumiens,
enuployars, Biokers, and physicans and heatih caxd prinsders. Through mpihe.comn? individuals oxter [D
cards, chock chim satus; research-heskivanil wellbielig 1apics, find u phydiciin and leanyabaur, remant
opions and cos. Plysickuns and afher hoilif éare provitins dxe LiftodHealilicire: Cline™ o sddamit

and track elaing praymits and fooksip patient eeelivelighilin, Emplayer eSerisram enables employens to
indnage and tmek heuhil benefies b real fissie.

¥ Newly introduded elertranic medival {0-cabds 10 mageetic stripe mdln:ﬂimf-mld the MusterCard®
svstein and ework o inake it easy 10 verify padint etigtty and benofits inaninyies —anywhere, anytime.
» Newconsumer acconnt staredaglie cafddenabie cofisumerz . pay healih-refated expinse

divertly linm their Dexible spending accoiiig and persgnal benefin accounts:

> ‘Ulniprise provides cupmumendirecied et plamdnlpﬂmﬂu‘ costsharing with emplopses and uffer
varding kenls of consumer edplgetnent mlmlth,amdadﬂnmmhug.

> Pt an. exasinjile of thie e completis T LY !léﬁh gikey sapigicin, romibines Tigghwtleduedbie
medicdtcoverage iked to.an emplopeshimdad Teporfl Benafit Avrongs abil includes inforsiaton toots:
person Gire amistance sorvices, proventivcvealthbemsfite and finnoddel duoetives that hélpindndidusis use
Heatih care rsoiirces wisdly.

Financial pedformance

{l soiliony) e _ . %003 .- 2061
Revemas | Ty may % ame 8 ogame
Eaniings from Operations ) 5 o $ s § s
Operating Margin L ' 6% 90% 1549
Ryzurn an Net Avets ART% 389%
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Health Care Services fincludes the busivises ol Uit leatitiwear e, Osnions aned Xmevlhedcet

Who we are-

UnitedHeaHficire pirovides tha most infodative and compretiansive,
consumeriofientéd hegith benefit plens gtid sprvidas to smiall and
mid-sizeq smployers ancd Ingividualy patfonwide.

How wie're mmiaking health care work better

We make-access 1o services hroader.

> Uiited) TEahbward conteads wirktmitne-than ARG phystctms and
Aol horpituds magsmde. In adduion. we provide aesess 1w 2 il asiin

of sprecialiy serdigess dsl nosolwers thin avgfitiet busiy medival cuce

> \.\f' providethe @ios < omprehensive aray of insonace and heaith henefit prodiccts and sericos from
smple individual beulth coverage o sevrices firithi Mrgesl, o comples gruips. Prranal Hinefil scoowms
v Fasisdghsaiinggs ue gy ady Svadlatife widhie 2l oir hlochis affen me

> hinevativepharmaceuticd manzgement Hugibin prodicde deeess 10 dlurge BEtwitk of phannasies
at rumphee selection of geonc aut tamnd-oanye dewgds, and & conienient fame Hefivery pmgran. A
foxible benetis madet provides vonspmens.with a wide rage af s vhodces abd tupaiinett levels,

Wa help make health ¢ate bettar.
= Tanovative chiical eatreach grograms helg idemifcund §Egaps ti core: Blsase el e ennlitgn
AFGEageme i progrink sppatt cheomealty il patienss Wi dolplex ifTiseesses,

» Our consuner nformaging @id suppoit iervicey erleourage proplc te-Iofti preveniive guidelines vk
b aptess i ErediblebealilFiformagion Ga-di hgeroet aslinonessages o b-spacakitgt with ragistered
“psersen el np_as\;_n:_.r‘v'h-\'e] rounslon.

¥ Cenersof Excelienie pringiabs, leciaéd i b el Tl gind phoiiciags fraviding e, fEpring
“yestrsaenet Tovier costs forcamples conditions, such i ongmn trunsphentidiomecancerasl cardiag discase.

P Aspari OF e Ghavinany anuiigeniEnd proigrats, we ik siphistiopsed dane apjilicntiting it apabere dogg,
utifbatian patenvand wreen for safe soeof sreddicationy gwior W dispensing:

‘We make il all more atfartiable.

> We aggregan- the bhuving, power of witlics t6 achioye the Hraadist acoessdor the lowest price, hrhading
steess o plameceativals, metlicad detiees st dngeiodiic sesting i [ewes) price, ’

> Flwough care Facilitations inittativesand webmobogd, we practively ideaify ihie-peaple agi io et

ol e ol epsure thiv i A Ry WOST IR P Sertiees irb i mirl 'I_h_n_"[l_};l_ifi_xls [§_1c~j_:= hqal:h
andwdlibring, helpingte provent theexeessive cost ol ramplicasions that aecsar drom. Tmek i cintre,

> Hprinfoimating setéices help phivicians dntotier cany providgns. agwl agabenewho oot cures

¢ bes fosisions o achieve the hest putcrmues.

G Tty vochielon AimpliGepad dumigs vomples. s heully ture trmsictions —
preniilitys securate sevéics. the. fi Bine fota low gost,

> W ehipower vonstimens, p_}j}}i_t-_'.i'.'u‘lm_::n_(‘li_(,n:l'hg fralth c:\!'(,-.,p_rm'idt-m\;‘:lh:frsﬂ-...'.wﬂ:“ ta selisenios
Capabifities that ast sesilable 24 hatdevas da, sevdr dav, sweek,

> W s Six S.{'gm;t_é_«;ly]uqwdh\'.dlu'ip_[itwn 10 fravel sl vemove inelfivivaey und vaste Hi thehaafth cage sisiein,

rmance—Health Care Services
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{itr At . e im e - ._?;@;‘_ﬁ R
Resenones . _§ 287
Fapmigfiom Operaios 3 e
Oporating arghe . .. 8%
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Ouaﬁor;s is the fargest LS. business dedicates 10 seving this hoatth
mmmmwamwmamw

How we’ro making health care work better

We snhante the quslity, affordability. and security of heatth care tor
peaple aover age 50.

» We reprégent the naien's laqrest Medicare supplement bulfess, seeving
wewly 4 mitlion sexnjors enrolied in AARF Health Oare Opriams.

» We-provide setwork-based Bealth henefit products w 230000 prople
ehigible fur Medicare, including Medicares Chnlee, producu and new Medicare prefared provider plany

5 part; 0 2. pllo inidutive with the fedecat govéhnreat thirough the Centérs for Medicare.and Medicait
Bervices (CMS).

> Puremplovers 1 schievd the bist liealth covermgs-awitable 1o ptivees, we elfer group coverage options
it all Srmates.

We make proscription dnigs rore affordablefor older Americans,

> We etler the muiop’s largest and mos; popubsr pharmiy discunt card prugram, slong with gharmary
ail service wnd mochandise offerdings of healthy living producs. serving ey 2 mifion peojplé:

We improve the quality of ifefor giderly individualy-and paople with ehronic 'itl'mssés.

> Through Evercare? we provide. Individimilzed eareseices Siir mare than B5.000 il or chronicadty i
individuats aerass the Rll contimum.of cane ﬂ:rdngs, inchyding a1 home.

> We aperate whe-of America’sfargest terwiiik ufmw ReTiic Gare teuts, mcludmg phiviiching,
aum: pracitiunery and seppost aafl-We: «:m th yal Healih Service; ejping 1w desiopand

pm\'idt gire services for wldee indididtinlsin otieri opt nize eplth resonnces.

> W affer Evereare Conacerions. in new.sorvice far adult chiliien 1o help provide care advacagy ankl
supparyior aging paroiis.

Who we are

Nmﬂehoha délivees nibtwork-based hoghth cars and personal
ATHICIEmYE \_Wtomem%i millfian lodivitusls whic
: ad heatth eane progeams.

> We %& with iote T & duned sués 1o deliser Mediexdd ahd otfer
hcahh v it

> Wealler comprebensive prevenitive’ (i Servees sl o maunmg) and ehstedficad peogram,: ‘whith
work procicrisely 10 fulp individnats nainnaln good health-smmus. Through vur Pevnoual Care Moded,
wee Dnctis on Twbpityg ingividunls sith seriménngd elirgnichedllh candiions proserve aptfma! Tealth by
coardinating accens 20 exre-sarvices from phyeicians: other heath tare provden; and government '

angt Gk te-hissed fesnufess,

S Wndnckmedmmmmﬂmmmch W ___mhww:mmhenmd;hnmtomctm
Ingerwric in Severe linesses eontiion among AmidiChaice conmumers, such as ashma. diahewes, dekie ol
disrase and complivacd pregnuncy.

» Wo ploncered tie st of tlemrdicing to:diable our ot minigeriont nursisanid cliniciany to tannitor
vitnd dlguis, ehseck neiication uie and Erellinue o,

EaedFiaTh Growp T




Wha we are

Ingenix provides: healt! care data, techaology and andiyties sarvices
10 more. thin 50,000 physimans, 3,008 tals, 21000 payers,

100 Forturie 560 compantesand 148 pharmacéiitical.and biolechnalogy
companies.

How we’re making hesith e work bétter

We use datzant information to-saive key health care issuas.

s The fogenix CGatuxy dacilsise iy the largest infegrated datidioc vs the
nrasket with T8 cordnaes o fefonmation. I couthines medicak. Bikorsory
and pharssey data elements t enable cunpre heasive asesset gt ahinion of ssies rebsigd o
elinsical qmim and eosis. includiig prospeciive views o iless snd secded-nferentiote, § i ased by
L OVer gmwmg A4ibEr o vy lovdis Beslit plons; jusoreis ittermeditaey s care e,

idenixprivides anaiytics. pplications and consulting services to shrengthen health care admiinistration
and advante health prtdomes,

> fngenix.decisionmanageient soodieos. actraal e rvives diirical Cust-4rend i‘t'}nﬂmg aud !ulﬂ:l..«lm;z
sevices, and: pr&d}mm mexdeling toals. help. cirsimers uttes nndeestaind riedical ot e, qualingl
cale ieseres stiliztion 1atesand e fficaey of pew- et .tple& anpd pomjpimbids. Beachmarking dars
helps clivRts Compine agd soprsi dosts, v porformency bEFREnL, Wexilup, Hakehadl distsse
inatirpyEn i 's('m!egii"'s. anid iy sobikginds vhddeis and aceomintabiliy '

> sttt woed paversuse Tagents Billing qnl roplionce seludons @ seeamline. Billing praciives,
nigximize peimbursements and deteet shdng erromss e alidition, wsvlechamic connes sty walsin il hoafih:
care I:Ldmm advanees,, Ingnnx is peised w0 deliver date upplicaiionis and amalyics. M {11' e} p!tmr kit
dtesktops aval aittrer paiitts of cire.where the Joformation. can b st ised rmmpnm- e care slefivery
andreduce coals.

* “Fraud aitd-abuse dewsTion i préveaion setviad, benchmarking i

havgn and eouipliance sérviver
grewide ool thit el bhoalthrcane pavers mbinitos core business processes,

We holp blomedieal and pharmaceutical firms bring products to market safely.

> % Besearcit leour Ridisendee, g',lnlml clinded] veseurch orgunization ({GROR xpeviafiding in ver alop,
central nervons systen i respiragord it infectigus-dbewse. With pfties wisddwite and cupabilitios in
siere than 41 couliifrkes, 18 T i resonrios trdaisnw B clinica) $5ad alkover i wardd — from complex;
enuttinatiipal s eamalies studies In specigdived padent populing

> Psorvices ;mladt u.tcﬁl.mmd chitical, ln.d Rttt mp‘lhi'imrs, mm{p!umt«! iy il serviens
meeeth v Braasihifity nssesementrand’ pmtmul vendows deentiedh safmiissiog g cnmpwlmm\e SIPTRTI
Thustatistits services, We drdve on tve Fesoirees of ioro i 24 .{)(B} hiwm:g.érm avsiteaartituid: e Wkl
5 Figenix I o !mder i 1rit-i!u:a! cdlscarmu .:m! rmnmm\
commucations souls and putificarious spdioes o oty and et i modicat cammmundty ahodl Do
Ll;mt al treainsnats, !hnnpms anth practices.
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Financial Highfights

P the Yeat fnded Decrmber 31, . .
i ok, Excepx ps abre i) 203 g e 2000 L 88
l:GﬂSOUDXIEB OPERATING RESULTS
Revenuey Mg §oame0  §esdnd  S3L1ee  AIGSRY
ings From Opeations $ 2885 5 2136 3 1586 § 1500, 943’
et Eamings $ 18 % s b 918 $ T 8 e
Mammswehdidm Entity 33.0% L A80% 3% 198% . 141‘5
“Basic Net Eartiifigy T _ o )
pet Goiltmon Shire $ 110 $ g2y § 146 § 144§ oY
Diluted Net Earnings . } ) .
per-Copimon Shase § 256 $ 248 b 140 . 0§ 109 $ ODMR0f
Common Sock Ditidends per Share  $: 0415 $o001s S 0015 o 30008 8008
CONSOLIONEEDCASH FLYWS FROM.(USED £OR) o
s 8,008 ;1 2L ; l‘gg
AT8E) i ften ¥ 62N
: A428) . 4 % e

‘GONSOLIDATED FINARCIAL CONDITION

At e M
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Results of Oporations

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Unitedttealth Group is atesster in.the hedlth dndinilibeing foe ;WW&imﬂqtySﬂ?'.: iffigi
Ammm.mmmmnonhnpmﬁn;mmmhqlrﬁmmwwmm o
mnhmﬁwmpmenuoﬁkalrhmddﬁu;; pmmdng h pedic 'aﬁemﬂﬁd

uchnologr*-hupd._
cane’ mmommﬁmaudm&ahmﬂm o' mh:hulxh mrnmthemr. Wepmvideindiﬂhﬂs?

i'emam ﬁ%wnmﬂ%w m
ﬂ,#& lme mm
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Pramium Revenues Consolidated premium revenues in 2003 totaled $25:4 billion; arvinorease of
$a.5billion, or 16%, over2002: UnfitegHealvhiare prentium vevenuesincreatod by §1:8 biltlon.
:&ﬁﬁeh.pﬁ'mmybry.av‘e;-.'ge,pr_e'miumsta;e-mma.s.e;:o_fiﬂ'%-m._ 4% on rencwing commerdial isk-based
business: Prefoium revenues ffom Mediciid programs dlso inidreised. by approkmarly $1.0 biftion
over 002, Approximately 70% of this inicrease resilted from theacquisition oFAnjeriChalce o4
‘Beprember 80, 2002, with the remaining $0% driven by growth in the dumber of tncdidduals served
by our-AneriChpice -Mcdig;i_d-pmgmm}jmce;zjig-acqui’iidon dite. Theremainiag prewilum revenue
growehs in 3003 was primarily driven by growth ka dic number ofindividuats served Hy Guations”
Medicire supplesent products provided to AARP mrbiers and its Everare busingss, long with
growth in several of Specialized Care Services' busmcwser.

Gaivics Revermiss Servise chventeits 2008 soled 851 billion an incressc.ol §i84 million, or 8%, over
'm.%cinmaé}hsé;ﬁcé}tmhm%dﬁVEn'priniiﬁty:W growitiof 79 {5 dlie nesibier
attndividualyserved by Uni'?ﬁuAndaﬂniwdnmmcsmﬁddéﬁt“: basgd atvagedngnts Griring 2008,
{ovistrndnt anid Otber icoina LnvEsmaesiaid oskier ncanis touled §267illion, ceprédeating an
ncrensc of $47 milifon oier $002, die primailys increated chgital galith G ML oFinvesunents,
‘Net capital gainson salos of investments were $2% millioh $n 2003, compared witr et capital losies
‘oE$18 suilifon in 2002, Iruesestingome decreased by $3 million il B, driven by lowe ficlds on
ssativients, partially offsevby the Tpac o ngrensed levels ofcashand Bxedincome fnvesments.
‘Madical Casts _ _ - :

T combination §Fpricing, benefit designs, consumer healthcare utilization and domprehsnsive

carefudilitation 'gﬁ'ém;'i_s-rqﬁgcteﬂ'i_'n the medical care ratio {riedical cosisasa perdcﬁmgcﬁf‘

44 5&03 Exdudi'_nlg‘.-ihf

Approxituaiely S0 Haski poiats of the decrrise i'die : o
devetopment of prior.period medical cosue¥imates g furthér discyssed bk Highanee of the
‘medical care yatio decrease resulted primarily from net premiitm rate ifcredses hiat kxcceded overall
medical Benefit castincreasesand changes in product, business and customer mix.
‘Fack peciad, ol operating resulu include the effects of revisions in medical cost estimates related
vl piior periods, Changeein medical cost sttiraes selated 19; tior fiscal years fHat areidentified in
e cofieatyear sre Indloded in (Ut medicatcatts réporied for the orredefiy f
393 iscluile dpprondmaely $150-iillion o faverable madical co Aerelop)
cefited opior fiscal fAais. ' ' o
 On axv absglute dollar basis 2003 medical costs increascd SESHINTGNIOF 4%, ovar R0 The
:}meauwudri?zppnmad[yhr 2 fiae inu meiticstcosts of appioifnatelf 0% 1 Fdue o imfedical cof:
o erate increasein health.opre consumption; aod nceedién wal edicat-eosu related 1o

el pata i SF_ e Y b tire o
e mifficing o eover. potendil Tutues wndsineting ar
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Qperating Costs
“Phe opersiing castratio: (operating coisasa PhreTtig
.ftbm 1?.5%‘11: 20% msdmwasﬂﬂﬁunspn“mmﬂy_l

. . .;5@2'
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2{%
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Haatth Care Services
The Health Care Serviees segment.conalsts: of the UniedHealtheare, Ovations and AmeriChaice
Higdin fsey. Umtqdl:leallhwe epordinates: Hctwurk—bascd heal;h aad wll-bang scrvicE on bchalf of
tocal einplafers and consysmiers. Ovations dolivers bralth and weltbeing services 1o Americans gves the
ageof &0, mctudmgdhe ddrmintitestion of supplemental healthrinsurarice chiverage du-hietialf of AARE,
AmeriChotee facilitites and manages hiealdi care serdices for state Medicaid programs aad their
beneficlaries.
Hcalxh CareServices had revenues of 324.8 Billion in 2008, representing an increase of$3.3 hillion,

or 16%, aver-2002. The majoyity of the increase resuited from an increase of Sl 9 inlimn i
UnitedHedithéate reveniue, as ingrease of 14% dver 2602, The increase in UninedHealfhoare revenues
was diiven byavErage premiui fate increases of spprogimacely 12% 1013% on renéving commercial
s -bmd business md 8‘!; 3fowth inithe aumber of indbidualsseried byfeehs itk
3003 increased b}tﬂ 10 biflion aver 2604, Appm:dmal.e!y
_ d fram.th it hnn{@mﬁhoq« on Sepzeg;bcrm, 2002 \mh the

rcrp;lning m dxiw.-nby gromh fnithe nmberraﬂnd,mdnah seived by As
progrimssings the deguisition date - GuatidisrcVdnues increased by $319 mﬂhqn T 5% pnmxily Hue
taificreases T the niurmbar of ndividizals @ived by both it Medizare supplémend pmducupmwdeﬂ e
AARP-membersund b}“m Evetoare business:
HenlthCa:r. Scrvm e.amings&omm'_

uom iuﬂOﬂS mm*nqaﬂy 51.9 b]liwn- TEpresen ung A

Sep:em&r?:ﬂ 9002, LinitedHealificire! cbmﬁicfmkl hiedticalcare citio w‘prm o 8&0% in 2003

* from 81:8% in 2002 Approximarely 40 !mb«pomu af the decrease In.the cotmarcial medical caré rato

- WS dmen bvf thefavmhledcvelomnmwtpmr pcrwd m;:dicai costcsamatea. with: the balance oF the
decredse: resulting From net preminm raelugreases tat, exe:udcd ;werall mediu] benefit cost incrmcs.
and changesin busitiess aid cusiomer mi :3lth Care Sery es’ 2003 opmﬁngmaxgm was Y.5%. a0,
incriaye 60180 banis paities over 2002, THE iRCaE way Arivei by 2 conibliiaion’ akimproved piedical
care ratios and a skift in comimefcial preditomix.from. risk-bascit produdisto h_xghmm_rgm Tee-hased .
products.

Thefollowing tablé summarizes the iumber ofindividuals: served by Healthe Cm: Services, by major

markersegment and funding: arrangement; aof Decomber §17;

1105 080
tha} Heilth (sive Seryices, : ' . 35% {0 7

Vg netues (ndividunty served by Ovatioms” Medicare. walemw peadisn. provided <o AREF meoiber.

‘I‘he nurnhcr ufmdmduahumd hy E.tniwdislal:hcm ¥ commema% busimas nf Bx:cemh:r 31,5603,
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the addition of 430,000 individuals served, partially offsetby custonsers mmngmselﬁmdcﬂ,

foe-based arrangemessand. UniyedEeafthrar:’s targeted sithdruvad: omsumdom ﬂmm

unprofiabicarangements with costomsnyusing indltple hemﬁtmn'tm -
Ovations® yeitroverpear MedicareClinioe envollment cemained Feladvely stibile, iy 230,000

‘idividualy i sis.of Detetsbior 83, 2008, Medicaid encollmentinéreased, b}lﬂ’ﬁ,m ot 75,11111: t©

shEdng rdvitiin'the number of ndiidals seeved by AmeriChalce aves: thtmmar

Uﬁbﬂsﬂ _

niprise provides netvork-binsed health and well-heing setvices, hmlnmnwnmmnmdm

mlw%mammmu conneciivity sird toctinalogy suppoart sdviies o lnvge eniplopersand

1 pliis; Uritpaise M&um%mﬁ! tillian, mpmsemtmgan ‘inciease.of 14% qm'm




i
|
i
\
i

- rieE premiin el daney ‘picerded Y3% bs Wnifed

2002 RESULTS COMPARED YO 2001 RESU (& 5

Consofidated Financlal Resutts

Reavonues

Consslidatsd revepuginicreased by approximately §1, & hillion,, or 1%, in 2902 o $25:0 billion. Strong
growih acions our-business segments was partially offset by the inpacs of tangeted-wWithdrawii from
unprofiable risk-based arrangements with cuaGmers using. wuldple healih beaelitcarriers, and
withdrawaly ang bcncﬁtdemgn changes.is our Mcdstatc%otce productaﬁcnng forcertain markets.
Foljowing iva: discumion of 200? consolidated revgrue trends.for rach revenuc-component.

Pramium Hevenves. Consofidaccd premium revenues in 9002 16taled $91.9 biflion, an increase of

fak,

: jllkm, w!ﬁﬁ compared with 2001, Premitum revenies; from Uﬂiledﬂu]thcar:’smmemal
fiskased produs incressed by apprexioately. $1.5 vitlian, 3 i

Sisstniess: This ctaase was paktially offset by thic effécis f s :
Fiskibasgd:drrangements with custamery using muidpie! Tigalch beriehi i b;ﬁ in pmduéi
mix Feom riskibased to Teebased products. Dunngm theumber ofndividudls served by
-Upitcdlfalzh ; tmmmcrcm] fisk-based: prpﬂugu dectmd by lﬂﬂ,ﬂw.nriﬁ _
el md' smn miliion;

Sﬁmlnﬂhon m&\liwb“ill:on bcmu.wc nf]a!armcd  eittidrawaly st hﬂncﬂ .

' marh:txundcmken in reyponse to insufficicnt Medicsre: progmm rﬂrdbmma 1t

revenuesfrom, Medicaid  programsincreased by. §450 eifilion l«ﬁLﬁ ba'iim‘n i !092 Morc llian half
p&i&hon relz:cd to the acqtﬁs;dnm’of '

Mcdzcaﬂ::w pﬁ:mcm producu pmvsdcd 10'AA ) fHEV 5. In
‘Epediatived Cire Services realized a $140 niillion ncresséd prcmu.:m peiiésin. 2002

'-'Mmﬂmnuea Scnnce reveiues in- 2002 toml:d $2. 9 hzmom a;xmcrease ol‘sm LIII_O!;, or 16%.
: ] oﬂi% in t.hc

_nited}{!'althmre wevice rmnuﬁp:ww:n gy Y
' uf_mm O\rati:ms thqwm enﬁf _' &

) o'l“$ﬁ1 uiil!mn.m‘??!- from 2001 Interest incoriie décreated

niinvestments in 2008 compared with 2L, partiathy office by mpacwf 2

mdﬁxed&ncmucmxsmcnts Net pealized EEP]II' Jozsering mmﬂ’saﬂ
t;miw;d upnatgzim of $li mll!ion in 2001 Them ue:wwdim& capitalfosies werk fmatnly duc to sates
i h adgwmmunimtwnsmdmu‘ylmd
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WMedical Costs

The consalidated medical tare ratio decredsed froin B5.5% in 2061, was.ewmm Fmdud?hﬁﬂ;c
AARPbuiiness, the-oteiopl ére ratié devkenied by 250 basis okt from83.48% i 2001 o B3.4%
ﬂooz wmmmwmmmemdm care Fatio decrease toniedd

anmno.hmantha}méﬁngmmmhrgwcmmm - Aoty 2
degreascd approxininiely 90 hasts pobits tiecanse of withdrawals and: maxdqun chanmbw gresih
Medicare marketr periaintfig e our Medicase+Choice offcring. The-balames of the decreaseil the-
medical ¢ gare. uﬁum,mm;y driven bydnnse:m pmduc{aaihunm'm&.m Enagels




‘Business Segments

Thi {ollowkg srmmarizes the gperating resalty of ur business segrens for the yeary: mded December 31
il

REVENUES

n Unhedl-lcalthcan‘ wmnmerdal prcl‘mu.m Fevtiiues; 'I‘hﬁ mdmtri h;'auc _
mcmam iniaxcess of 18% on ﬂ:nwmg commse I riskbaged business,: partidlly foﬁ'!el
i ' skl rrangement with commercial

_ mh!m ey freit Medicatd: ‘Programs
‘increased hywo paitliown In mz of WHiEH 5240 fnillicn related 16 theacquisition of AmeriChaice on
+ September 30; 2002, Offsetting these theredses, Medicaré+Chioite foémiing téveniics decreased by,
4850 millionasa resule of planned 'mthdhmals-and benehil design changesin-ceftiln marken in
tagqme 10/ msuﬂiaem Medu:z.rc pmgram re:mbnm-mcnt rafes. Thc ‘balance of Bea.llh C.arc Services™

'bm&im(&iub&hcd 0 Jiaeow 2001 -
Hﬁaith Cuﬁ‘&:mm reaﬁzed eamlngs frd mH mnﬁom af$IA billign uﬂﬂﬁ?,au rncrcss: of

300'1 ona ?‘AS‘N. "'1!‘2 mmpamhlereponing basin.-‘i‘im!inmm
glneon UmtﬁHaaldrum’u commerciil viskbased produzts; mmmmhmd-upcming
H vemen) ,1cehno!ogy daplujmcﬂiaﬁdcoumamgmml
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UnitedHealtheare’s commercial médical care ratio decreased by 230 basis potots from 84.1% in
2001 1o 81.8% 0 2002, Approwimately 130 buisls points nﬁhewmmwmitmﬁh!m LY eqrm
sesyltedt from rapgered withdrawddls from ifecfitabic dskehaves mw;mmﬁﬁ:m ', -
cQomers :alngmﬂtiﬂtmrim v @ thift o comnerds! canomes iz with
prerivium rewines Bertved from small businews cistomers: Thiess empléyerigravpsy
mediaﬂ m_m'mmh@zw@mﬁgmmlmmm ey

edical cae ravig was primiarily ttven by changes produetiili sire: mmcmt--.

unviﬁesm&uuf v Fate increases that exéeaded overallindical ben dfit wost indroaiés.

Thie folldwisg Yable Bimmuarizes the numberiof individusls seirved, by tnujer markey: ugmmmnd
l'qndinga.rmgémnt. arof December 31

Bpdasiehd
ﬁmnmerﬁﬂ_
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' Sgﬁﬂﬂﬂcd&lt Servicexhad reveitues of $1.5 billion in 2002, an increase of $955 siitlion, or 20%, aver

BA0L. Thisiricréase was privcipully driven by §140 million of revenyeigrowth from Specteri it vision
care bénefity busines acquited in' October 2001, and an increase in the namberolindividuals served by
United Bebiavioral Healeh, its mental heals beaefits brsiiiess, and Dentat Benefic Providers, s dental
Eseninge frony opreations reached $286 mitlion in 2002, an increase over 2001 of §72 inilbon, or
34%, on i reporied basis and $66 million, or 0%, an & FAS No. 142 comparabic reporting basis. .
Spetialited Care Sérvices  operating marg iricréased ©019.0% in 200%, wp From 17:¥% 00 a reported-
basis and from 17.6% on a FAS No, 142 compriablé reparting basis in 001 This intrease was driven by

 operationd xod productivity imp rovemerits; pariially offser by a shifting Badiness ik (oward higher

revenuse, lowermargin products. With the growdyofthis segment;wé.beaneonsdlidating production
sndiserficy operationg o asegmentwide service sad productioninfrastructors to'lmprovesenice

quality v consiitoncy s nikenhances productivify and effidiency

Revenues were $491 million in 2007, an incresse of §44 million, or 10%. over 20GT . Ty was thé resule

of suong ficw business growth in the health informatian busingss andevenyesfrom atgquited:

bulinesses, partialiy ffsct by eeduced evennes n the pharmaceutical servicen business.
BB aperations weré §38,miliiod, up $7 mitlio

and doin $14 miliicn, or 20%. from 2001 oo 3 FAS No. 142

macgin s 13536 2002, up From 10175 1 2001 an # repofis

¥AS Noi 142 comparable reparting basi. The reduction i sl

elrat opEraBREIRA OpEGUTY
margin oo ¥ FASNg. 142 compamiile reporting basiy was dne toieantellatons aiid delayed certalii
‘elinifenl res Jlvby phavmaceuticuliclients; whick weralfected yweak industryapacific
conditipris, This reduedion was pastially offser by stroiig busineysgrowthandal '
'ﬁ'{irg‘iti's'ih"ﬂ:c'_hﬁhh infontiafion business. :

 Goeporate

Carporate includes costafor ceriain companywide p roccss improsemeit injuatives, a6t expenised from’
-éh‘;ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ-’t:équjﬁqﬁﬁns.tg_;lg‘c_' Uniteil-Health _}r‘qunr;ati_on-a_ﬁd-el'imingﬁoﬁs of in;‘d'négm'é'm
(eansciins, The decrgase o corporate expenses of $14 million from 5001 40 2002 refiects the
Completisn duribg 200! of certain comparywitle progess improvementinilatives. '
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FINANGIAL CONDITION AND. LIQUIDITY AT DECEMBER 31, 2003
‘Wcmu:gemmh ineementyand capital shrottare ¥ we aré able b wect the shofad

obligataitofonr busingss while mafraiing aoong fhaclal Botitlity and giddiey -
&nab‘ae m&manfmt i dast Adiee mcﬁthﬂewdmrmwnmnaﬁnmcm,gmw o

WAERy:
Waymmm@ﬁmtuﬂrﬁmﬁomnpaﬂﬂ;imqﬁqﬂfwm
wb:h_tianu m!nthefumufmh costhi iy mlmmmdtnmunmu&ﬂe‘r




Cash and investmonits

Cash flows from operating activities was $3.0 billion in 2003, representingan’ increase:over 2002.af '
$580 milllon, or 24%, Thisinersase in dpératidgcash ﬂmrcsul:ed priviarily. fmm anincrease

of $454 miliion in'net ifcoime excluding depreciation, amortization and other ‘toticash ftems,
Additiotally, pperating cah flows increased by $126 giitlion due roicasth gadrated by working capitel
changes, driven primatily byan increase in medieal costs paysble. As prémium fewnucsand refated
medical costs incroase, we generate incremenial operating cash flows becanre wechllect premium
révenues in advance of (he ciaim payments for related medical costs.

‘We msintained 4 strong financial condition'and iiquud‘ity position, with czub 2nd invesonenos
&E$9.5 bitlion & Devéotber 31, 2008: Total cash and investmerils incroased by $3:] bil!wn since
Becember 31, 2002, piimarily duc 10 $2.2:billion it cash dnd invéitinents adquired-i in the Cotden fule
acuiidon inNovembier 2608 and strodig apésating cash fiaws, partislly olfies iy dapitad cxpenditrres,
buainmaacqmmitur cashiand common atock teplirchass, :

As furghendescribed under “"Regulatory Capital andiDividend Rcminhom. mnyfofourmbddwdﬂ
are ml‘gect 73 various govr.mmml, rcgulmpns that. reatrict tlwurmnxu ud MOUH: o!' d.widmds and

remaindervas muhble fqr genemi curpome use, mc!udmg«mqhﬁhdm am} m_-fcpurchm
Flmndng and. inxasﬂng Ats;l?mes

:‘y. 91,2
had commertial ] pq_:er anddebtouumndmg of: apprommw!y 32 D iiitariand 3. &bjﬂluﬂ.mpc;tmﬂy
Qurd htwﬂmtnuom prgt 3 and EB“S% o ofﬂecemher!l wm- ".‘. Sgmber ?-'v'l \Mﬂ

ormlvcd is-al:qu aud .rmognund avierthe lifegtihe: ngtcmnam ak: m&djmmentfn W
e inthie mﬁhredﬁummu of Qperatings. We ysed ﬁmpmc&l‘mmtﬁmebormﬁngs o
naccial paper and term debr maturing in 204; . '
i sm’%mwmndxms Mﬁn agylsionsar

ouuundlng im&cr o :r'edu faellitiey,
Qurdebmmngcmcais anid: credufaenlnui:s cafiain vammm b ihe m@ttﬁtﬁﬁi@e#! _

exc*ccd spmﬁcd.ni‘mfmum Inu:mt covcrago levcl; Wc an: mcomp!;mce wiﬂt the reqmremena of afl
dcht COVERADNS,

82 “Usiited¥eaih Gruup




mkwwLWWWWadwnmmi__ -
10asleap '_..'t_szinn#_ﬂ‘i‘-_or

prldngmd dnilng i)urlng 200!.% :epnmhiwdﬁ mﬂiunthamaﬂn aveﬂgc pﬂmdf nppmﬁmﬁy
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Contraciual Obligations, Off-Balarice Shaet Araigeinaiits And Commtinets:
“The fellowing table summasizes funure vbligations-dve. hrpedod«uoﬂ)ﬂ:eﬂwrﬂ #6003, ander our
vaviowr contrzetul dbligadons, otfehxlmmhutwmgemmu and commitnents tm wsillions):

Dett anidt Goritmarcial Paper $ s 3 iuo § 900 § ™ 357
Operitiig Leases o3 T 4 0 623
Pirchase Obligations® 83 H 14 - 9%
‘Future Palicy Bestefins® 160 20 P65 ‘062 168
Qiher m‘l‘mﬂ %‘ﬂmﬂ‘ - - @_ 178 - m
Total Contractual Obligasions $ 375 $ 974 $1,888 $1.776 $403

1mmumymummwmdw=mummmmwmwmmam
3 uum mdmmmﬂernmw pmwlpuw%orm amlnm

> S % i _
‘1MWWMM¢WMW“‘ noiny sicrrsd prnch: 'tﬁdn[tndm'

Corrently, we do:ror Nave sny:ofhermaysiil conmacsnil nﬁ&gauom,oﬂiwamhmﬂmmuo;_ -
cotnimitmenits thiat cequive cush Tesonriess ewevenwe sontinully'evalnate opporman 20 10 expand

oyr.operations. Fhisinciudes interial deselopment of sewproducty, pmgnaﬁ nnd technology
‘applications, snd may iivlude acquisitiony:

ABGULATORY CARITAL AND hhﬂjnsgm:nn'afizicnﬁus

mh Aate. mﬂ mimﬂhnﬁmlngwd mmﬁﬂﬁtdcnds s thies Hisribp OB Y _axbﬂsﬁd 14
thelr ;mrem companiet; Generally, the atount o dividend dieributsn st maybe pald by i Figulated
subsidiary. withouppriorupprovel by sate regula sogy stitharities, it Huatled Based o the gririty’s lewil
of statutoty net inbome and mamioyy capital and suxphus. The agencies that sxsess curcredinartifiicas
-algo: :amidermp{w adegiiacy levels whien eaatiflibingour: Qebrravings. Consineny wilh durdhient
~ to malntain-ouriebior dcbtnﬁng: in tHETAT tinge we frainiakivan AERICGALE Mattary: capltal level
forour mguhmtmbﬂdiaﬁamu i significheddy lhigh«mmhemnham‘lml rbﬁuhtm require.
Asof Bmmhprm. ms. o rnguhlédsnhmdﬁmu hiid sggreiate ataunmfuplmhfmmﬂmmir

. Bilion,: aifical t.b'mnm than 1thminfmhm mguhmqmgm&mmu

B Uatedtieait Onivp




CRITICAL AGCOUNTING no;.{c‘iia‘é: ANS BEATIMATES

Cdiﬁi:a'i aqwummg yolic 'mﬁo%mhek;ﬁmteqm managcmul:w nﬁ&e hie md&%&

mh&emlywm:a md m;yéhaagmeueni chaﬂds Crincnlmmtmﬁ ol L
ﬁﬁgmumdm&zﬂim ilint aremﬁatnﬂysmﬁuw 7% r«mﬂt i mwm‘ u:;ulu der

Conmin&mﬁnwmm" o

Revdnuss
Remu«aw prim::pali}demvdﬁmq Hicalsty mhx;umu pmnﬁum.%&c’m;nizz;}iﬂm Ty R ¢
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Ty osdldr 10 Evaluite the tiipsict of changes In medical cost estimates (arany panicuhx digcrese
period; anic shouid consider tioth theamonnt of develapment recarded fn fheicireitperiod
prtaining 1o prior. penod: and the amount 6f devélopmicnt recorded in mbacquempcnqu pefdining
aothe currens peried, The accompanying table provides a summury of thenet impact of favarible
devélopment on medical costs and camings from aperadons (in m:lhom)

Fairabie Nt dmpact oni. _ Medical Costy

_ Oiveipioery  Miodical G 1) R AR TR s K
2000 LD $(amn $ 16185  $151e0 s 1.200 $ 1215
2001 $ % $ @l BInGE $17808 $ 156E 3 1606
2008 t Y0 $ 180 $18192  $.182 $ Li86 ¢ 2266
5008 3§ 150 {e) $ 90,714 {),  $ 398 [{+}
'.uimmatdwﬂe top dodin the r ,wpmdnlnpu!htprm:wkﬂlhhM&ﬂﬁm

dﬁﬂnmmﬁm&r&h&r_" meuons peak priaiateiy 6 st cuckent jedel

) g r ﬂw@-tommzndmmdmwemmc
0. Nok 'mmmynmmwmmmmkmmrmusazmnm; it mwuwrmumbersl 2008
“medizl Fous bR eitliiaid devhipe thronghaut UM,

Ourtstlnumof medical vosts payable represents munagement's best estimare of the compny's
i _for unpmd m@sjwﬂl costs w5 of Decernber 81, 2008, developed wiing. consitently: ppbed
ot zmounmfmadscai CosLe gayﬁh mred

nuthn.ccm.bér a1, ﬁﬁﬂ dstiniates of wedicat m&p:@ v ; i
buﬁm:u 208-carnings from opcrations wauld incredse oe decrease. by a;:pmmma[élr‘&! mmum sirid
di ey c;mfngfpcrmmmon ihane would inerease ordeerease” bynppmx:mntciym% pes shave:

Mof Elmmbcr?ul 2003, we'had approximately $7:2 bittion of invesiments, pnmauly Teld in
mm:kcume Hebuseauriies. Ourinvesanents are pring pally classified 2 avatlable forsaleand are
tecorded at tmrv-.ﬂue We exq:ludc unrealized inyand losses on mmum!ms awlahlc far sale from
ramingsaid report them wogeiher, nét afisicome taxefferts, asa separate camgonent in. sharch;ﬂders
Equiity. We. comimsally monitirshie diference Bétuten ihe cost and Gair valieol OUF Inistments. As of
- Bt 31,003, cutihvesiirents tiad gross writealizéd gaind of $238 MilliGh aiid groiiunseatized
fomies OT$7. Aition. I¥ any Bf dur inveliments éxpeiicnce x declire i faivvalie (it de
iy, based o mlyﬁso{mbwm facinrsgwe record & fealized b

garent uimclvcdm c.ulwnmg mtfler

iy e b o indis m_,.m;m e encyse
mmﬂ mﬁﬁlémal Secyfides, and wﬁome-dgbt whmnna th;t Are mmq&; gride., -

faicaltié ofah: mpecmﬂ aiteis, I ihiesc c;ﬂmlu ortheis relafed a;ssumpﬂnm

we oray be n:qmrgd to recbrd irmpairmens ehax;ges fior thitse aaséts.
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Lantingent Liabiities

‘Becaune of the nawmris.of our businesses; weare r_uuuncly quived in, varives dupumkwgal ?;'_‘f

and; {anditsand investigations: Weng _xlim fop out 3 '“'xﬂf;htpmba‘

mgtfnngﬁnmﬂxm matters, Otr sstinatesarg dovdloped in consul : :

Qm!‘. i hiped upeh —ivanadyss of poléniial ressit, axwming & combinailon oflitigmnn m@s«#ﬂmmx

Ak coisidering our insuvinge mﬁgcs, ifany; for such. tratfers: Wc an ot bet oy

Cirténty.threatened ot pcndmgwill-hm & magesidl adverse ¢ fFect 00 OGF CoISH dap(ed_.

Finvarieial potition or resulls of operations. It ispmble hewever, that fitare renits sfoperitoss for

‘anyparticalar puartecly ardnnwal period tonfd b taaterialty affeeted by Shiangés i out extitmiates or.

. Tiahedtinth Geonp ‘92




Altkough the resuhs atpcndmg,hugmon aceahvays. urm:rmm wit: do nat: hcin_w: the resulus of any
Suglyictiont.currenty thiestaned orpending. sniclisdingthose desceibed 3] will, mﬂiﬁduﬂlg orin
agiiregarte, have.a marerial ddverse effect an- ‘dur consolidated financiil poy tiqn 9,; yesultuafy opcrauom

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALtTATIVE DISCLOSURES ABDUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of chiangesin the fafr value of a fi financial instrament éaised by. changts =
intereit rates and equity prices: “Thecomjpany's primary market risk is exposure @ changesin interest
‘vrses that could impact the Fair valie of pur frvestoienss, and long-term deb. '

Appmmm;tdiﬂ?.ﬂ Hiltion of ourinvesiments at Deceaiber 31, 2003 weie fixed-iricomie. securitics.
Auummg a hypothetical and imiediate 1% incredse oF dedrease in interédt rates applicable o gurfixed-
income investmenyportfolio at December 31, 2008, the faiv vatue of our fixed-dnenmne Hvdsunéntiwauld
decréase or increzsé by appeosimately. $340 @iman,\ﬁ'e-uumgc our mv:amwmpnfolta 4o fimirour
‘expoaure 1o any ode iBuRr grindusivy and argely limipour nvestmienss o U 5 E}aventmcnland&gmcy
securities, staté and sminicipal soidirien spdEorporens debt phligalion

Toanirigate the: firlancfal ibpact of Changes ir in ‘imﬂmﬂm. we haw.»' e ]
agreemcnu to more doscl;- mateh l]te mwreat Firéd 6f dur-long-eih debrwiih dhidee of btxr cash _
!rmludmg the hngacmfnur interest mcmp eEments;

bnnedncnlmﬂmux budumm m‘iw&puhli'c and mmq:‘ bli' companie mnccmmeﬁ Hvihe greids
af health care deliveryand related ffiprmation’ mchﬂoksw ‘Markerconditions’ dirAEgcr e valie
-ofhesith care ortechnology pogkswill fikewlse:impact tie waluc: of our cquity. portl‘ol:m

CONCENTAATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Anvestments i financjal uuunmenuemch gy riarketatile securilierand accouniy mtemhle sy sithject
UnitedHealth. Graap ‘b bandentraticns o Crédit sk Chrinvesyne s i mirkeal “gecuritisare’
managed under un investment poﬁqmmodzcd Sy our board of divectons: This pliicy Jimitethe
amounts chatmay be' invegted' o any one mwaudgmmuﬂy ity ouiinvestmenls (6 U8 Gavarmment
! £¢and: qqmm%c dcbt ohug?ﬁmthatminmmmt

'_rw
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ot rish mhymumncuml mmltxand carpnmz dsmlopmcau todi:ﬂ‘crmwﬂzﬂy
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Congolidated Statements of Operations

et i, exizt pev sure datal : ] doag 01

REVENUES
Presiyms $5M8  B2%06  $068Y
Services 18 2804, 2490
Invesument-and Other-fncome 95T 290 281
Towl Revenues o ETs gn00 28543

MEDICAL AND OPERATING COSTS
Medical Costs 20714 18,192 1764¢
Qpecatng Costs §878 4,887, 3,914
_ Diépreciation-and Amasiigation i) 255 265

chvwifics on OpemiTIONs. | R S
Intetost Expense L : ) _ 90} 484y

EARNINGS GEFORE INCOME TAXES : 2,840 2095 1,472
Pm\dsibnforlnemneTucs _ S {1.0151 _ f?‘i!() _ {5593

NEYEMRNWGS — Sy s oImer 8 My

BASIC:HET CARNINGS PER CORMON SHARE. _ S B § ems % e

GituiEy NEUEARBINGS PER GOMMONRNRE . §. 28§ 8% 0.
-BNBI WEIGHTED-AVERKGE NIGHER BF coMION _ L _
SHARES-GUTSTANDING s8e. 7 615,
DULUTIVE EFFECT'OF OUTSTANDING STOCK.OPTIONS bich :

BHUTED WEIGHTEDAVERAGE RUMSER'OF COMMON _ ]
"SHARES OUTSTANDING o o Bl7. . . 636 Bicad

e Naterto Conolkated Kivanclat Sisteniciis
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Consolidated Baldance Shests

B sl except por e i)

ASEETS.

Covrent Assets _ B -
Cash svid Cai Equivalents § % $ L
BhiothTetm Liitnenis : & ' 01
Acceiity Recrfvable, 316t of allowanes. orss:s and $85 & 64
Aseot§ Undler Matiigenieai 2,018 2069
Peferred hiteng Taxcs. ‘269 289
_ Gty Current Kvany. . 398 22

 Towl Currens Adl B, 51

mgrcmmamu _ b3
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Gonsolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

m
-
.
=
2
-
b4
-
&

Eszances of Common Stock,
ard délajed uxbededts
Cartiprehensive Income
Net Eprnings
Otlser. Comprd1en.uvc Income-Adjusiments
Change i Net Unealized Cping

on Juvestments, nict of tax.effects {46) {46} {16)
Caing ‘heduive Income ' ) $ 88T
Catiiriorn Bf-ideﬁd e 5L - o, s A8

= 1 - - 4N
“38) (88 - iy

T -
I

Som
BALANCE AT-DEFEMRER 31, 3000 TS
22
39

i

]
-
—
EF

H]
s
e
"
)
—
H

H
H
1
1

WALANCE AT a:?:thnm an, Zoor - o L ) S L I 7))
‘Rguatices.of Conyivon Stock, . . _
and felated tax bevichis: - - 95 - - . 805
Glmnm &ockiﬁlmmhm Ay - TIEY (L) - (B

- - - LA52 - 1352 $1382

. - - S PR ' 1 104

- - - O . I

BALAKCE AT-DECEMBSR 31, 2002 599 § 170 4104 . T8 4al8
ismmcu oF rammu Smck. ' : : : .
(55). = BOn 0,00 - {1807

hetﬁmm,gs < - - 1,875 - 1825 §14895
‘Cther.Comprehensive: lnmeadju.suncnm
Change-in Net-Uprealized Galis
cnlmmnu.mofm lleas - = - - L U 1
. Comman Stck-Dividond L mR L - o = L

_BALANCE ST oEbEMSER 31,3008 EB S 6§ . MG SO AWM

- Bie Noses ta Conmind Financiut Sitenents
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

85 srfcn)._

GPERMTING ACTVITICS
Netﬁamings

N’ctﬂhmgg- iy ﬂthrr: Gperaﬂug Ygeans, not of effects:
fromuacquisitions, salas of subsidiaries and changes
i AARE-Salanbes

Accoumis Recetmble and Othier Curteot Adsots

- Msgial Costs Paable.
-AELON m and mﬂmﬁﬂm




Notes to Consolidated Financiatl Stataments
1 DESGRIPTION OF BUSINESS

UnitedHealth Group Incorporsied (also refecred to UnitedHealth.Group,” "the compatiy.” "we,”
“vs,” and "our”) i§ 7 national leader in forming dad Operitm i orderly, efficient fngrkets for the
cxchange of high quality health gnd well tieing smim’m‘mugh slrzlcgicall}r ahgned. maiket-defined
Vusinesses, we-olfcr health care actcss, bénefisand related Sdministrative, tethnology and information
scrvices designed to enable, facilitate and advimccoptimal Trealth care.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIRG POLICIES

Dasls of Pregantation '
We have prepared the consalidated: financial spmemeny according toacvounting principles, genarally
acceptedin dye ‘United Statesof Amcnca'mdhmﬁnq!ml' s stcounty of UnitedHealth Croupand .
its subsidiaties, Wehave: eliminated all signd ﬁtgwbmpaayhﬂan;qmﬂ_lmﬁm&
Use-of Esﬁmmgs _
I‘husr.- comoiltiawd financial saements indudb»mmmmaum thum bas_ed o pus ben esiimatet
wnd judgments Thiesé. estimates require v gpply TamBEL AT ol apd, judgmmti. éftcn tnczmc -
we TuET mAk e Eatiaiated abiout the effents S Wl arg tiherentyi 1 Wil .
. mb;cquempcﬂnds The mﬂna(gnzﬁmm sriirarcarelie cdica! Loty Mﬂ] ;_uy;ﬁlc. o
FRvERiscy cortingent labiitiersndiasetialiations, Alfdwancensnd 1m9mmmch-anmt these
#htirvated cach: pmom aswore citren informadin becoimdiataiiable. The ithpact sany- changesin
© eatimates i included i the determinedon: «afiearningsin‘the periodin which the esiimare Is adjmwd

Rayehues.

Presdiind reventies are primarily doriwedd f:w&mkbascd 'h&ithinmmm m-angcmenu {n which tbc
presbu is fixed, typaczliy for a one-year pcr‘iod am!' % ASEH e econopic sisk of fanding our

‘ miniutratm:-smn e mcngm:q:rmﬁum _mmues in the

customers’ health care services and related 3

pcnod inwhich cltgzb!r: indinad u.a‘s areent e’d

premiom payménis we receive from urcusto!

- premilums., '

" iService revenués consist primarily of fees, derived” fmm MeTvCEs pcrﬁ:rmuf fof Chstodrers that 36IF-

friserie l}i'é-m_cﬂtdl-ﬁﬁﬂ‘fs’:df their employess dnd sheindepaidenis Under sewvice foe CONIFRCTE, We.

rcmxmr.c manne inthe penndmm‘e}aeﬁ sen}cuimpﬁ?umed baset) upen the fee charged 1o the
: ingumiedical M@mwsmyl_ ey and {hcrr

dﬂclqn aﬁxﬁ#xﬁsfurmediﬂl sty
cohslsteary dpplicd, ccnhﬂtymnuolla& 6 ad

timé from dake of service w: claﬂtutuxpt. elain backlbg -_'prﬁvddeuommﬂ meehangel. medicil case

&4 UnitedHonlth Ginu




_cqmumplion nud ather mcdzcal cost u*enda Ka.ckpemd, wt:m-euminc previously. ambhshcdmg&ﬁ;l :

i) '_,_,"in fxmandctr uﬁﬁ#an?ﬁ

:d!mtlm !ﬁ nrc:y u:pomug pctiétl. bm‘npem(nig remﬁa fnqhticlﬂ:; ffecis of @re

sfied shédical coits puyatile estifuiiet aisociaicdwillt pressoisdy reporiod pesiods.:

Gush, Gash Bquivalouls and Investments:
Cash atid cjsh equivilants are highty liquid: Srevestiiesits: with an ong‘mal aturify of three tnonthxar
Iess The i \.-aine of cash and ansh equm!m uappwmmates }hurwng value bemxse nf rhcthwn




We calculate depreciation and amortization using the attmghtelmzme_xhodmm“dm eatiinted usefl
{ivex of tHe gsieis, The usefil lives fov frapeiy, equ;pmcmmdcapughtpdﬁhmire.d‘mm thiee 1o
sevén yéars for furnitire, Bxares nd squipment: ffomm 35 1o 4byean forbididingeiliediorier of the
useful fife or remaimng jease teim for leasehatd :mprmmenu. and frofnthice wi dineyear for
capitalired software. The weighted-average useful tife of prapéciy, equipment.and. cnpauﬂzcd oftware
4t Degember 81, 2008, wus approximarely fve years.

The nét bopk valae of property ard:equipment was, $503 million andﬁeo itiion.gs of
December 81, 200% arid 2002, réspeetively: The net budk value ofcapu&hzzi!wfmm wai $529 million
and $465 million as of Decernber 31, 2003 and 202, respeciively.

Goodwill and Othet intungtle Assets

Goiodwill represtots thie amdunt by which the purchase prife st (ragsadon Chsa G busincsscs we
have:acquired exceed:the estirhaed fair valise of the net tangible assersnd: sepam;demlﬁahlc
intanglvle sssets of these hu&nnsesf(snodwm and mnngxhwmu with uiseful lives are not
ampietized, but are: mtqim feast asinuglly tengitile s’ u: d{;a;u: wschul livesare
ashiortized on 4 airilght-line basis over l_t*cl_\_..um&ttd sl Tives. :

Lonq-uved -Assets

Wo review longdives) assets; mcludm Ppropes, cgmﬁmmh mpuﬂiuﬁ aolweud ingible ascts,
- fGreveitE o chiudgenif & in; "valuc

We coniificy maoyfactars uxdudmg eftinated fub '

sitake i aten. An impairmesit.chirge 8 recorded floc;ambumby \ get! -

exceeds Hs'estimated firvalue, We recordussets: held for sileat the lower af ‘dmr carfymg amoumt oF

fairvalue, lessany casts !onhc final settement;

Other Rolicy Latitities:
Oithier poticy liabilitiesinclude:the rate stabi lizat g
customer balances related 1o expericngrudted ingucance producsand die cusrent pogtion of fuwure
pblu:yhend'tsfot Me lnsunmcc and orityacts, Custymer bﬂirif.cs f«gzmm :xccu clisteTher
paymentsiand deposic agcounts’ uqderu;ﬁmencz-mtcd contraces. ALIHES . thy
Baldsces inay be refunded Gr iwed (o pay fusure premitinsor chiims auﬁer ::l;g‘hle oRiracts.

'.'im:mm ; an-&mrcpxu@ntucmmbﬂhmu hacacerue

toihe bmcﬁmf the pnhcrhé!den. mlmd.mgmrrmde; charges for uniemal life and investment
_ mnmtypmducm

. Wiy ; et SR
mthagbdm&pcmmmmeﬂ‘h_ :h-m' _ i teith and

i X
viay be mmiled.upon 8§ daypr mdct'by_eiﬂmr thémmpany or the cubiet..
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Stock:Based Conipensation

.mmtpﬁnqmgfm&‘ P l ' 8 Gpimonm 34 i u: ﬁx Lk
,wﬁmplayces: &mrdhmh' m&onpuwm.wmw”“mm imi! " “m .

Vﬁm &}Ib. e M@WWQF Statoment. of‘Fmanqd accquﬂﬁr‘jsmm 5}
“Accauniting for StaskBased Compeasation;” wastockhbssed einployes compensation.




recognize a Rability for the fair value.of the. obligation assunied under the guarantee; 4) frterpretation
No:46. “Cansolidation of Variatile Interest Entitier—an {hterprmnmaf ARB Mo, 51,"wiich requires
a enterpﬁsc 10 contolidae wvarlable Jnverest eadity i shat caterprise Mas 3 varfible tnterest that will
bkt a majerity of the ety xpedtpd 1wds, feceive a-mijoiity of the: enu:}f‘sexpcqwd fesidual
reiyrns, or bath; 31 FAS Ne. 149, "Améndment of Sxtaméni 135 on Darivative Jastrpients and
Hedying Activities,” which amendiand clarifies. uccunungfordcﬂwuw: tnstriments sind hedging
aetivities under FAS No: 188, Accoummgfur Derivative Insmruments and: Hcdgmg:\c{tnnes‘"and £}
FAS No. 150 =Agcounting for Certain Fimmi Inscrurpents. with Chmcmuu of Both. Liabilitics and
‘Bqulity”™ which eqeablishes standards for classifying-and méasud ng s labilitiey sertain freestaiiding
financial instriantents that represent obfigatiotis 6f the isuer and have charfacteristics of hoth liabilities
-anfl equity.

HDMMGM

LB and SO0 witionisin the consalidited Grancial suttments have beei rechigified 1o
cwform to thp 2003 ipresentation: Fhese reclasstiicaions Have no efféct on néleamings.or
ahzrchol&m equisyas previoustyreported.. '

3 AGQUISITIONS

. OnFebruary 10, 2004 dar Health Care Servicdd Bisincasaegment scquinsd’ AtAnRGE Medical
S‘cnices Tnc, (Mﬂ MARE! offers 3 brodd rangof ‘health care coveragéand itied Administrative
3 for mdmdtm}s-md cmgloycn in t}wmtgls&dmtk rcg-an of lhc UnitedSwtcs Thu :nexger

mt&é! wri '”ommﬂuni-_ - b .
: SEAMIST. shmhoidgnmﬁ:g m;ham‘n!'ﬁnmdﬂm

approximately §2.7 billfion; cmnpmcd of 964 :mlimn aﬁm&s oE Uniwdﬂealth-: G £oton stotk
‘{ratued zt§1.9 blilion busedian the dverageof UnfedEéalth Group's share closing price for o days.
before, t‘heﬂq'of and mdays aftes. !hc acquisition sanguncementdate of ‘Pretaber 37,5008} and

§ : ated with the: acqmsmongmndcd du:

' prfmm‘l; of mmﬁﬁxﬁmn&wmmwéig&i i : :

: ' rv”Fhe pequiited Wlu notdeductible for iﬁob;me _ gpom P

fufrvalu® oi' -mpg&ﬂcmp«f(halﬁlides) as oftﬁcuqmsman diate; which:
et
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“Theresulis-of operations and Briancial condition of MANS] Mave riot biees indutied inour

Condoliddted Siaterhenits af Operationsior Consplidated Balutice Sheets thisgths acquisition elosed,
‘wher Décenbers], 2005, The vnandited proforma ﬁumahnﬁnmm_m ?
A acquitition. of MAMSThad occurredias of thebaginning of exch eee
mmumammam forsma effect of Uniueiicaliti Gmupm

g m«m pn?tiotrﬁf 6 mmwmzmm‘l mmmc
tarieffeces Fthe piro formaadjisinienis: Bicatns the: ymatidhed pro formafinancial infarmation hay
bcen pm'pared basad on pmhmimq hsummorﬁxrwues. Mmlml mwnn,mmded a:afzhe

Iatemexpm;e!ﬂcd m . 3 nt ;




Effecsive September 30, 2002, ke acquited AsieriChoice Carporation (AmeriChoice), a leading
orgnization engaged i fcilitating hiealth Egive: Denetits and peivices for Megleald beneficiaries in.
thte itates of New York, New Jetvey and Penhsylvatiia. We tntégraued our exditing Medicait bisificay
with AmeriCGholee within the Health Care §crvices reporiing segment, éreating efficiencios irom the
consolidstion of ghysician sud health care provider nenworks technology platforms and gperutions.
We issued 53 million shies of gur commisi stock with » fair value of approximately $480 milionin
exchange for 98:8% of the Gtsanding AmetiOholcs comimonsiock. We aliolswicd vested stogk aptions
with afalr value dfapproxisately $15 rillio in exchange for owtsranding stock options held by
AmeriChoice -crr_rpluyéu and paid: cash ofippmﬁmatﬂy-w-:ﬁﬂiidﬂ.'i‘iﬁi:i‘ilr”&bf_péfﬁﬁ eiinting
AmeyiChaice debr. The purchase priceand vonts associated with the aequisition-of appragimately
3577 million excecded the esiimated fais value of the nevngible assew wcquired byapproximaicly

A3, taltiow. The ekces purchise: gasiigned tojgoodeiliin the amoyn of $438 mlilion;and
finitedivedintingible sasets, pranly cosvmer fonlrda,In e E§56 llive. Tho weighted-
averageuméfol e of e friite-tved totaggible dtiets Wit Approdimdtily THe sogulred goodvil

Tenpt deductiblfor income trx purposss. Wewill dcquifethe sémaiitiy sideriy aterestin OGHEr

9007 ¢ a-value baed on 2 ynylkiple of the earnings of thie cqrifined Bedieiid butiness We bave the
opfionta scquire die minority nterest dtan carlierdate ispecific eventrocy 3uch as (he rermiloation
or cisigniation SFREy AmieriCHoles emplayess. The resuli ofioperaiiun focAteriChaleringe the
aequtiition dite v boen inchided in duir Cosolidnsd Stmepizntof Opieritions. The proforma

 ¢ifecixof the Ameritiboite acqiiiin on:our consblidated firancialsutemant re, nit it sial.

" e e __'l__t,_:,Fd""'ﬁiﬁﬂqtdﬁej“;_“.- gible st f'_f,_-,{{_ﬁgb_iiiiicai}n-df'thc'adﬁiiiﬁitibh'dm.mip rolipw

Hivalerit. _ - sy 2
i keed Othle Cufeat ASa 53
it and Capitalized Softwate : :
Medical Cosn Bayatle a
_ NetTargibie Astets Acquired ' o - ¥ %

. Fot the yearsended -p:_u‘mb_'c_":--;s_-z_..s:oioa.aoéﬂ:ana-ﬁbol.fqggréggiemnmcmidq fiid-or jsauéd for.
 suilleracquisitions wccomnted for und
$184 milliaia, tespectvely:TH

¢ purchiase mehod was $1EFnillion, $H6P il 3nd

s ot oy avaterial Jo our consalidarsd ineiitsatements.
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aies. mﬁcuWR ﬁifqrmmia i unﬂer’mlrxngm Wcma&g 7t

“aetrities b M;hmt‘:hcirmutc offdrings Wider thist Y '

poritastof the AARE (Reurative offoiinigy Mapprmmnmc{ym b‘dﬂd& i mi;'ﬁ' Mhemm 200&!

and $8.6 siiiion in 2001

Tht npdcmnung &amro: Jasscs xdawd 19 the AARP bmnwmﬁw&cﬂy rgmrdcﬂ e an Inghease
d QPO mtmmmmazmlum

.ﬂéﬂ{uﬂth&rmﬁcy [‘&;ﬁhgln%. & s
Wﬁihnncamfﬁum:w;m;m@m"mmwﬁ N

‘bl : z\ﬁdnfdingiy. oo & nqniﬁﬂtﬁdt-sﬁwff;d Sfdich: changmm’
L mﬂ" Chﬂ‘lﬂﬂ% .
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5. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Asof December 81, the amortized cost, gioss nireslized gains and lostes, snd falr value of cash caali
equiivalena and inveitmenty were as:‘toliaw&.(-ih-’i_i_ﬁ_] lioss):.

‘ . s e o it -
2003 . il Gaing: _ Lot Vit
Ciish wnd Cash Equivalents £2.967 s - § = § 2262
Pébit Secvrities — Available fac Sale 6187 229 {6Y 6,960
Bq:dtysemma — Avatiable for Sale 173 5 n 181
Debt Securities — Held o Maturity 2 - - 4
Tot] Cash imd Lavestents ___S98 5838 ¢/ _$ 8,473
{‘hﬂzmﬂ Cash Equivalerits S SR $ - 5 - - §iisd
‘Dbt Seduritiey —Availabli for Sale 178 a8 ) 4972
Equity Secuiities — Avallable For Sade 150 5 ;5); . 150
Debt Securities —Held to Mariyy 7 - . _ S ;
TogI_Cash m_d fnvestmenty _ Fe0d & w3 s ugL ___§Ean

As o[ Becembu 3! 2{)03 g 2008, rnpectwciy, ﬂr."nuemﬂdes comtzd af’ $1,221 mmlon znd
' mil)wn in

. s*z,w‘z m:ﬁum 1:1 d.ebt ucuﬂm mamtix;g_ 1 rte_to Evcycm 82.551% mﬂim In mnrmﬂ
: uramnng fifive 910 yearand SLBI5 stillidnin debtbecuiitedwidh: ARl
During 2001, we-contiibuted UnitedHealth Bapital inveitmenn vihied aLdpproximaic]
to'the United Health Foundation. a sanconsoiidated. notfor-profi orgariizatio tcal‘iztd gam of
approximately $18: :mil:cm wat offsct by retaterd cenmbunon Expensg afi
$4.million is included in lnvestmentand: Othr:r 1ncum|: in the acCompanying: Cl(msqﬁ
of Operations,
We recorded realized gairigand lofses'on inlés ofjuvestdients. cxr.ludmg{he UnitedHealth Capital
dispasions describéd above.as faltow:

Met Reahml Gams {Lussc:j
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GGORDWILL AHD OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

%adapwdl%ﬁ&o__ 2, “Goudmllandmhmig} o Assets, Wi, ]
: Forznpible assers with indefiulie) u&ﬂum-mmtwow memmm v
eamhigtmdm&-gn pe commmon shiare Adfuited s il theadoption of the non-ataoriization

ProvisionoFFASING, 147 as.of e beglaning o FERpRCUVE Heriads:

| FosibeMdiodd Dsowber B
i 2608 061

3 L




T MEDICAL COSTS PAYABLE

The foliowing tible shows the components of thechange In medieal costypayabiefor the years ended

Derember3l:
L o] pLpE] 2602 2001
WEDICAL COSTS PATABLE, BEGINNING OF PERIOD. $ A £ 3460 $ 8,966
ACQUISITIONS 165 . o 17
REFORTED. MEDICAL COSTS
Current Year 20,864 18,962 17674
PriorYean {158) £70) [0
Toml Reponed Medical Cous’ 20,714 18,82 17,644
CLAIN PAYMENTS
Psy;n;ea_i_a-.fnr- Glitgent Year trz,m: (15,147 :1_54_:55&}_.
. {QIMGS} (8091): RAST]
usnmammrm&t.zunm‘uamu $ 4150 § ani 0 & 8460

8 COMMERCIAL PAPER AND DERT

Camipegcial paperand debicanaisied of the following asof Decomber 81,

— sm -
‘owtim e Lfing ]
Nalve Vil o m_ e
s 7 3 W § et 3 48l
- - 206" 100
- -
150 150 150 150
400 58 400 450
(223) 1229“ igu)' i{&ﬂ}
SIS 5 90, 3108

Asof December 31, Mﬂ& our ouumdmg tommérdial paper had interess’ rites of
The linterestraieranour Nomnber 2004 !loatmg—rgtc notes are reset qutdcrly

imately 1:2%:.
ee-snih LIBOR

{London lnterhasik Offercd Rate) plusd §%: Asol December 31, 3003, the appmb:c;é:c an

‘thie noleswas, 1.8%.

B Unieealth Grongs




2003, weisiued S‘iﬁO miﬁi&n of &«9% ﬁxcﬁm ‘notes duc Aflnl 2015 We: m& i )
borrowings lo repay commercial paper. and {evm: debtmatering iy mﬁ. and ¥ ,gi:nenl:d - '_" t .
pravpuses Including working caplzal, business scquisitiansa
 Webave TS EATON FALE SWAp: agreeens-thatqualify ) £
HitaFatrate Exprositeirom d fixed W avariabléra . The mthr%srnmi;\!}aip
Hotiohalagiousite 65525 nilfion withvadible ‘ires nicare ben
and dre veset ona :emmnual bagia inafreats: At December 31, 9004, e mﬂ»‘iﬂﬂd tuﬁecmmn’imsi
expense on theseagreements ranged from 1, %10 16%. The &Ecrcﬂh&bcgyzcm:h.c ﬁncpdzndmh!c
nw m~b¢ pnd ar reeem.-,&n amed md rmgntud bver the Yife of

_Mp ignem'_' " "quaﬁfra: fair uiue hedgcs ra carwan bur et
i freemeins havcaggregat\e nauomﬂ o WQMM chigaeiatic _
haﬁm. st

GalinsHentib Gonip 85




9 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Regutstory Capital and Dividend Restrictions

We canducs a sigitificint portion ofour aperations thiough companies thal are subjectio standards
establithed by the National Association of Insurance: Commissichers {NAIC} Thege standards, amung:
otherthings, require these mtmﬂxmn 10 maa.main specificd levels of suatutory-capital, dx defined by
cachstace, and rentict the davitgwad ampont of dividends and ptiver disutivtions tiacinay be paidto
their parent companies. Genevally. the amouni of dividerid distributians that may be paid by « regulated
subgidiary, withiout prios dpproval by stite regulacory suthorides, is linited based 0n the entity’s Jovet

of gtatutary netincome and statutory. capiti} and suxpliss. ‘At December 31, 2008, Approximately

;385 million of our $9:5 InHionpf cash and mvestmmu war hcld bynon—rcguhtedwbndmriﬂ.

Thésgeiimim_ wecis i o oesorti oy Léiec
Esiablishing Hor deby ratiigs: Consiatent it ouin §¥tent o maintabwonr wamrdchtnungs m ‘hc A"

range, we maintain o aggregate statutory: apitdl 2 ami wrplus tevel. fprpnr.mguiawé iaries dnat i
significantly higher than the mimmnm evel segulatory require. A3 Dee mbcr*ﬂ /2005 ited

slgmﬁsihtlyvﬁg,-aic “thead the W‘C ﬁﬁnimﬁm -rgguhiﬂry mquéf&mcna.

- Block Repumham Promam .
Under our boardof dlrcclm authoﬂmnan W m:untam S mmmnn smk rg Sre AT R

3347 pér shm e anaggmgam ot ot appmmmatety ﬁ Ghdhnn As ofbccrm_l .

of directors" authorization 1o purchase up to.anaddtitionalth mitllow shares ofiour commqn sock.
- Commoi Stock Spiit

ln May 2008, our board ofdirectors decl.arcd @ two-f@r—unc spltt of the mmpany’s gommon. nock

sharehalders ul‘rtcard a5, nl’june 2 ;
bccn mmed sorefive thie share. a;mper 6har_e cﬁ,gc_q oﬂhc commut_t smh.mlu.

‘Prétamsd Stack
- & Pecembier 81, 2008, ve had. 10 milliog s4s

st $0,001 par valine preferiéd Motk
issuance, and noprefesred shares inwed.and

\igsiied for
iquistanding;

55 Univediealth diepugp




16 STOGK-BASED: COMFENSATION PLANS

As of Decerabor 81, 2063, we had approvimunely 42 million shares avillabile fop futare prams. of
weards rderoursiockated compengsdon pir dncluding, but not Hudied ip, bicentle or it
ek option, Sto6k. 49Dr e rights wid réiuicted stodk,

ack pploRsare Srasisd sian exerolse priceriotless than the Gyl orfmmmmdmmckon:he
dine: dﬁgraztm Thi}, g&etﬂlmm’biy ovet fourycars and midy be exeréised upm Qiyears frumt the date
of grant Astivitysinter our ek option phan is summarized (n the abje: ﬁdaw:&}nm t thousandsiz




11 INCOME TAXES

m-_mmpomu-af the provision {benefit) for ineame vikes are avfollows:

e Diimbar 1. e  am 2002 2001
Ourfem Provisiah L ' ) . . ;'
Federal s 82 sem 3 m
_State sid Local. : A6 37 )
“Totil Caryenit Provision' ‘g8 E1 A 565
Deferred Provision; (Benefit) -t 12 {1
“Taral Provisan for throme Taxes: _ $-1,015 $ § 550

The recanciliation of the gax provision ag thie U8, Federal Statuvory Rate woithe prayision for Income taxes
m@‘-mum- : '

'mmﬂumus fcdualﬁmnnory'ﬂam : S A 3 ‘B‘i & 615
S & Takies, ney offedesal hesisatis ' - _ 2
Taxkxermpt lavestment Inoame (any - (1'5) #n
Nansdedueible Amodinition. - - g
Oherost _ R S— N o
Thwibonbocleemeliwe 3. G 88
The cdriponens of déferred incante @k assews asid abiliviés e o follswn
' moy_ . m
st # B
.t Y
48 8
2 20,
Subitots o My a0
__Liess; Valuadon Allowamces _ _ 3y 49}
Tdmf'ﬁcfcnt&'iqmcfﬁxamu . ) - : ﬁﬁ 41% )

 Déférend Tnicome Tax Lisbililies
Gapitalined afivare Mepmcm _

_ dion dllowstices arcpmﬁfimiwhm it xmonstdorzd motehkclythan moL matﬁdem:d i s -
Dot b :ealmd The vnluuuonalimnmr’mmmiy aelaretd foture tax benefits.on céctiin feﬂerii anidl stiie

'xsmyfomm Fe&cnl net metin‘g !msmfom;ﬂ: expi bqpm!n i
: < : thg

Wt‘!n&ﬂaw s : i i ke
.gnangs%wmmm ummz»aw; wwmuwax &8%

omctzxmammraxmmzmmmmmmwy selig ERRiifed;

¢ Scivice We.do st Baliewe iy ddjusnidinis thiy iy ronili from Fi CaalosHod WD
" have: augrﬂﬁunum;mt v Gurediisolidared Rognciat position or ﬁmﬂtx dl. opcmhnhs.
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Government Ragulation
Oor biixiniess if refutaréd an federal, #ate, lacal and internationil levels. Tlie laws-and rules goveraing
cuihisiness dre subjem-to freguent change, and. agcm:zes have broad idedetos
regutationy. State 1eg:aiamn-s and Gongress continue to (ocus-on health care’ ssiey ay tlu-sub.}tcml'

praposed tegistation. Existing o fitttire Tave and riales toutd force us g Lhmgt'hcm wirda business.
festrict révenie and chwellnicur growth, incrédse Sut Health dare and sdminibrithe cosnand e:apnai
requirements, ard incrédie out Nability retaréd 1o coverage interpretations or otheractions. Farther; we
mtist obtain and inaintain reguiatory approvals to market many of our products,

Weare alsosubject 10 various angoing guvernmentat investigations, auditeand teviews, and we
record hahﬂ:hes for.our eatimateof probable costs résulting from thiese matiers. Althinigh the results of
pending mnur.ta A am\;guncﬁtain. we do-nit hclmc tl;c r:sul!s ot’ amy of thl,': cnmmtinvcsugauons.
audigr ey SAggrEgdl
Cehiotidated fmmmalpmlﬁan ar mu!uufopctaum

19 SEGMENT FINANGIAL -i'ufbmmﬁu

“Surinvdiyd
pzinclpz!ty mm;uu of: cmtomer umce :md mmucuoq 1oL -

.ind hmi:guwns mtcrié‘gmcnt sransactions; Subsuniiall;canofour
«Inﬂ\ei}niied&uim .
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2002200 2001 (i imlilions):

'l‘heriuliawmg sable presengssegment: financial imfarmation a5 of and: for the ym&mdcdnmmhcr 51,2008,

b

$ gt
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gé& ?-:L: ¥ §%
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4%
4200}
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14 QUARTEALY FINANGIAL DATA [UNAYDITED),

Bidcﬂ«&rﬂngpcﬂmm&m
Mﬂdmmf«&m&&uﬁ
-2002

'.llmnuu

' M&:cﬁtmd@pﬂtﬂngtxpm
Egtaing fﬁi}ﬂ‘iﬁpmﬁom

Bﬂfﬂ Net Egnings pee Conm Shice
Diluied: NnL-mebmj}er Common Share.
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Report of Management

The managemient of UnitedHealth Gronp s responsible For the intogrity and objectivity ofithe.
consplidated Rrianciat ffotmation contained o this annual repont. The mnso!sd:md Hnidteelal
siaterpenis agd velated information were- pgepmd acrarding: ’-"Wolmthx ncipl igﬁ’MﬁﬂY
accepietiin the nited: Stmmmuwman{lmdudewme amounts tharire bagcﬂm mEragement’s
hest matimatey and judgenenty;

To mect i seponsiiiliy, mazemcntdcpmdx ‘o ifs acdouating Sternd aui relfad i s‘mi
avcounting controls, These dteins r¢ dunghed to provide rédsandlilc asdirtice; sl ain ap
daue, that firtdnicial recordsdrg reliable £6r use in préparing finaneidl satenientyand! dmmm

sdfeguarded. Qualified peisotinel throughow the orgenization maintain and mopitor these invernal
Accounting.confroly onan ‘engoing basis.

The t&uditﬂommmﬂfﬂxcbua:’d of it
Smiplaysey s icamparniyl m«ﬁwnmym frivately with thecoifi pinyiu i

and: mnagpmm to*rcwew secotming. anditag. inthrial coitral, firatieis] vqp’onﬁng md’.e, armi’s. :

Sat

et _m\conspos:dcmmlyormmnwhoam rat
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independent Auditars' Report

To the Board 6 Directoss and Stiarcholders of Unitediealth Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries;

We have ayidited the sccoripanying condolidated balance sheet of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and
Subisidiaties {the “Company™} 81 of Decarnber 31, 2003 4nd 200% and the relited statementiof operations,
changes i sharcholders equity; and cath flows for the years thea ended, Thiese consnlidated financial stiements
are the responitbility of thie Gompany s anagemeut. Qur fesponibitity iy th.expicss an opinion on these
consolidated finaneial statements based on oucaudits. The coniglidated financial statements of UnitedHealth
Grougp {ncorpacated and Subsidiaries for tho year ended December 31 %001 were audited by other auditory who
have'ceased apérationis, Those saditors expressed an tingualified oplnicn-on those consofidated fi Amnchil
saremenny in their reportdated January 24, 2002, _

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled States of
Arperica. Those standaids require that we plan and perform (he audit to, chmin reasonable asgurdnce aboul
whether the Bnanglal seatements are froe of matetial misstatement, At audit inciudes cxamining, on a tes: basis,
evidence supporiing the amaunts and disclostires inthe finanicial statements: An audit alse includes assessing;
the sccoutiting principles usedand Sighificains estimates Bde by Adnigeaieny, i will dvevaluating de gierdlt
financial sraement présenizsian, We believs that guravdits providy g rédsonat i basty for our opinion.

Tn Our opinion, such consolidated Anailcial seatcmenis preseat fairly, i afl materdal réypects; tre findncial
posttion of the Gompiny st Deteuiber 31, 2005 isid 2002 and the resilis dFits sperasions and iis cash flovy for the
years thew ended in‘conformity with accounting principley generally accepted in the United Siases of America.

As digauissed in Wote 6 to-the cansolidated financial smicmonts, effcctive fanuary 1, 2002, the Cowpany
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medical coftspays apwith’

2 ;
irAngible asessthat pic vo longer being:

' adj t
velaedd tax el pecognized in those periody related taigoodwill inuis
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